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2024 Annual Report

Alpha Saudi Equity Fund



Dear Unitholder,

It is with great pleasure to present to you the annual report for
Alpha Saudi Equity Fund (the “Fund”), for the financial year ended
31st December 2024. This report highlights the Fund’s investments,
activities as well as its financial results and the Fund’s independent
auditors’ report for the year ended 2024.

We would like to take this opportunity and thank you for your trust in
Alpha Capital. Should you need any further information, please do
not hesitate to contact us.

Your sincerely

Alpha Capital

(the “Fund Manager”)
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Annual Fund Report

Net asset value and distributions, SAR

Fund performance

Fund name Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

Investment 
objectives & 
policies

To provide medium and long-term capital growth through investing in

listed equities in the Saudi Market. The Fund invests its assets in a

diversified portfolio of Shariah compliant companies listed in the Saudi

Equity market.

Distribution policy
The Fund does not make any distributions to its unit holders. Instead,
dividends are reinvested.

Fund benchmark 
and service 
provider’s website

S&P Shariah Domestic Saudi Arabia

https://www.spglobal.com/

December
2024*

December 
2023

December
2022

Description

524,681,350374,922,271256,213,978
Fund Net Asset Value (“NAV”) at 
the end of the financial year

34.3044629.6423620.83910
NAV per unit at the end of the 
financial year

34.2124729.6423625.92528
Highest NAV per unit for the 
financial year

29.7167920.8452019.91454
Lowest NAV per unit for the 
financial year

15,294,84312,648,19412,294,867
No. of Units at the end of financial 
year

N/AN/AN/A
Income Distribution per unit -
Gross

N/AN/AN/AIncome Distribution per unit - Net

1.852.012.20
Total Expense Ratio % - Average 
NAV

N/AN/AN/A
% of borrowed assets from the total 
asset value, the period of their 
exposure and due date 

*Annual report of the Fund has been prepared based on the special valuation as of 31 December 2024.

Investment Fund information
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Fund performance

The Fund’s performance for Year to Date (“YTD”) stood at 16.55%

v/s 2.86% for the benchmark. The Fund outperformed its benchmark

YTD by 13.69%.

The Fund’s performance since inception stood at 243.04% v/s 

54.78% for the benchmark. The Fund outperformed its benchmark 

since inception by 188.26%.

Investment Fund’s 
performance 
during the year

Performance record (1)

Amount in SARFund fees and expenses for 2024 (2)

7,125,749 Management fees

1,178,513Value-added tax expenses

318,535Administration fees

141,758Custodian fees

45,493Professional fees

10,080Transaction costs

8,000Director’s fee expense

165,990Other operating expenses

8,994,118Total

Since 
inception

5 Years3 Years1 YearDescription

243.04190.3675.8116.55Total return (%)

Since 
inception

20242023202220212020Description

243.0416.5542.245.8442.3816.52
Annual total 
return (%) 

%Description

1.85Total expense ratio % - Average NAV

1 & 2: based on the special NAV issued for the audit purposes as of 31 December 2024.
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Performance record

Disclosure

Total expense ratio is calculated based on the average NAV over the

period.

The last valuation day of the year was 30 December 2024. However,

the annual report of the Fund has been prepared based on the special

valuation as of 31 December 2024.

Basis of 
performance 
calculation & 
assumptions

The performance data is calculated on NAV/unit basis on each 

valuation day.

Material changes 
affecting Fund’s 
performance

There were no material changes affecting Fund’s performance during
the year.

Exercising of 
voting rights

As per the Annex A “Exercising of Voting Right”.
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Fund’s board annual report

Names of Fund 
board members 
and membership 
type

A brief about Fund 
board member’s 
qualification 

 Abdulrahman Khalid AlDamer

Abdulrahman is the Chief Operating Officer at Alpha Capital

Company. Prior to his current position, Abdulrahman was heading

the M&A’s team within the CMA and was responsible for supervising

M&A transactions, policy formulation, proposals and led the technical

implementation of the updated M&A regulations. Abdulrahman holds

a BS degree in Finance from Prince Sultan University, and an MS in

International Finance, from the University of Leeds, United Kingdom.

 Ahmed Abdullah AlJomaih

Ahmed is the Co-Head of Asset management at Alpha Capital

Company. Prior to his current position, Ahmed managed to

accumulate more than ten years of extensive Asset Management

experience where he was heading the Equity team at HSBC Saudi

Arabia, managing local & GCC Equities. He holds a BA in Finance

from King Fahd University of Petroleum and Minerals and MS in

Corporate Finance from Henley Business School at the University of

Reading in Britain.

Membership typeName

Non-independent memberAbdulrahman Khalid AlDamer

Non-independent memberAhmed Abdullah AlJomaih

Non-independent memberAli Asgar Lilamwala

Non-independent memberMohammed Talal Arab

Independent memberNaif Mohammed AlJishi

Independent memberBandar Mohammed AlDamir
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Fund’s board annual report

A brief about Fund 
board member’s 
qualification 
(Continued)

 Ali Asgar Lilamwala

Ali is the Co-Head of Asset management at Alpha Capital Company.

He has more than14 years of experience in investment management.

He previously led all functions of asset management business in EFG-

Hermes Saudi Arabia. Prior to that, he was at MASIC where he

developed internal reporting structure, asset allocation for Funds,

evaluation, and performance analysis. Ali holds MS from University of

Oklahoma, and is a CFA Charter holder.

 Mohammed Talal Arab

Mohammed is the CEO of the Sulaymaniyah Investment Group and has

more than seven years of experience in leadership positions.

Mohammed holds a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering from

King Fahd University of Petroleum and Minerals in Dhahran and a

Master’s degree in Management from State University of Colorado in

the United States of America.

 Naif Mohammed AlJishi

Naif is the founding president of Alpha International Group for

Management Consulting. He has more than ten years of experience in

the fields of management consulting and corporate finance. Naif holds

a Bachelor of Science from King Fahd University of Petroleum and

Minerals in Dhahran and a Master’s in Design and Branding Strategy

management from Brunel University in London.

 Bandar Mohammed AlDamir

Bandar is the Chairman of Mira Food Company since 2008, and the

Chairman of Union Investment Joint Stock Company. He also held

several administrative and investment positions in the private sector

during his twenty years of practical experience. Bandar holds a

Bachelor in Political Science from King Saud University.
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Fund’s board annual report

Fund board 
member’s roles 
and duties 

 Approving material contracts, decisions and reports involving the

Fund.

 Approve a written policy in regard to the voting rights related to the

Fund assets.

 Overseeing and, where appropriate, approving or ratifying any

conflicts of interest the Fund Manager has identified.

 Meeting at least twice annually with the Fund Manager’s compliance

committee or its compliance officer to review the Fund Manager’s

compliance with all applicable rules, laws and regulations.

 Approving all changes stipulated in Articles (62) and (63) of

investment Fund regulations before the Fund Manager obtains the

approval or notification of the unitholders and the Authority.

 Confirming the completeness and accuracy (complete, clear,

accurate, and not misleading), and compliance with investment Fund

Regulations, of the Fund’s terms and conditions and of any other

document.

 Ensuring that the Fund Manager carries out its obligations in the best

interests of the unitholders, in accordance with investment Fund

regulations, the Fund’s terms and conditions.

 Reviewing the report that includes assessment of the performance

and quality of services provided by the parties involved in providing

significant services to the Fund referred to in investment Fund

regulations.

 Assessing the mechanism of the Fund Manager’s handling of the

risks related to the Fund’s assets in accordance with the Fund

Manager’s policies and procedures that detect the Fund’s risks and

how to treat such risks.

 Have a fiduciary duty to unitholders, including a duty to act in good

faith, a duty to act in the best interests of the unitholders and a duty

to exercise all reasonable care and skill.

 Taking minutes of meetings that provide all deliberations and facts of

the meetings and the decisions taken by the Fund’s board of director.

 Review the report containing all complaints and the measures taken

regarding them referred to in investment Fund regulations and Fund

terms and conditions.
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Fund’s board annual report

Fund board 
members 
remuneration

The remuneration for independent directors is 2,000 SAR per meeting
and a maximum of 10,000 SAR per year for each independent
member.

Conflict of interest

Membership 
relevant to other 
Funds

Membership into other Funds Name

 Alpha Murabaha Fund
 Alpha Capital Masar Land 

Development Fund
 Alpha Capital Private Fund 1

Abdulrahman Khalid AlDamer

 Alpha Saudi Freestyle Equity Fund
 Alpha Capital Public Sukuk Fund
 Alpha Capital Freestyle Nomu Fund
 Alpha Capital Private Fund 1

Ahmed Abdullah AlJomaih

 Alpha Capital Public Sukuk Fund
 Alpha Capital Private Fund 1

Ali Asgar Lilamwala

 Alpha Saudi Freestyle Equity FundMohammed Talal Arab

 Alpha Saudi Freestyle Equity Fund
 Alpha Capital Public Sukuk Fund
 Alpha Capital Freestyle Nomu Fund

Bandar Mohammed AlDamir

The Fund’s board members may be involved in other financial,

investment or professional activities which may on occasion cause

conflicts of interest with the Fund. The Fund’s board shall use

reasonable endeavors to avoid any such conflict. However, when and

if any such conflict arises, the Fund Manager and the Fund’s board will

endeavor to resolve the conflict fairly in accordance with the

applicable laws and regulations. As of the date of this report, there

were no material conflict of interests which may adversely affect the

Fund boards and Fund Manager's performance of their duties towards

the Fund.
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Fund board 
annual report

There were two Fund board meetings held during the year 2024 as

follows:

— The first meeting for Alpha Saudi Equity Fund was held on 29 July

2024 with the following agenda items:

 Overview of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

 Review of decisions that were approved through resolution

 Review of the Fund Manager’s risk related checklist

 Review of the first half yearly report

 Review of the compliance and money laundering related

topics

 Discussion related to any additional updates

— The second meeting for Alpha Saudi Equity Fund was held on

17 December 2024 with the following agenda items:

 Overview of Alpha Saudi Equity Fund

 Review of decisions that were approved through resolution

 Review of Fund Manager’s risk related checklist

 Review of the second half yearly reports

 Review of the compliance and money laundering related

topics

 Discussion related to any additional updates
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Review of 
investment 
activities during 
the year

Investment activities and performance

Fund Manager information

Fund Manager 
and sub-manager

The Fund Manager is Alpha Capital Company which is responsible for 

managing the Fund's assets. There is  no sub-manager of the Fund.

Fund Manager Alpha Capital Company

Address

12371 PO BOX: 8596 Riyadh, Prince Turki Bin Abdulaziz AlAwwal, 

King Saud University.

Tel: 0114343090

www.alphacapital.com.sa

From the date of inception (25/07/2018) until the date of the report 

(31/12/2024), the Fund invested its assets in shares of Saudi listed 

companies that are compliant with the Shariah principles.  

The Fund’s performance for Year to Date (“YTD”) stood at 16.55% v/s

2.86% for the benchmark. The Fund outperformed its benchmark YTD by

13.69%.

The Fund’s performance since inception stood at 243.04% v/s 54.78% 

for the benchmark. The Fund outperformed its benchmark since 

inception by 188.26%.

There were no changes in Fund’s terms and conditions during the year.

Fund’s 
performance 
during the year

Details of changes 
during the year in 
Fund T&Cs and 
information 
memorandum
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Other information 
for the unit holders

There was no other information which needs to be disclosed during 
the year for the unit holders.

Other key disclosures

Special 
commission 
arrangements

There were no special commission received during the year.

Other data and 
other information 
required by the 
Investment Funds 
Regulations

Period of service 
of the person 
registered as a 
manager for the 
Fund

Since 21st of May 2019.

Investments into 
other funds

There was no investment made into any other funds during the year.

Expense ratio of 
each underlying 
Fund and the 
weighted average 
expense ratio of 
all underlying 
Funds

Not applicable.

There was no other data or information which needs to be disclosed 
during the year as required by the Investments Funds Regulations.

A disclosure of the 
expense ratio of 
each underlying 
fund at end of 
year and the 
weighted average 
expense ratio of 
all underlying 
funds that 
invested in (where 
applicable) 

N/A
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Custodian information

Custodian main 
Duties and 
Responsibilities

 Safekeeping of Securities

 Statement of Trades

 Corporate Action Management

 Income Booking

 Funds Transfers

 Foreign Exchange

Custodian Name AlBilad Investment Company

Address

Smart Tower, King Fahad Road, 8162 King Fahad Road – Olaya, 

Riyadh 12313-3701, Saudi Arabia.

Tel: +966920003636.

Email: Clientservices@albilad-capital.com.

www.albilad-capital.com
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Fund operator

Operator main 
duties and 
responsibilities

Fund Operator 
Name

Address

Alpha Capital Company

12371 PO BOX: 8596 Riyadh, Prince Turki Bin Abdulaziz AlAwwal, 

King Saud University.

Tel: 0114343090

www.alphacapital.com.sa

 The Fund operator is responsible for valuing the assets of the public 

Fund. In so doing, the Fund operator shall conduct a full and fair 

valuation.

 The asset of Fund is valued by the Fund operator each dealing day at 

such time as specified in the Terms and Conditions of such public Fund, 

and for the duration not exceeding one day from the deadline for 

submission of requests for subscription or redemption. 

 The Fund operator must comply with the Annex (5) in the investment 

Fund regulations in relation to valuation of the Fund.

 The Fund operator shall be responsible for calculating the price of the 

units in a public Fund that it operates. The price of units for 

subscriptions and redemptions on any dealing day shall be calculated 

by reference to the net asset value per unit of the public Fund at the 

valuation point on the relevant dealing day.

 The Fund operator must record each instance where an asset of the 

Fund is valued incorrectly, or the price of a unit is calculated incorrectly.

 The Fund operator is responsible for operating investment Funds.

 The Fund Manager and Fund operator must maintain all books and 

records in accordance with the regulations. 

 The Fund operator must maintain -at all times- records of all units issued 

and cancelled and must maintain an up to date record of the balance of 

outstanding units for each Fund under its operation.
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Auditor information

Auditor’s report 
regarding the 
Fund’s latest 
audited financial 
statements

The auditor’s report is available in the audited financial statements 

presented in the last section of this annual fund report.

Auditor’s name Alluhaid & Alyahya Chartered Accountants (“LYCA”)

Address

Grand Tower, King Fahad Road, Al Muhammadiyah district. P.O. Box 
85453, Riyadh 11691.
Tel: +96611 269 3516.
Fax: +966 11 488 9639.
www.lyca.com.sa
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The Fund’s audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 
are presented in the financial statements section.

Note: Fund’s reports are available upon request free of charge.

Fund’s audited financial statements
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Annex-A
Exercise of annual voting rights, issuer’s name and date of AGM

Ataa Educational Co.- 29/01/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Review and discuss the Board of Directors’ report for the financial
year ending on 07/31/2023

1

xReview and discuss the company’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ending on 07/31/2023.

2

x
Voting on the company’s auditor’s report for the fiscal year ending on
07/31/2023 AD.

3

x

Voting on the board of directors’ recommendation to distribute
dividends to shareholders for the fiscal year ending on 07/31/2021
AD, with a total value of (46,295,936) Forty-six million two hundred
and ninety-five thousand nine hundred and thirty-six Saudi riyals, so
that the share of each share is one (1.10) Saudi riyal at a rate of
(11%) of the paid-up capital, provided that the eligibility is for the
shareholders who own shares at the end of trading on the day of the
general assembly and who are registered in the company’s
shareholders register with the Securities Depository Center Company
(Depository Center) at the end of the second trading day following the
eligibility date, and the date of dividend payment will be determined
later.

4

x

Voting on the business and contracts that took place between the
company and Dr. Ahmed bin Nasser Al-Mutib, in which the Board of
Directors, Ms. Farah bent Ahmed Al-Mutib, and Ms.Reem Al-mutib
has an indirect interest in them, which are lease contracts for the
Middle East and Al-Feker complexes. With a total value of
(14,088,333)Saudi riyals without preferential conditions. (attached).

5

x
Voting to absolve the Board of Directors' members from liability for
the fiscal year ending on 07/31/2023 AD.

6

x

Voting to disburse the amount of (1,331,507) Saudi riyals as a bonus
to the members of the Board of Directors at the rate of (150,000)
Saudi riyals for each member, for the fiscal year ending on
07/31/2023 AD.

7

x

Vote on appointing the company's auditor from among the candidates
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee; This is for
examining, reviewing and auditing the financial statements for the
(second, third and fourth) quarters and the annual of the fiscal year
ending on 07/31/2024 and for the first quarter of the financial year
ending on 07/31/2025AD and determining his fees.

8

x

Voting on the Board’s resolution to appoint (Khaled Naser ALmoamar)
as a (Non - Executive) board member starting from the date of his
appointment on 24/07/2023. to complete the Board term until the end
of the current term on 07/11/2024., succeeding the former member
(Thinain Bin Thinain and Non - Executive).

9

x

Voting on the Board’s resolution to appoint (Reem Ahmed bin Nasser
Al-Mutib) as a (Non - Executive) board member starting from the date
of his appointment on 24/07/2023. to complete the Board term until
the end of the current term on 07/11/2024., succeeding the former
member (Ahmed bin Nasser Al-Mutib and Non - Executive).

10

National Medical Care Co. - 31/01/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Vote on the amendment of the company’s bylaws in accordance with 
the new Companies Law and rearranging the articles numbers to 
comply with the proposed amendments (attached)

1

xVote on the amendment of the Audit Committee Charter. (attached)2

x
Vote on the amendment of the Board policies and criteria for
candidacy for membership of the management. (attached)

3

x
Vote on the amendment of the Competing Business Standards.
(attached)

4
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Exercise of annual voting rights, issuer’s name and date of AGM

ALYAMAMAH STEEL. - 10/03/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xViewing the Board of Directors' report for the Fiscal year ended on
30/09/2023 and discuss it .

1

xViewing The financial statements for the fiscal year ended on 30-
09-2023 and discuss it

2

xVoting on the auditor's report for the Fiscal year ended on 30-09-
2023 After discussing it

3

x
Voting on absolving the Board of Directors from their Liabilities
pertaining to the management of the company for the Fiscal years
ended 30 Sept 2023

4

x

Voting on the appointment of the company's External auditors from
the nomines based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, to examine, review and audit the financial statements
for the second quarter, third quarter, and annual of the fiscal year
2024 and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2025 and determine his
fees. Dr. Muhammad Al-Amari and Partners - (BDO) .Ibrahim
Ahmad Al-Bassam & Partner- (Al-Bassam & Co.) - (PKF).KPMG -
Al-Fawzan and Partners - (KPMG): Proposed

5

x
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a biannual / quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2024.

6

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Mojell trading and contracting
company, in which the chairman of the Board of Directors Mr.
Saad Bin Ibrahim Al-Mojell has an indirect interest in it, to sell
product based on purchase order submitted by one party to the
other , the transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without preferential conditions, noting that the total
transactions which was done with the company in the previous
year amounted to SAR (1,354,500) .

7

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Masdar Building Materials Company, in
which the member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Raed bin Ibrahim
Al-Mudaiheem, has an indirect interest, in order to sell products
based on purchase orders submitted by one party to the other, the
Transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without preferential conditions, noting that the total
transactions Which took place with the company in the previous
year amounted to SAR (166,577,930).

8

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Thabat Construction Company Ltd., in
which the member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Raed bin Ibrahim
Al-Mudaiheem, has an indirect interest, in order to sell products
based on purchase orders submitted by one party to the other, the
transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without preferential conditions, noting that there were
no transactions with the company during the fiscal year 2023.

9

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Masdar Technical Supplies company, in
which the Board Member Mr. Raed bin Ibrahim Al Mudaiheem has
an indirect interest in it, to sell product based on purchase order
submitted by one party to the other , the transaction period starts
from 01/04/2024 and ends on 31/03/2025, without preferential
conditions, noting that the total transactions Which was done with
the company in the previous year amounted to SAR (235,564)

10

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Masdar Hardware company, in which
the Board Member Mr. Raed bin Ibrahim Al Mudaiheem has an
indirect interest in it, to sell product based on purchase order
submitted by one party to the other , the transaction period starts
from 01/04/2024 and ends on 31/03/2025, without preferential
conditions, noting that The total transactions that took place with
the company in the previous year amounted to SAR (51,306)

11
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ALYAMAMAH STEEL. - 10/03/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Masdar Company for Commercial
Carpentry Materials, in which the Board Member Mr. Raed bin
Ibrahim Al Mudaiheem has an indirect interest in it, to sell product
based on purchase order submitted by one party to the other , the
transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without preferential conditions, noting that there were
no dealings with it During the fiscal year 2023

12

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Muhanna Trading company, in which
the Board Member Mr. Muhanna Abdulah Al-Muhanna has an
indirect interest in it, to sell product based on purchase order
submitted by one party to the other , the transaction period starts
from 01/04/2024 and ends on 31/03/2025, without preferential
conditions, noting that the total transactions which took place with
the company in the previous year amounted to SAR
(146,771,883).

13

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Muhanna Steel Group , in which the
Board Member Mr. Muhanna Abdulah Al-Muhanna has an indirect
interest in it, to sell product based on purchase order submitted by
one party to the other , the transaction period starts from
01/04/2024 and ends on 31/03/2025, without preferential
conditions, noting that the total transactions Which took place with
the company in the previous year amounted to SAR (94,782,081).

14

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Rashed Building Materials Company,
in which the Board Member Mr. Khaled bin Abdullah Al-Shami has
an indirect interest in it, to sell product based on purchase order
submitted by one party to the other , the transaction period starts
from 01/04/2024 and ends on 31/03/2025, without preferential
conditions, noting that the total transactions Which was done with
the company in the previous year amounted to SAR (1,696,047)

15

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and the Saudi Company for Electrical and
Mechanical Business Service, in which the Board Member Mr.
Khaled bin Abdullah Al-Shami has an indirect interest in it, to sell
product based on purchase order submitted by one party to the
other , the transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without preferential conditions, noting that there were
no dealings with it During the fiscal year 2023.

16

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Rashi Trading and Contracting
Company , in which the Board Member Mr. Khaled bin Abdullah Al-
Shami has an indirect interest in it, to sell product based on
purchase order submitted by one party to the other , the
transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without preferential conditions, noting that the total
transactions that took place with the company in the previous year
amounted to SAR (80,500)

17

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Rashed Fastener company , in which
the Board Member Mr. Khaled bin Abdullah Al-Shami has an
indirect interest in it, to sell product based on purchase order
submitted by one party to the other , the transaction period starts
01/04/2024 and ends on 31/03/2025, without any preferential
treatment, note that there were no transaction with the company
during the fiscal year 2023.

18

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Rashed Abdul Rahaman Al-Rashed
and Sons Factory Company , in which the Board Member Mr.
Khaled bin Abdullah Al-Shami has an indirect interest in it, to sell
product based on purchase order submitted by one party to the
other , the transaction period starts 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without any preferential treatment, note that there
were no transaction with the company during the fiscal year 2023.

19
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ALYAMAMAH STEEL. - 10/03/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts that will be conducted
between the company and Al-Fawzan Holding company , in which
the Board Member of the Subsidiary Company ( Alyamamam
company for reinforcing steel bars) Mr. Fawzan Muhammad Al-
Fawzan has an indirect interest in it, to sell product based on
purchase order submitted by one party to the other , the
transaction period starts from 01/04/2024 and ends on
31/03/2025, without any preferential treatment, note that the total
transaction amount for the previous year was SAR(19,171,766).

20

JAMJOOM PHARMA. - 12/03/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Vote on the Board of Directors decision to appoint Mr. Georges P.
Schorderet a member of the Board of Directors (independent
member) starting from the date of his appointment on 15-12-1444H
corresponding to 03-07-2023G to complete the Board Term until
the end of the current session on June 18, 2025, succeeding the
resigned Board Member Mr. Simon Goeller (independent member).
(CV attached).

1

x
Vote on the amendment of the Remuneration Policy of the
Members of the Board of Directors and its Committees and the
Executive Management(attached).

2

xVote on amending Article (1) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Company’s Incorporation (attached)

3

x
Voting on amending Article (3) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Purposes of the Company (attached).

4

xVote on amending Article (8) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to Shareholders’ Registry (attached).

5

x
Vote on amending Article (9) of the Company’s Bylaws which
related to the Stock Trading (attached).

6

x
Vote on amending Article (13) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Formation of the Board of Directors (attached).

7

x
Vote on amending Article (15) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Expiry of the Board of Directors’ Term, Retirement of
its Members, or Vacancy in Membership (attached).

8

x
Vote on amending Article (16) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Board of Directors’ Powers (attached).

9

x
Vote on amending Article (17) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to Remuneration of Board Members (attached).

10

x
Vote on amending Article (18) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Powers of the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman, and
the CEO or the Managing Director, and the Secretary (attached).

11

x
Vote on amending Article (20) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Quorum and Board Decisions (attached).

12

x
Vote on amending Article (21) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Board Deliberations (attached).

13

x
Vote on amending Article (23) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Invitation for Assemblies (attached).

14

xVote on amending Article (27) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Assemblies Decisions (attached).

15

x
Vote on deleting Article (30) from the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Issuing General Assembly Decisions by Circulation
(attached).

16

x
Vote on amending Article (36) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Profit Entitlement and Interim Dividends (attached).

17

xVote on amending Article (38) of the Company’s Bylaws which
relates to the Expiration of the Company (attached).

18
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Alinma Bank – 23/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting and discussing on the Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2023.

1

x
Voting on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023.

2

x

Voting on the appointment of the External Auditors for the Bank
based on the Audit Committee’s recommendation. The appointed
External Auditors shall examine, review and audit the first, second,
and third quarter and annual financial statements of the fiscal year
2024, and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2025, and determination
of the External Auditors’ fees.

3

x
Voting on the payment of) SAR (10,745,000as a remuneration to
members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2023.

4

x
Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a quarterly or semi-annually basis for the fiscal year
2024.

5

x
Voting on the amendments of the Controls, standards and
Procedures of Nomination to the Membership of the Board of
Directors (Attached in Tadawul)

6

xVoting on the amendments of the Remuneration policy for Board of
Directors, Its Committees and Senior (Attached in Tadawul)

7

x

Vote on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to increase the
capital by capitalization from the retained earnings by way of granting
one share for every four shares, according to the following: - The
bank’s capital before the increase is (20,000,000,000) Saudi riyals,
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares. - The bank capital after the
increase is (25,000,000,000) Saudi riyals, divided into
2,500,000,000 shares. - Total amount of increase is (5,000) million
Saudi riyals. - Percentage of capital increase: 25% - The reason for
the capital increase: This increase aims to strengthen the bank’s
financial position which contributes to achieving its strategic
objectives. - Method of capital increase: The increase will be through
capitalizing of (5,000) million Saudi riyals from retained earnings,
approximately (1) bonus share for every (4) shares owned. Eligibility
date: In the event that the Bank’s shareholders in the extraordinary
general assembly meeting agree to increase the capital, the eligibility
will be for the shareholders who own the shares at the end of trading
on the day of the general assembly and are registered in the
company’s shareholders register with the Securities Depository
Center Company (“Edaa”) at the end of the second trading day
following the entitlement date. In the event of fractional shares; The
fractions will be collected in one portfolio for all shareholders and sold
at the market price, then their value will be distributed to the
shareholders entitled to the grant, each according to their share,
within a period not exceeding 30 days from the date of determining
the new shares due to each shareholder. - Amendment of Article (7)
of the Bank's bylaws, relating to Capital.

8

xVoting on the amendment of Article (4) of the Bank's bylaws, relating
to establishment of companies. (attached in Tadawul)

9

xVoting on the amendment of Article (14) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to share purchase and sale. (attached in Tadawul)

10

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (17) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to management. (attached in Tadawul)

11

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (18) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to membership expiry. (attached in Tadawul)

12

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (20) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the board’s committees. (attached in Tadawul)

13

xVoting on the amendment of Article (21) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the Executive Committee. (attached in Tadawul)

14

xVoting on the amendment of Article (22) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the Audit Committee. (attached in Tadawul)

15

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (24) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the chairmanship of the board and representation before others.
(attached in Tadawul)

16

xVoting on the amendment of Article (26) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the quorum for meetings. (attached in Tadawul)

17

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (29) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the ordinary general assembly. (attached in Tadawul)

18
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Alinma Bank – 23/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xVoting on the amendment of Article (39) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the appointment. (attached in Tadawul)

19

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (40) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to auditor authorities and responsibilities. (attached in Tadawul)

20

x
Voting on the deletion of Article (42) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating to
the financial statements and the directors’ report. (attached in
Tadawul)

21

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (46) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the losses of the company. (attached in Tadawul)

22

xVoting on the amendment of Article (49) of the Bank’s bylaw, relating
to the sharia’h governance. (attached in Tadawul)

23

x

Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors with the authority of the
General Assembly provided for in paragraph (1), Article (27) of the
Companies Law for a period of one (1) year from the date of approval
by the General Assembly or until the end of the session of the
authorized Board of Directors, whichever is earlier, in accordance
with the conditions set forth in the Implementing Regulation of the
Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

24

x

Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors with the authority of the
General Assembly provided for in paragraph (2), Article (27) of the
Companies Law for a period of one (1) year from the date of approval
by the General Assembly or until the end of the session of the
authorized Board of Directors, whichever is earlier. Such
authorization covers investment businesses and activities as well as
real estate financing.

25

x
Voting on the participation of Board member Mr. Anees Ahmed
Momina in a business competing with the bank’s business. (attached
in Tadawul)

26
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Al Rajhi Bank. - 24/03/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting on the Bank’s Auditor report for the fiscal year ended 31st
December 2023 after discussing it.

1

x
Voting on releasing the Board of Directors Members from their
liabilities for the fiscal year ended 31st December 2023.

2

x

Voting on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute cash
dividends of SAR (4,600) Million to shareholders for the second half
of the fiscal year ended 31st December 2023, estimated at SAR
(1.15) per share, representing (11.5%) of the face value of share.
Accordingly, total distributed dividends for the fiscal year ended 31st
December 2023 is SAR (9,200) Million, estimated at SAR (2.30) per
share, representing (23%) of the face value of share. The eligibility of
dividends shall be for the Bank’s shareholders who own shares at the
end of the trading day of convening General Assembly meeting and
who are registered in the Shareholders Register at Securities
Depository Center (Edaa) at the end of the second trading day
following the due date noting that dividends distribution commences
on 03/04/2024.

3

x
Voting on the delegation of the Board of Directors to distribute
interim dividends to the Bank’s shareholders on semi-annually or
quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2024.

4

x

Voting on the appointment of the Bank’s external auditors, from
among nominees, based on Audit Committee’s recommendation, to
examine, review and audit the primary financial statements for the
second and third quarter financial statements for the fiscal year
2024, annual financial statements for the fiscal year 2024, and the
first quarter of the fiscal year 2025, and to approve their fees.

5

x
Voting on the payment of SAR (5,225,000) as remunerations and
compensations to the Members of the Board of Directors for the
period from 1st January 2023 to 31st December 2023.

6

x
Voting on the payment of SAR (900,000) as remunerations and
compensations to the Members of Audit Committee for the period
from 1st January 2023 to 31st December 2023.

7

x
Voting on amending the Charter of Board Audit Committee.
(Attached)

8

x
Voting on amending the Policy for Remuneration and Compensation
of Board, Board Committees, Audit Committee Members and
Executive Management. (Attached)

9

xVoting on amending the Board of Directors Nomination and
Membership Policy. (Attached)

10

x

Voting on delegating the Ordinary General Assembly authorization
powers stipulated in Paragraph (1) of Article (27) of Companies Law
to the Board of Directors, for one year from the General Assembly
approval date or until the end of the term of the delegated Board of
Directors, whichever is earlier, pursuant to the conditions stipulated
in Implementing Regulations of Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock
Companies.

11

x
Voting on amending the Bank’s Bylaws in accordance with the new
Companies Law, and rearranging and numbering the articles of the
bylaws in alignment with the proposed amendments. (Attached)

12

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Micro and Small Business Motor Insurance, at standard conditions
without preferences, for a period of one year with a value of SAR
104,884,653 for 2023. (Attached)

13

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Banker’s Blanket Bond and Professional Indemnity Insurance
Agreement, at standard conditions without preferences, for a period
of one year with a value of SAR 2,388,533 for 2023. (Attached)

14
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Al Rajhi Bank. - 24/03/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Directors and Officers Insurance, at standard conditions without
preferences, for a period of one year with a value of SAR 3,040,061
for 2023 (Attached).

15

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Properties All Risk Policy, at standard conditions without
preferences, for a period of one year with a value of SAR 9,012,353
for 2023. (Attached).

16

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Fire and Allied Perils – Mortgage Insurance Agreement, at
standard conditions without preferences, for a period of one year
with a value of SAR1,380,740 for 2023. (Attached)

17

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Bancassurance Agreement, at standard conditions without
preferences, for a period of one year with a value of SAR
37,202,998 for 2023. (Attached)

18

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Motor Insurance Agreement, at standard conditions without
preferences, for a period of one year with a value of SAR
520,357,347 for 2023. (Attached)

19

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the Bank
and Al Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance, in which the
Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al
Rajhi and the Managing Director and CEO Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah
Al Mogbel have an indirect interest, being board members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. The transactions contain a contract
of Marine Cargo Open Cover Insurance Agreement, at standard
conditions without preferences, for a period of one year with a value
of SAR 960,150 for 2023. (Attached)

20
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Saudi Paper Manufacturing Co.– 25/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xReviewing the Board of Directors’ report for the financial year ending
on 31/12/2023 AD and discussing it.

1

x
Vote on the company’s auditor’s report for the financial year ending
on 31/12/2023 AD after discussing it.

2

x
Review and discuss the financial statements for the fiscal year ending
on December 31, 2023

3

x

Vote on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute cash
dividends in the amount of (16,850,000) Saudi riyals to shareholders
for the third quarter of the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2023,
at (0.5) half a riyal per share, which represents (5%) of the nominal
value of one share. Eligibility shall be for shareholders who own
shares at the end of trading on the day of the General Assembly and
who are registered in the company’s shareholder registry with the
Securities Depository Center Company (Depository Center) at the
end of the second trading day following the entitlement date, provided
that the distribution of dividends begins on Thursday on: 05/09/ 2024
AD

4

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the
company and the East Gas Company, in which the member of the
Board of Directors / Abdulaziz bin Raed Al-Mishaal has an indirect
interest, which is a gas services contract in the amount of
8,428,277.64 riyals in the year 2023 AD, according to the prevailing
commercial conditions and there are no preferential terms.

5

xVote on amending the work regulations of the Audit Committee
(attached).

6

x

Voting on the members of the Board of Directors from among the
other upcoming members, which begins on the date: 04/27/2024 AD
and lasts for three years, until it ends on 04/26/2027 AD (CVs of the
candidates are attached).

7

x
Vote on disbursing an amount of (1,968,000 riyals) as a reward to
members of the Board of Directors and its committees emanating
from the fiscal year ending in 2023 AD.

8

x
Vote on amending the company’s bylaws in accordance with the new
companies’ bylaws, and rearranging and numbering the bylaws’
articles; To comply with the proposed amendments(attached).

9

x

Vote on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to increase the
company’s capital by granting free shares to shareholders worth
33,700,000 Saudi riyals, according to the following: The nominal
value of the capital before the increase: 337,000,000 Saudi riyals, the
nominal value of the capital after the increase: 370,700,000 Saudi
riyals, the total amount of the capital increase. Money: 33,700,000
Saudi Riyals, Number of shares before the increase: 33,700,000
shares, Number of shares after the increase: 37,070,000 shares,
Percentage of capital increase: 10%, Reasons for increasing capital:
This comes within the company’s objectives to support the capital
base in a way that contributes to enhancing growth plans. future
growth and maximizing total returns to shareholders Number of
shares granted for each share: One share granted for every ten
shares owned. The value and nature of the reserves that will be used
in the capitalization issue: The value of the capital increase will be
financed by capitalizing part of the retained earnings balance in the
amount of (33,700,000) riyals. Eligibility date: If At the extraordinary
general assembly meeting, the company’s shareholders agreed to
increase the capital. Eligibility will go to shareholders who own shares
at the end of trading on the day of the extraordinary general assembly
and who are registered in the company’s shareholder register at the
Edaa Securities Center Company (Depository Center). At the end of
the second trading day following the date of the Extraordinary
General Assembly, details of the method of dealing with fractional
shares: In the event that there are fractional shares, the fractions will
be collected in one wallet for all shareholders and sold at the market
price, then their value will be distributed among the shareholders
entitled to the grant, each according to their share within a period of
no more than Amending Article (7) of the company’s bylaws related
to capital.

10
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Saudi Paper Manufacturing Co.– 25/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Vote on amending the company’s bylaws in accordance with the new
companies’ bylaws, and rearranging and numbering the bylaws’
articles; To comply with the proposed amendments(attached).

9

x

Vote on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to transfer the entire
balance of the statutory reserve in the amount of: (15,340,512) Saudi
riyals as in the financial statements ending on 12/31/2023 AD to the
retained earnings item.

11

x

Vote on delegating the authority of the Ordinary General Assembly to
the Board of Directors with the license stipulated in Paragraph (1) of
Article (27) of the Companies Law for a period of one year from the
date of the General Assembly’s approval or until the end of the
session of the delegated Board of Directors, whichever comes first, in
accordance with the conditions contained in the executive regulations
of the Law. Private companies of listed joint stock companies.

12

x

Vote on appointing the company’s auditor from among the candidates
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee; This is to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for the second,
third and fourth quarters and the audited annual financial statements
from the fiscal year 2024 and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2025
and determine his fees.

13

Saudi Basic Industries Corp.– 29/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xVoting on the auditors' report for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2023.1

x
Review and discussion of the Company’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended 31/12/2023

2

xReview and discussion of the Board of Directors report for the fiscal
year ended 31/12/2023.

3

x

Voting on the appointment of one of the nominated external auditors
as recommended by the Audit Committee, to audit the financial
statements for the coming five (5) years starting from Q2 2024 until
Q1 2029, and determining their fees.

4

xVoting on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors for
the fiscal year ended 31/12/2023.

5

x

Voting of the Board resolution to appoint Dr. Faisal Mohammed Al-
Faqeer as a “Non-Executive Director” in the Board starting from 01
September 2023, to complete the current board term (expiring on 9
Apr 2025) instead of the previous board member (Olivier Thorel).

6

x

Voting on the Board resolution appointing Mr. Ralph Wetzels as a
Non-director (outside) Member of the Audit Committee starting from
28 February 2024 to complete the current Committee term (expiring
on 9 Apr 2025) instead of the previous committee member (Stephan
Santbrink) Non-director (outside).

7

xVoting on amending Nominations and Remuneration Committee
charter.

8

xVoting on amending Audit Committee charter.9

x
Voting on amending Remuneration Policy of Board Members,
Committee Members And Executive Management.

10

xVoting on amending Board Membership Policy.11

x
Voting on the delegation of the Board of Directors' to distribute interim
(quarterly or semi-annual) dividends for the fiscal year 2024

12
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Bank Albilad.– 29/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xTo Vote on the external auditors report for the fiscal year ending on
31 December 2023 after discussed.

1

x

To Vote on appointing the auditors for the Bank from among the
candidates based on the Audit Committee's recommendation. The
appointed auditors shall examine, review and audit the (second, third)
quarter and annual financial statements of the fiscal year 2024, and
the first quarter of the fiscal year 2025, and the determination of the
auditors’ remuneration.

2

x
To Vote on releasing the members of the Board of Directors from
their liabilities for the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2023.

3

x

Voting on the Board of Directors recommendation to increase the
capital by way of issuing bonus shares as follows: (a) Total amount of
increase: SAR 2,500 Million (b) Capital before increase: SAR 10,000
Million. Capital after increase: SAR 12,500 Million. Increase
percentage: 25% (c) Number of shares before increase: 1,000 Million
shares. Number of shares after increase: 1,250 Million shares. (d)
This recommendation aims to enhance the Bank's financial solvency
and retain its resources in operational activities. (e) The capital
increase will be made through the capitalization of SAR 2,500 Million
from the retained earnings by granting one share for every four
shares. (f) In the event of stock fractures, the fractions will be
grouped into a single portfolio for all shareholders and sold at the
market price and then distributed to the shareholders entitled to the
grant each according to their share within 30 days of the date of the
determination of the shares due to each shareholder. (g) In case the
Bank’s shareholders approved in the extraordinary general assembly
on the increase of the capital, the shareholders registered in the
Bank's shareholders' register with the Securities Depository Center
Company (Edaa) by the end of the second trading day following the
date of the Extraordinary General Assembly meeting, will be eligible
for the bonus shares. (h) Voting to amend Article No. 7 relating to
Capital, of the Articles of Association of the Bank. (Attached)

4

xTo Vote on delegating the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a semi-annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2024.

5

x
To Vote on paying an amount of (SAR 3,200,000) as remuneration to
the Board members by (320) thousand riyals for each member for the
fiscal year ending on 31 December 2023.

6

x

To Vote on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to
distribute cash dividends to shareholders for 2023 with SAR (0.5) per
share representing (5%) of the nominal value of the share, with a total
amount of SAR (500) million, noting that the eligibility of dividend shall
be for the bank’s shareholders who own shares at the end of the
trading day of the general assembly meeting and who are registered
in the bank’s shareholders register at Securities Depository Center
Company (Edaa) at the end of the second trading day following the
general assembly meeting noting that the dividends distribution
commences on Thursday 16 May 2024.

7

x

To Vote on delegating to the Board of Directors the authorisation
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article
27 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions set forth in the Implementing
Regulation of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

8

x

To Vote on delegating to the Board of Directors the authorisation
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (2) of Article
27 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions set forth in the Implementing
Regulation of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

9

x
To Vote on the amendment of the remuneration policy for members of
the Board of Directors, its committees, and top management.
(Attached)

10

xVoting to amend Article No. (10) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to share trading. (attached)

11

x
Voting to amend Article No. (13) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to increasing the capital. (attached)

12
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Bank Albilad.– 29/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xVoting to amend Article No. (14) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to decreasing the capital. (attached)

13

xVoting to amend Article No. (16) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to member of the board of directors. (attached)

14

x
Voting to amend Article No. (17) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to termination of membership and replacement. (attached)

15

xVoting to amend Article No. (18) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to powers and specialty of the board of directors. (attached)

16

x
Voting to amend Article No. (19) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to Board Committees and Audit Committee. (attached)

17

xVoting to amend Article No. (20) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to rewards. (attached)

18

x
Voting to amend Article No. (21) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to board chairman, vice chairman, managing director, chief
executive officer and secretary. (attached)

19

xVoting to amend Article No. (23) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to quorum of meetings. (attached)

20

x
Voting to amend Article No. (26) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to the constituent assembly and its terms of reference.
(attached)

21

xVoting to amend Article No. (29) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to general assemblies of shareholders. (attached)

22

x
Voting to amend Article No. (34) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to resolutions. (attached)

23

xVoting to amend Article No. (35) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to agenda. (attached)

24

x
Voting to amend Article No. (36) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to presiding over assemblies. (attached)

25

xVoting to amend Article No. (37) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to appointment. (attached)

26

x
Voting to amend Article No. (38) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to powers and responsibilities of the auditor. (attached)

27

xVoting to amend Article No. (40) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to financial documents. (attached)

28

x
Voting to amend Article No. (44) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to losses of the company. (attached)

29
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Annual Fund Report
Exercise of annual voting rights, issuer’s name and date of AGM

Bank Albilad.– 29/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xVoting to amend Article No. (46) of the bank’s Articles of Association
related to companies law and related regulations. (attached)

30

x
Voting to amend the bank’s Articles of Association to comply with the
new companies law, and rearranging the articles and numbering
them to be compatible with the proposed amendments. (attached)

31

CATRION Catering Holding Co.– 30/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Reviewing the Board of Directors' report for the fiscal year ending on
31st December 2023 and discussing it.

1

x
Reviewing the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on 31st
December 2023 and discussing it.

2

x
Voting on the auditor/s report on the Company’s accounts for the
fiscal year ending on 31st December 2023 and discuss it.

3

xVoting on the discharge of the Board of Directors from the liability for
their activities for the year ending on 31/12/2023.

4

x
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a biannual/quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2024G.

5

xVoting on paying an amount of (SAR 3,909,795) as remuneration to
the Board members for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2023G.

6

x

Voting on the Board of Directors’ resolution to appoint Miss. Joza
Abdulmohsen Al-Rasheed (independent member of the Board of
Directors, starting from the date of her appointment on 05/08/1445,
corresponding to 15/02/2024, to complete the Board’s session until
the end of the current session ending on 01/25/2025, to succeed the
resigned Board Director member Mr. Sami Abdulmohsen Al Hokair
(non-executive). (CV attached)

7

xVoting on the Competing Business Standards and Procedures for
CATRION Catering Holding Co.

8

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the proving inflight
catering and other service to Saudia, with a total amount of SR
955,312,226 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

9

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the providing of catering
and hospitality services for Al Forsan Lounge Terminal (5) in King
Khaled International Airport, with a total amount of SR 46,609,221 for
the year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the
local market (Attached)

10

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the providing of catering
services in Al Forsan Lounge in Egypt International Airport, with a
total amount of SR 8,688,654 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

11

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the lease agreement with
Saudia in (AM1) building in King Khaled International Airport, with a
total amount of SR 11,677,964 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

12
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CATRION Catering Holding Co.– 30/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the catering and
Hospitality services to Saudia for (Welcome) lounge in Prince
Mohammed Bin Abdulaziz International Airport in Madinnah
Monawara, with a total amount of SR 2,054,653 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached)

13

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the design, constructing
and operating Alfursan Domestic lounge at the New King Abdulaziz
International Airport in Jeddah, with a total amount of SR 27,026,589
for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to
the local market (Attached).

14

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the catering Service to
Saudia Reservations Diplomatic Quarter, with a total amount of SR
102,350 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

15

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the catering service to
Saudia Ticketing & Reservation office, Al Murooj, with a total amount
of SR 624,711 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

16

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the IT Service Level
agreement with Saudia, with a total amount of SR 1,415,952 for the
year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the local
market (Attached).

17

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the design, constructing
and operating Alfursan International lounge at the New King Abdulaziz
International Airport in Jeddah, with a total amount of SR 64,222,110
for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to
the local market (Attached).

18

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the MOU with Saudia for
Al Fursan lounge in King Fahd International Airport in Dammam, with
a total amount of SR 8,599,470 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

19

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of
those transactions evolve around the catering services to Saudi
Ground Services Co. in Jeddah, Riyadh, Dammam and Madinnah Al
Monawarah, with a total amount of SR 42,375,007 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

20

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of
those transactions evolve around the transport services agreement
with SGS in King Fahad International Airport in Dammam, with a total
amount of SR 298,043 for the year 2023, without any preferential
conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

21
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CATRION Catering Holding Co.– 30/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of
those transactions evolve around the transport services agreement
with SGS in King Fahad International Airport in Dammam, with a total
amount of SR 298,043 for the year 2023, without any preferential
conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

21

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect, the nature of those
transactions evolve around the laundry services to Saudi Ground
Services Co. in Jeddah, Riyadh, Dammam and Madinnah Al
Monawarah, with a total amount of SR 13,713,961 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

22

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of
those transactions evolve around fuel supply, with a total amount of
SR 4,349,479 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

23

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of
those transactions evolve around the accommodation services to
Saudi Ground Services Co. in King Fahad International Airport in
Dammam, with a total amount of SR 2,553,309 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

24

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Cargo, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr.
Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around the Cargo services from Saudi Airlines
Cargo, with a total amount of SR 1,325,888 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

25

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Cargo, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr.
Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around the catering services to Saudi Airlines
Cargo, with a total amount of SR 5,963,682 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

26
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CATRION Catering Holding Co.– 30/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Real Estate & Development Company SARED, within which
CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa
holds indirect interest, the nature of those transactions evolve around
the Lease agreement with Saudi Airlines Real Estate & Development
Company SARED for commercial shops in Saudi City compound, with
a total amount of SR 57,500 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

27

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Flyadeal Co.,
within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr. Fahad
Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around the Inflight Catering services, Equipment
and Skysales Services to Flyadeal Co, with a total amount of SR
14,395,925 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

28

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Flyadeal Co.,
within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr. Fahad
Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around the inflight catering services for delayed
flights to Flyadeal Co., with a total amount of SR 1,211,896 for the
year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the local
market (Attached).

29

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Al-Salam
Aviation Industry Company, within which CATRION’s Board of
Directors member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest,
the nature of those transactions evolve around the inflight catering
services to Al-Salam Aviation Industry Company, with a total amount
of SR 147,552 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

30

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudia
Aerospace Engineering Industries Company, within which CATRION’s
Board of Directors member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds
indirect, the nature of those transactions evolve around the Catering
services to Saudia Aerospace Engineering Industries Company, with
a total amount of SR 2,438,520 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

31

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Private
Aviation Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the Inflight Catering
services and equipment supply services to Saudi Private Aviation
Company, with a total amount of SR 24,598,028 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

32
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CATRION Catering Holding Co.– 30/04/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Prince Sultan
Aviation Academy, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around the Catering services to
Saudia Aerospace Engineering Industries Company, with a total
amount of SR 12,133 for the year 2023, without any preferential
conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

33

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around Airlines Equipment
agreement, with a total amount of SR 434,029,999 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

34

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around Delayed flights catering
service to Saudi Airlines Est., with a total amount of SR 2,671,972 for
the year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the
local market (Attached).

35

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Establishment “Saudia”, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around Other services rendered
to Saudi Airlines Est., with a total amount of SR 19,023,924 for the
year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the local
market (Attached).

36

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Ground
Services Co., within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member
Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of
those transactions evolve around Lab services to Saudi Ground
Services Co., with a total amount of SR 343,241 for the year 2023,
without any preferential conditions compared to the local market
(Attached).

37

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Logistics
Services Co. SAL, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors
member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the
nature of those transactions evolve around Cargo services, with a
total amount of SR 669,143 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

38

x

Click or tap here to enter text. Voting on transactions and contracts
concluded with Saudi Airlines Real Estate & Development Company
SARED, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr.
Fahad Abdullah Moussa holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around Other services to Saudi Airlines Real
Estate & Development Co. “ SARED”, with a total amount of SR
1,724,230 for the year 2023, without any preferential conditions
compared to the local market (Attached).

39

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Real Estate & Development Company SARED, within which
CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa
holds indirect interest, the nature of those transactions evolve around
lease contract Saudi Airlines Real Estate & Development Co.
“SARED” for Trip a Bite and Skysales shop located at Flight
operation’s new building, with a total amount of SR 195,500 for the
year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the local
market (Attached).

40

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Saudi Airlines
Real Estate & Development Company SARED, within which
CATRION’s Board of Directors member Mr. Fahad Abdullah Moussa
holds indirect interest, the nature of those transactions evolve around
Others lease and service contract Saudi Airlines Real Estate &
Development Co. “SARED”, with a total amount of SR 3,126,477 for
the year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the
local market (Attached).

41
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CATRION Catering Holding Co.– 30/04/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Jeddah Airport
Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Eng.
Raed AL Mudaiheem holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around lease contract for retail shop at the
Aircraft Maintenance Hangar and the Operations Building at King
Abdulaziz International Airport, with a total amount of SR 48,210 for
the year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the
local market (Attached).

42

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Jeddah Airport
Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Eng.
Raed AL Mudaiheem holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around Lease contract for retail shop in
International lounge Terminal (1) at King Abdulaziz International
Airport, with a total amount of SR 368,000 for the year 2023, without
any preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

43

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Jeddah Airport
Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Eng.
Raed AL Mudaiheem holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around Lease agreement with Jeddah Airport Co.
for catering unite (203), with a total amount of SR 28,175,000 for the
year 2023, without any preferential conditions compared to the local
market (Attached).

44

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Jeddah Airport
Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Eng.
Raed AL Mudaiheem holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around Lease contract with Jeddah Airport Co.
for office space at King Abdulaziz International Airport in Jeddah, with
a total amount of SR 434,673 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

45

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Jeddah Airport
Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Eng.
Raed AL Mudaiheem holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around Lease contract with Jeddah Airport Co.
for “Wellcome” Lounges at King Abdulaziz International Airport in
Jeddah, with a total amount of SR 218,458 for the year 2023, without
any preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

46

x

Voting on transactions and contracts concluded with Jeddah Airport
Company, within which CATRION’s Board of Directors member Eng.
Raed AL Mudaiheem holds indirect interest, the nature of those
transactions evolve around Catering services to Jeddah Airport Co.,
with a total amount of SR 70,036 for the year 2023, without any
preferential conditions compared to the local market (Attached).

47
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Elm Co.– 01/05/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xVoting on External Auditors Report for the financial year ending on
31/12/2023 after discussing it. (attached)

1

x
Review and discuss the Company’s financial statements for the fiscal
year ending on 31/12/2023.

2

x
Review and discuss the Board of Directors Report for the fiscal year
ending on 31/12/2023.

3

xVoting on paying an amount of (2,450,000) SAR as remuneration to
the Board members for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2023.

4

x

Voting on the appointment of the external auditors of the company
among the candidates based on the Audit Committee's
recommendation. The appointed auditors shall examine, review, and
audit the (first, second, third quarters and the annual financial
statements of the fiscal year 2024 and the first quarter of 2025 along
with determining their fees.

5

x
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a semiannual / quarterly basis for the financial year
2024.

6

x
Voteing on transferring the balance of statutory reserve amounting to
(174,708,101) SAR as in the financial statements for the year ending
31/12/2023 to retained earnings.

7

x

Voting on delegating to the Board of Directors the authorization
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article
27 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions set forth in the Implementing
Regulation of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

8

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts between the company and
Ministry of Interior in the year 2023, where the Chairman (Mr. Rayed
bin Abdullah bin Ahmad) and the Director (Mr. Abdullah bin
Abdulrahman AL-Rabiah) have indirect interest, which is execution of
Makkah Route project on 06/13/2023 for one year, at an amount of
(69,934,159.95) SAR, this contract was concluded without conditions
or preferential benefits. (attached)

9

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts between the company and
Mobily in the year 2023, where the Director (Dr. Khaled bin Abdulaziz
Alghoneim) has indirect interest, which is a connectivity agreement,
the volume of transactions reached (27,203,633.53) SAR, this
contract and transactions were concluded without conditions or
preferential benefits. (attached)

10

x

Voting on the transactions and contracts between the company and
Tawuniya Insurance Company in the year 2023, where the Directors
(Dr. Khaled bin Abdulaziz Alghoneim) and (Mr. Abdulrahman bin
Mohammed Al-Odan) have indirect interest, which is Health
insurance for the company's employees, vehicles and buildings
insurance for an amount of (82,946,436.26) SAR, these contracts
and transactions were concluded without conditions or preferential
benefits. (attached)

11
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ALDREES.– 05/05/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Review and discussion of the financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 December 2023.

1

x
Review and discussion of the Board of Directors Report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023.

2

x
Voting on the External Auditors report for the financial year ended 31
December 2023, after discussion.

3

x

Voting on the recommendation of the Board of Directors on
Increasing the capital by granting shares as per the following :- -
Capital before increase (750) Millions SR , Capital after increase
(1000) ) Millions SR. - Number of shares before Capital increase (75)
Millions shares, Number of shares after Capital increase (100)
Millions shares. - Percentage of Capital increase 33.33 %., 1 bonus
share for every 3 shares owned. - The reason of increase : To
commensurate with the size of the company's business and future
expansions. - Method of increasing capital : capitalization (250)
Millions SR from the retained earnings for the financial year ended 31
December 2023 of (338,305,451) SR. - The amendment of Article
No. (7) of the Articles of Association of the company related to
capital. - The eligibility of the dividends shall be for shareholders
owning shares by the end of trading day of the Extraordinary
Assembly meeting date and are registered at Depository Center at
the end of the second trading day following the Extraordinary
Assembly Meeting date , In case of bonus shares fractions; the
company will collect it in one portfolio then sell it at market price
within 30 days from finishing allocating the new shares to each
shareholder.

4

x

Voting on the recommendation of the Board of Directors on the
distribution of dividends for the financial year ended 31 December
2023 amounting (75) Millions, SAR (1) per share, The cash dividends
shall be paid to eligible shareholders registered in the Securities. The
eligibility of the dividends shall be for shareholders owning shares by
the end of trading day of the General Assembly meeting date and are
registered at Depository Center Company (The Center) at the end of
the second trading day following the General Assembly Meeting date.
The distribution date will be on Monday 20/05/2024.

5

xVoting on the amendment of the policy for regulating conflicts of
interest (as per the attached).

6

x
Voting on the Clearance of the Chairman and members of the Board
of Directors with respect to the management of the company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

7

xVoting on distribution bonus of SAR (5250000) SR, the total fees of
the BOD for the financial year ended 31 December 2023

8

x

Voting on the selection of External Auditor from among the
candidates nominated by the Audit Committee to review and audit
the annual financial statements of the company for the Q2, Q3 and
annually for the FY2024 and Q1 for the FY2025 and the
corresponding audit fees.

9
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ALDREES.– 05/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the delegating of authority to the Board of Directors by
General Assembly with the authorization contained in Paragraph (1)
of Article Twenty Seven of the Companies Law, for a period of one
year from the date of the General Assembly’s approval or until the
end of the session of the delegated Board of Directors, whichever
comes first, in accordance with the conditions contained in the
Executive Regulations of the Companies Law. For listed joint stock
companies

10

x

Voting on the contracts and businesses that took place between the
company and Aldrees Industrial and Trading Company (ALITCO), of
which two members of its board of directors namely: Abdulmohsen
Mohammed Aldrees and Hussein Abdul Rahman Al-Athel, (indirect
interest) member of the executive committee as they are Board
members and shareholders of Aldrees Industrial and Trading
Company (ALITCO), as related parties and authorizing such
transactions and note that there are no preferential terms in the
contracts and these transactions are purchasing fuel pumps made by
Dresser Wayne (USA/Brazil) for one year at competitive prices
amounting to 18.5 Million riyals during the fiscal year 2023 (attached)
.

11

x

Voting on the contracts and businesses that took place between the
company and Mr. Hamad Mohammed Aldrees - Chairman of the
Board of Directors which has a direct interest as related parties and
authorizing such transactions and note that there are no preferential
terms in the contracts and these transactions is renting Al-Manakh
station with annual rent of (1.250) Million riyals , Contract term is (16)
years, remaining (12) years that transaction during FY2023 cost
1.250 Million (attached)

12

x

Voting on the contracts and business that took place between the
company and Seven Orbit Trading Co. which equally owned by Mr.
Hamad Mohammed Aldrees and Aldrees Industrial and Trading
Company (ALITCO) as Mr. Hamad Mohammed Aldrees is owner as
well and the two members of its board of directors namely:
Abdulmohsen Mohammed Aldrees, and the member of executive
committee Hussein Abdul Rahman Al-Athel – (indirect interest) both
are members and shares owners of Aldrees Industrial and Trading
Company (ALITCO) as related parties and authorizing such
transactions and note that there are no preferential terms in the
contracts and these transactions are renting Al-Nour Alzahran station
in the Eastern Province, total combined annual rent of SAR650,000 -
contract term of (17) years, remaining (12) years , that transaction
during FY2023 cost SAR650,000 (attached) .

13

x

Voting on the contracts and business that took place between the
company and Seven Orbit Trading Co. which equally owned by Mr.
Hamad Mohammed Aldrees and Aldrees Industrial and Trading
Company (ALITCO) as Mr.Hamad Mohammed Aldrees is owner as
well and the two members of its board of directors namely:
Abdulmohsen Mohammed Aldrees and the member of executive
committee Hussein Abdul Rahman Al-Athel (indirect interest) they are
members and shares owners of Aldrees Industrial and Trading
Company (ALITCO) and note that there are no preferential terms in
the contracts and these transactions are renting Al-Nour Alhaditha
station in the Eastern Province, total combined annual rent of
SAR400,000 - contract term of (15) years, remaining (11) years, that
transaction during FY2023 cost SAR400,000 (attached).

14
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Saudi Reinsurance Co.– 12/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Review and discuss the Directors’ Report of the fiscal year ending on
December 31st, 2023.

1

xVoting on the auditors’ report of the fiscal year ending on December
31st, 2023.

2

xReview and discuss the annual financial statements of the fiscal year
ending on December 31st, 2023.

3

x
Voting to absolve the members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal
year ending on December 31st, 2023.

4

x

Voting on the appointment of the Company’s auditors from among the
candidates based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, in
order to examine, review and audit the financial statements for the
second, third quarters and annual of the fiscal year of 2024 and the
first quarter of year 2025, and determine their fees.

5

x

Voting on reinsurance contracts to be concluded between the
company and Probitas Corporate Capital Ltd, in which there is an
indirect interest for the Chairman of the Board of Directors Mr.
Abdulatif Al-Fozan for his membership in the Board of Directors of
Probitas Holding (Bermuda) Ltd, as these are reinsurance contracts
without preferential treatment noting that the value of transactions
during the financial year ending December 31st, 2023 is
127,986,637 Saudi Riyals.

6

x
Voting on disbursing an amount of 2,157,534 Saudi Riyals as a
remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors for the
financial year ending December 31st, 2023

7

Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib Medical Services Group.– 14/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
To review and discuss the Board of Directors’ Report for the fiscal
year ended on 31st December 2023G.

1

x
To review and discuss the financial statements for the fiscal year
ended on 31st December 2023G.

2

x
To vote on the Company’s external auditor report for the fiscal year
ended on 31st December 2023G after discussing it.

3

x
To vote on paying an amount of SAR (1,480,000) as remuneration to
the Members of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year ended on
31st December 2023G.

4

x
To vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends, semi-annually or quarterly, to the shareholders for the
fiscal year 2024G.

5

x
To vote on releasing the Board of Directors Members from their
liability for the fiscal year ended on 31st December 2023G.

6

x

To vote on delegating the Ordinary General Assembly’s authorisation
powers stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article (27) of the Companies
Law to the Board of Directors for a period of one year effective from
the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the
term of the delegated Board, whichever is earlier, pursuant to the
terms mentioned in the Implementing Regulation of the Companies
Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

7

x

To vote on delegating the Ordinary General Assembly’s authorisation
powers stipulated in paragraph (2) of Article (27) of the Companies
Law to the Board of Directors for a period of one year effective from
the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the
term of the delegated Board, whichever is earlier, for the competing
businesses and activities stipulated in the Competing Business
Standards Charter. (attachment)

8

x

To vote on appointing the external auditor for the Company from
among the candidates based on the Audit Committee’s
recommendation to examine, review and audit the second quarter,
third quart and annual financial statements of the fiscal year 2024G,
and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2025G and to determine the
auditor’s fees.

9

x
To vote on amending the company’s Bylaws to conform with the new
companies’ Law, and rearranging and numbering the Bylaws’ articles;
to conform with the proposed amendments. (attachment)

10

x
To vote on transferring the statutory reserve balance of SAR
(1,050,000,000) as in the financial statements for the year ending
December 31, 2023 to retained earnings.

11
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Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib Medical Services Group.– 14/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xTo vote on the amendments to third article of the Company’s Bylaws
in relation to (Company Objectives). (attachment)

12

x
To vote on the amendments to the Audit Committee Charter.
(attachment)

13

x
To vote on the amendments to the Competing Business Standards
Charter. (attachment)

14

x
To vote on the amendments to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Charter. (attachment)

15

xTo vote on the amendments to the Policies, Standards and
procedures for Board Membership Charter. (attachment)

16

xTo vote on the amendments to Board, Committees & Executive
Management Remuneration Policy. (attachment)

17

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between the
Company and Al-Andalus Property Company, in which the Chairman
of the Board Dr. Sulaiman Abdulaziz Al Habib, the Board Member Mr.
Hesham Sulaiman Al Habib and the Board Member Eng. Saleh
Mohammad Al Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the
transactions is a Partnership, design, development, management and
operation contract for Gharb Jeddah Hospital which is equally owned
by both parties with ninety nine (99) years started on 30 October
2014 and to be auto-renewed, and the value of the transactions
during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (41,777,995), and this contract
was made without preferential terms. (attachment)

18

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between the
Company and Namara Specialized for Trading Est, in which the
Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman Abdulaziz Al Habib and the
Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al Habib have an indirect
interest, and the nature of the transactions is a contract for purchase
of electrical tools and supplies for multiple projects for a period of (3)
Three years from the date of signing the agreement, and it will be
renewed automatically annually thereafter. The value of the contract
is linked to purchase orders, and the purchase orders value during
the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (5,228,569) and the value of the
transaction during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (1,098,247) and to
authorize the same for the upcoming year, and this contract was
made without preferential terms. (attachment)

19

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between Shamal Al
Riyadh for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and Masah Construction
Company, in which the Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman
Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al
Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the transactions is
additional purchase orders for Glazing Works, Mechanical, Electrical
and Plumbing (MEP) works for Shamal Al Riyadh Hospital Project and
the purchase orders value during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR
(107,335,638) and the value of the transactions during the fiscal year
2023 was SAR (39,678,134) and to authorize the same for the
upcoming year, and these businesses and contracts have been made
without preferential terms. (attachment)

20

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between Shamal Al
Riyadh for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and Masah Construction
Company, in which the Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman
Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al
Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the transactions is
additional purchase orders for Structural Works for Shamal Al Riyadh
Hospital Project and the purchase orders value during the fiscal year
2023 was SAR (40,492,998) and the value of the transactions during
the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (39,613,380) and to authorize the
same for the upcoming year, and these businesses and contracts
have been made without preferential terms. (attachment)

21

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between Shamal Al
Riyadh for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and Masah Construction
Company, in which the Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman
Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al
Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the transactions is
additional purchase orders for gypsum board works for Shamal Al
Riyadh Hospital Project and the purchase orders value during the
fiscal year 2023 was SAR (9,615,445) and the value of the
transactions during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (4,607,885) and to
authorize the same for the upcoming year, and these businesses and
contracts have been made without preferential terms. (Attachment)

22
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Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib Medical Services Group.– 14/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between Shamal Al
Riyadh for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and Masah Construction
Company, in which the Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman
Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al
Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the transactions is
additional purchase orders for general contracting for Shamal Al
Riyadh Hospital Project and the purchase orders value during the
fiscal year 2023 was SAR (25,950,567) and the value of the
transactions during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (24,751,531) and
to authorize the same for the upcoming year, and these businesses
and contracts have been made without preferential terms.
(Attachment)

23

x

To vote on the the business and contracts concluded between Sehat
Al-Kharj for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and Masah
Construction Company, in which the Chairman of the Board Dr.
Sulaiman Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham
Sulaiman Al Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the
transactions is additional purchase orders for structural works for
Sehat Al-Kharj Hospital and the purchase orders value during the
fiscal year 2023 was SAR (25,001,313) and the value of the
transactions during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (21,450,150) and
to authorize the same for the upcoming year, and these businesses
and contracts have been made without preferential terms.
(Attachment)

24

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between Sehat Al
Hamra for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and Masah Construction
Company, in which the Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman
Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al
Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the transactions is
purchase orders for additional construction of structural works for Al
Hamra hospital in Riyadh city, and the purchase orders value during
the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (9,690,457) and the value of the
transactions during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (9,009,657) and to
authorize the same for the upcoming year, and these businesses and
contracts have been made without preferential terms. (Attachment)

25

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between Al
Marakez Al Awwaliyah for Healthcare Company (Subsidiary) and
Masah Construction Company, in which the Chairman of the Board
Dr. Sulaiman Abdulaziz Al Habib and the Board Member Mr. Hesham
Sulaiman Al Habib have an indirect interest, and the nature of the
transactions is purchase order for additional construction of structural
works for a Medical Center project in Buraidah city and the purchase
order value during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (6,867,151) and the
value of the transactions during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR
(6,867,151) and to authorize the same for the upcoming year, and
these businesses and contracts have been made without preferential
terms. (Attachment)

26

x

To vote on the business and contracts concluded between the
Company and Rawafed Al Seha International Company, in which the
Chairman of the Board Dr. Sulaiman Abdulaziz Al Habib and the
Board Member Mr. Hesham Sulaiman Al Habib have an indirect
interest, and the nature of the transactions is a supply contract based
on purchase orders for medical tools, supplies and devices, and
furniture for the hospitals for a period of one year renewable on an
annual basis thereafter, and the purchase orders value during the
fiscal year 2023 was SAR (92,550,611) and the value of the
transactions during the fiscal year 2023 was SAR (43,823,726) and
this contract was made without preferential terms. (Attachment)

27
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Aldawaa Medical Services Co.– 22/05/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Reviewing of the Board of Directors' report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023, and discussing it

1

xReviewing of The financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023. and discussing it

2

xVoting on the company's auditor's report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023. after discussing it

3

x
Voting on the discharge of the board Directors for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023.

4

x

Voting on the appointment of the Company's auditor from among the
candidates based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for the second, third
and annual quarters of the fiscal year 2024 , and the first quarter of the
fiscal year 2025, and determine his fees.

5

x

Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors to authorize the Ordinary
General Assembly with the license mentioned in paragraph (1) of Article
Twenty-Seven of the Companies Law, for a period of one year from the
date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the
authorized Board of Directors' term, whichever is earlier, in accordance
with the conditions set forth in the Executive Bylaws of the Companies
Law for Listed

6

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and the
Digital Business Systems, which is for the Chairman of the Board of
Directors Samir Mahmoud Abdulhadi and the members of the Board of
Directors Waleed Mohammed Al Jaafari and Mohammed Saad Butti Al-
Farraj Al-Subaie and Hamad Mohammed Al-Huthaili have an indirect
interest which is an information technology support services, technical
support, networking and data center management, the value of
transactions was 27,747,834 SAR for the year of 2023 G. on
commercial terms and without preferential benefits.

7

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and
Meshraf General Contracting Company, which for the members of the
Board of Directors Waleed Mohammed Al Jaafari and Mohammed Saad
Butti Al-Farraj Al-Subaie have an indirect interest which is the
construction of pharmacy branches and the value of transactions was
93,415,712 for the year of 2023 on commercial terms and without
preferential benefits.

8

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and 966
Motors Corporation, in which the member of the Board of Directors /
Mohammed Saad Al-Farraj Al-Subaie has a direct interest, which is
advertising services provided to the company, and the value of
transactions was 4,804,765 SAR for the year 2023 on commercial
terms and without preferential benefits.

9
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National Medical Care Co.– 22/05/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting on External Auditor Report for the fiscal year ended on 31/12/2023
after discuss.

1

x
Voting on the discharge of Board of Directors members for the fiscal year
ended on 31/12/2023.

2

x

Vote on appointing the company’s auditor from among the candidates,
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, in order to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for a period of three
years from the second and third quarters and the annual of the year 2024
and the first, second and third quarters and the annual of the year 2025
and the first, second and third quarters and the annual of the year 2026.
and the first quarter of the year 2027 and determining his fees.

3

x

Voting on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute cash
dividends in the amount of (89,700,000) SAR to shareholders for the
financial period 31/12/2023 (at 2 riyals per share and 20% of the capital),
provided that the eligibility is for shareholders who own shares at the end
of trading on the day of the General Assembly meeting and those
registered in the company’s shareholder register at the Securities
Depository Center Company (Edaa) at the end of the second trading day
following the maturity date, and the dividend distribution date will be
announced later.

4

x
Voting on disbursement of (1,900,000) SAR as remuneration to Board
members for the fiscal year ended on 31/12/2023.

5

x
Voting on transferring Statutory Reserve balance amounted (186,021,947)
SAR as stated in the financial statements for the year ended on
31/12/2023 to the Retained Earnings account.

6

Aldawaa Medical Services Co.– 22/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and The
Zahwa Commercial Company, which for the board member
Mohammed Saad Butti Al-Farraj Al-Subaie and indirect interest, which
is a contract for the supply of products and the value of transactions
was 6,673,689 SAR for the year of 2023 on commercial terms and
without preferential benefits

10

x

Voting on the works and contracts between the company and Kanaf,
the charitable association in which board member Mohammed Saad
Butti Al-Farraj Al-Subaie has an indirect interest, which is a fund-
raising (halalat) of sales through the company's pharmacies and the
value of transactions was 42,728 SAR for the year of 2023 on
commercial terms and without preferential benefits.

11

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and the
Eastern Province Cement Company, which for the members of the
Board of Directors Waleed Mohammed Al Jaafari, Mohammed Saad
Butti Al-Farraj Al-Subaie and Ibrahim Salem Al-Ruwais, have an
indirect interest which is an office lease and service invoices and the
value of transactions was1,267,202 SAR for the year of 2023 on
commercial terms and without preferential benefits

12

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and the
Classic Travel and Tourism Agency, which for board member Waleed
Mohammed Al Jaafari has an indirect interest, which is travel
reservation tickets for the company's employees and the value of
transactions was 27,057,296 SAR for the year 2023 on commercial
terms and without preferential benefits.

13

x

Voting on the business and contracts between the company and
Walaa Cooperative Insurance Company, which for board member
Waleed Mohammed Al Jaafari indirect interest which is the policies of
vehicle insurance, fire insurance and various marine insurance and
the value of transactions was8,876,727 SAR for the year of 2023 on
commercial terms and without preferential benefits

14

x
Voting on the amendment of the remuneration policy of the members
of the Board of Directors, the affiliated committees and the executive
management. attachment

15
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National Medical Care Co.– 22/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Vote on the employee stock program and to authorize the Board of
Directors to determine the terms of this program, including the allocation
price for each share offered to employees if it is for a consideration.

7

x

Voting on the company’s purchase of a number of its shares, up to a
maximum of (160,000) shares, with the aim of allocating them to
company's employees within the framework of the employee stock
program, provided that the purchase is self-financing and authorizing the
Board of Directors to complete the purchase process within a maximum
period of (12) months from the date of the assembly’s decision.
Extraordinary General Assembly, provided that the purchased shares are
kept for a period not exceeding (10) years from the date of approval by the
Extraordinary General Assembly. After the expiry of this period, the
company follows the procedures and controls stipulated in the relevant
laws and regulations. “after approving item 9”

8

Alkhorayef Water and Power Technologies Co.– 23/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Reviewing the Board of Directors’ report for the financial year ending on
December 31, 2023 and discussing it.

1

xVote on the company’s auditor’s report for the financial year ending on
December 31, 2023 after discussing it.

2

xReview the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on December 31,
2023 and discuss them.

3

x

Vote on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to increase the company’s
capital through the distribution of bonus shares to shareholders by
capitalizing 100,000,000 Saudi riyals from retained earnings, according to
the following: - The company’s capital before the increase is two hundred
and fifty million (250,000,000) Saudi riyals, divided into twenty-five million
(25,000,000) shares. - The company's capital after the increase is three
hundred and fifty million (350,000,000) Saudi riyals, divided into thirty-five
million (35,000,000) shares. - The total amount of the increase: (100) one
hundred million Saudi riyals. - Percentage of capital increase: 40%. -
Reason for the increase: Through the capital increase, the company aims to
strengthen the company’s financial position in a way that contributes to
achieving the company’s strategic objectives. - Capital increase method:
The capital will be increased by capitalizing an amount of (100) million riyals
from the retained earnings account, by granting one (1) share in exchange
for (2.5) shares owned. - Eligibility date: If the clause is approved, the
eligibility for the bonus shares will be for the company’s shareholders who
own the shares at the end of the trading day of the company’s extraordinary
general assembly and who are registered in the register of shareholders of
Al Khareef Water and Power Technology Company with the Securities
Depository Center Company (Edaa) at the end of the second trading day
following Date of the extraordinary general assembly. - Treatment of
fractions: In the event that there are fractional shares granted as a result of
a capital increase, the fractions will be collected in one portfolio for all the
company’s shareholders entitled to the fractional shares and sold at the
market price, then their value will be distributed to the shareholders entitled
to the fractional shares, each according to his share, within a period not
exceeding 30 days. From the date of determining the shares owed to each
shareholder. - Amending Article Seven (7) of the company’s bylaws related
to (the company’s capital) (attached). - Amending Article Eight (8) of the
company’s bylaws related to (subscription to shares) (attached).

4

xVoting on amending Article (4) of the company’s bylaws related to
(participation and ownership in companies) (attached).

5

xVoting on amending Article (11) of the company’s bylaws related to (issuing
shares) (attached).

6

x
Vote on amending Article (18) of the company’s bylaws related to (company
management) (attached).

7

x
Voting on amending Article (21) of the company’s bylaws related to (Board
powers) (attached).

8

x
Voting on amending Article (23) of the company’s bylaws related to (the
powers of the president, deputy, managing director, and secretary)
(attached).

9
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Alkhorayef Water and Power Technologies Co.– 23/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Vote on amending Article (42) of the company’s bylaws related to
(committee formation) (attached).

10

xVote on amending Article (50) of the company’s bylaws related to
(dividend distribution) (attached).

11

x

Vote on amending the company’s bylaws in accordance with the new
companies’ bylaws and rearranging the articles of the company’s
bylaws and numbering them to be consistent with the proposed
amendments (attached).

12

xVote on amending the internal governance regulations (attached).13

xVote on amending the Audit Committee bylaws (attached).14

xVote on amending the conflict of interest and business ethics policy
(attached).

15

xVote on amending the disclosure policy (attached).16

xVote on amending the dividend distribution policy (attached).17

xVote on amending the nominations policy (attached).18

xVote on amending the work regulations of the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee (attached).

19

xVote on amending the remuneration policy (attached).20

x

Vote on appointing the company’s auditor from among the candidates
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee; This is to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for the (second
and third) and annual quarters of the fiscal year 2024, and the first
quarter of the fiscal year 2025, and determine his fees.

21

x
Vote on discharging the members of the Board of Directors from their
liabilities for the year ending December 31, 2023

22

x
Vote on disbursing an amount of (962,000) Saudi Riyals as a reward
to members of the Board of Directors for the financial year ending on
December 31, 2023.

23

x

Vote on delegating the authority of the Ordinary General Assembly to
the Board of Directors, with the authorization contained in Paragraph
(1) of Article Twenty-Seven of the Companies Law, for a period of one
year from the date of the General Assembly’s approval or until the
end of the session of the delegated Board of Directors, whichever
comes first, in accordance with the conditions stated in the
Implementing Regulations, Companies Law for listed joint stock
companies.

24

xVote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a semi-annual or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2024.

25

Arabian Internet and Communications Services Co.– 29/05/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xView and discuss the report of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year
ending on 31-12-2023 and discuss it.

1

x
Voting on the company’s Auditor’s Report for the fiscal year ending on 31-
12-2023 after discussing it.

2

x
View and discuss the financial statements for the fiscal year ending on 31-
12-2023.

3

xVoting on discharging the liability of the Board of Directors members for the
fiscal year ending on 31-12-2023.

4

x

Voting on appointing the External Auditors for the Company from among
the candidates based on the Audit Committee's recommendation. The
appointed auditor shall examine, review and audit the second, third quarter
and annual financial statements, of the fiscal year

5

x

Voting on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to distribute cash
dividends with a total amount of SAR 713,997,510 to the shareholders for
the year 2023 at SAR 6 per share equivalent to 60% of the share par value,
where the eligibility will be to the shareholders owning

6

x
Voting on the payment of SAR 4,035,000 as remuneration to the Board of
Directors and committee members for the fiscal year ending on 31-12-
2023.

7
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Bawan Co.– 03/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Reviewing and discussing the Board of Directors' report for the fiscal
year ending on 31/12/2023.

1

xReviewing and discussing the financial statements for the fiscal year
ending on 31/12/2023.

2

xVoting on the auditor's report for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2023
after discussing it.

3

x

Voting on the appointment of an auditor for the company from among
the candidates based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, to examine, review and audit the financial statements for
the Second, third, fourth and annual quarters of the fiscal year 2024
and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2025, and determine his fees
(attached).

4

x
Voting on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors
from liability for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2023.

5

x

Voting on the Board of Directors' resolution regarding the distribution
of the company's profits for the first half and second half of the year
2023, totalling (1.5) Saudi riyals per share, and at a rate of 15% of
the company's paid-up capital, and a total amount of (90,000,000)
ninety million Saudi riyals (attached).

6

x
Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends to shareholders on a semi-annual or quarterly basis for the
fiscal year 2024.

7

x

Voting on authorizing the Board of Directors to authorize the Ordinary
General Assembly with the license mentioned in paragraph (1) of
Article Twenty-Seven of the Companies Law, for a period of one year
from the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of
the session of the authorized Board of Directors, whichever is earlier,
in accordance with the conditions contained in the Executive Bylaws
of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

8

x

Voting on delegating the Board of Directors with the authority of the
Ordinary General Assembly with the license mentioned in paragraph
(2) of Article Twenty-Seven of the Companies Law, for a period of one
year from the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the
end of the session of the authorized Board of Directors, whichever is
earlier, in accordance with the conditions contained in the Executive
Bylaws of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies, for
works and activities in the sectors of Steel, wood, electricity and
plastic.

9

x

Voting on amending the company's articles of association in
accordance with the new Companies Law, and rearranging the
articles of the articles of the system and numbering them to comply
with the proposed amendments (attached).

10

x
Voting on the amendment of the Audit Committee's work regulations
(attached).

11

x
Voting on the amendment of the list of policies, standards and
procedures for membership in the Board (attached).

12

x
Voting on the amendment of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee's regulation (attached).

13

xVoting on the amendment of the remuneration policy (attached).14

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan (non-
executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (executive member),
have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (99,516,899) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

15

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Mr. Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member), have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (119,038,491) Saudi riyals, and these transactions
are based on commercial bases and without any special or
preferential conditions (attached).

16
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x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Mr. Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member), have an indirect interest, which is the purchase of
commercial materials and services, noting that the value of
transactions for the previous year is (2,085,409) Saudi riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

17

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and the Development and Construction Company Ltd.
(buyer), in which the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah
Al-Fozan (non-executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan
(executive member), have an indirect interest, which is the sale and
provision of commercial services, noting that the value of transactions
for the previous year is (12,751,330) Saudi riyals, and these
transactions are based on commercial bases and without any special
or preferential conditions (attached).

18

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company - Bahrain (buyer),
in which the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah Al-
Fozan (non-executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (Executive
Member), have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (3,240,079) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

19

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan (non-
executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (executive member),
have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (2,711,178) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

20

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan (non-
executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (Executive Member),
have an indirect interest, which is the purchase of commercial
materials and services, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (10,200) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

21

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Mr. Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member) have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (2,625,860) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

22

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Mr. Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member), have an indirect interest, which is the purchase of
commercial materials and services, noting that the value of
transactions for the previous year is (1,236,943) Saudi riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

23
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x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company - Bahrain (buyer),
in which the members of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah Al-
Fozan (non-executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (Executive
Member), and Fowzan Holding Company have an indirect interest,
which is the sale and provision of commercial services, noting that
the value of transactions for the previous year is (3,588,875) Saudi
riyals, and these transactions are based on commercial bases and
without any special or preferential conditions (attached).

24

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan (non-
executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (Executive Member),
and Fowzan Holding Company have an indirect interest, which is the
sale and provision of commercial services, noting that the value of
transactions for the previous year is (641,030) Saudi riyals, and these
transactions are based on commercial bases and without any special
or preferential conditions (attached).

25

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan (non-
executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (executive member),
and Fozan Holding Company have an indirect interest, which is the
purchase of commercial materials and services, noting that the value
of transactions for the previous year is (122,756) Saudi riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

26

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Mr. Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member), have an indirect interest, which is the purchase of
commercial materials and services, noting that the value of
transactions for the previous year is (1,159,990) Saudi riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

27

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member) have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the total transaction during the year
2023 amounted to (1,192,313) Saudi riyals, and these transactions
are based on commercial bases and without any special or
preferential conditions (attached).

28

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors Messrs. Abdullah Al-Fozan
(non-executive member) and Fowzan Al-Fozan (executive member)
have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the total transaction during the year
2023 amounted to (1,385,172) Saudi riyals, and these transactions
are based on commercial bases and without any special or
preferential conditions (attached).

29

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company - Bahrain (buyer),
in which the members of the Board of Directors Messrs. Abdullah Al-
Fozan (Non-Executive Member) and Fowzan Al-Fozan (Executive
Member) have an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of
commercial services, noting that the total transaction during the year
2023 amounted to (117,407) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

30
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x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Al-Romantica Company Ltd. (buyer), in which the
Board Member Mr. Faisal Al-Muhaidib (Non-Executive Member) has
an indirect interest, which is the sale and provision of commercial
services, noting that the total transaction during the year 2023
amounted to (215,860) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

31

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Thabat Construction Company Ltd. (buyer), in which
the members of the Board of Directors, Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member), have an indirect interest, which is the sale of commercial
products, noting that the total transaction during the year 2023
amounted to (30,100) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are based
on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

32

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Adwan Chemical Industries Company (buyer), in which
the Board Member Mr. Raed Al-Mazrou (non-executive member) has
an indirect interest, which is the sale of commercial products, noting
that the total transaction during the year 2023 amounted to
(233,369) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are based on
commercial bases and without any special or preferential conditions
(attached).

33

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Madar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors Messrs. Abdullah Al-Fozan
(non-executive member) and Fowzan Al-Fozan (executive member)
have an indirect interest, which is the purchase of commercial
materials and services, noting that the total transaction during the
year 2023 amounted to (2,382,051) Saudi riyals, and these
transactions are based on commercial bases and without any special
or preferential conditions (attached).

34

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Building Materials Company (seller), in which
the members of the Board of Directors Faisal Al-Muhaidib (non-
executive member) and Raed Al-Mudaiheem (non-executive
member) have an indirect interest, which is the purchase of
commercial materials and services, noting that the total transaction
during the year 2023 amounted to (3,948,782) Saudi riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

35

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Al Fozan Hardware Company (seller), in which the
members of the Board of Directors Messrs. Abdullah Al Fozan (non-
executive member) and Fowzan Al Fozan (executive member) have
an indirect interest, which is the purchase of commercial materials
and services, noting that the total transaction during the year 2023
amounted to (54,801) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are based
on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

36

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Masdar Technical Services Company for Industry Ltd.
(seller), in which the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Faisal
Al-Muhaidib (non-executive member) and Mr. Raed Al-Mudaiheem
(non-executive member) have an indirect interest, which is the
purchase of commercial materials and services, noting that the value
of transactions for the previous year is (665,567) Saudi riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

37

x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
company and Ajdan Real Estate Development Company (lessor), in
which the members of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan
(non-executive member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-Fozan (executive
member), have an indirect interest, which is the rent of the head
office of Bawan Company, noting that the value of transactions for the
previous year is (435,455) Saudi riyals, and these transactions are
based on commercial bases and without any special or preferential
conditions (attached).

38
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x

Voting on the business and contracts that will take place between the
Company and Bloom Investment Saudi Arabia (Investment Services
Provider), in which the members of the Board of Directors, Mr.
Abdullah Al-Fozan (Non-Executive Member) and Mr. Fawzan Al-
Fozan (Executive Member), have an indirect interest, which is the
management of an investment portfolio, noting that the value of
transactions for the previous year is (148,915) Saudi Riyals, and
these transactions are based on commercial bases and without any
special or preferential conditions (attached).

39

x

Voting on the banking services that took place between the company
and the Saudi National Bank, in which the Board Member Mr.
Abdullah Al-Ruwais (independent member) has an indirect interest,
which is the provision of banking facilities, noting that the total
transaction limit in the current contract amounted to (795,000,000)
Saudi riyals, and these transactions are based on commercial bases
and without any special or preferential conditions (attached).

40

x

Approval of Bawan's acquisition of the entire ownership interests of
Maali Holding Company in United Electrical Transformers Company
Ltd. and United Company for Stations and Circuit Breakers
Technology (the "two companies"), in which Mr. Abdullah Al-Fozan
(Non-Executive Member) has an indirect interest, as a member of the
Board of Directors in both Bawan Company and Maali Holding, where
the value of the transaction is SAR (20,000,000), provided that this
transaction is made at fair value on a commercial basis without any
preferential terms ( attached).

41

Leejam Sports Co.– 06/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Reviewing the Board of Directors’ Report for the fiscal year ending on
31st December 2023 and discuss it.

1

xReviewing the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ending on 31st
December 2023 and discuss it.

2

x
Voting on the Auditor’s Report on the Company’s accounts for the
fiscal year ending on 31st December 2023 after discussing it.

3

x
Voting on releasing the Board of Directors members from liability for
the fiscal year ending on 31st December 2023.

4

x
Voting on paying an amount of SAR 2,726,000 as remunerations to
the Board Members for the fiscal year ending on 31st December
2023.

5

x

Voting on appointing the auditor for the company from among the
candidates based on the Audit Committee’s recommendation. The
appointed auditor shall examine, review, and audit the second and
third quarters and annual Financial Statements of 2024, and the first
quarter of 2025, and the determination of the Auditor fees.

6

x
Voting on delegating the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends on a biannually or quarterly basis for the fiscal year 2024.

7

x

Voting on delegating to the Board of Directors the authorization
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article
(27) of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the implementation rules of Companies Law for
listed Joint Stock Companies.

8

x
Voting on the amendment of Article (Article No.3) of the Company’s
bylaws relating to (Company’s Activities). (Attached)

9

x

Voting to amend the company’s bylaws, to be in compliance with the
new companies’ Law, and rearranging the articles of the bylaws and
their numbering, be in compliance with the proposed amendments.
(Attached)

10

x

Voting on transferring the entire statutory reserve of the company in
the amount of SAR 135,596,952 as in the Interim Condensed
Consolidated financial statements for the three months period ending
on 31/03/2024 to the retained earnings account.

11
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x

Voting on the Board’s recommendation to distribute cash dividends
amounting to SAR 50,811,860.17 to the shareholders for the first
quarter of the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2024 at SAR 0.97
per share representing 9.7% of the nominal value of the share.
Provided that the entitlement is for shareholders holding the shares
by the end of the trading day of Assembly date, and who are
registered in the Company's Shareholders Registry held with the
Security Depository Center Company (Edaa) at the end of the second
trading day following the entitlement date, the distribution date will be
announced later.

12

xVoting on amending the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Regulations. (Attached)

13

x
Voting on amending Remuneration Policy for Board of Directors, Sub-
Committees and Senior Executives. (Attached)

14

xVoting on amending Audit Committee Regulations. (Attached)15
xVoting on amending Social Responsibility Policy. (Attached)16

x
Voting on amending Competing Business Standards Policy.
(Attached)

17

x
Voting on Criteria and Procedures Policy for Nomination to the Board
of Directors. (Attached)

18

x
Voting on the Employee Share Scheme and delegating the Board to
set out conditions of such scheme, including allocation price for each
share offered to the employees if it was in exchange for fees.

19

x

Voting on the purchase of a number of the company’s shares with a
maximum of 200,000 shares, and to allocate them Long-term
employee incentive program, where the purchase of those shares to
be financed through the Company’s own resources. Further, to
authorize the Board of Directors to complete the purchase within a
period of (12) months from the date of the Extraordinary General
Assembly approval, the purchased shares to be kept no longer than
(7) years from the date of Extraordinary General Assembly approval
and once the period lapses, the company will follow the rules and
procedures stipulated in the relevant laws and regulations. (Attached)
(upon approval of item no. 19).

20

Saudi Automotive Services Co.– 09/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting on the auditor's report for the fiscal year ending on December
31, 2023, after discussing it.

1

x

Voting to appoint the company’s auditor from among the candidates
based on the audit committee’s recommendation, to examine, review
and audit the interim and annual financial statements from the fiscal
year 2024 and the first quarter of 2025, and determine their fees.

2

x
Voting on absolve the members of the Board of Directors from liability
for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2023.

3

x

Voting on the Board of Directors’ decision to appoint Mr. Faisal
Abdullah Ibrahim Aljedaie as a member of the Board of Directors
(independent member) from August 6, 2023, until the end of the
current Board of Directors’ term on June 29, 2024 instead of the
previous Board member, Mr. Sulaiman Bin Abdulaziz Azzabin
(Independent Member). (CV attached)

4

xVote on amending Article (25) of the bylaws relating to Company
Management. (attached)

5

xVote on amending Article (30) of the bylaws relating to Composition
of the Board of Directors. (attached)

6

x
Vote on amending Article (36) of the bylaws relating to Board
Meetings’ Quorum. (attached)

7

x

Voting on the recommendation of the Board of Directors to distribute
(additional) cash dividends to shareholders for the fiscal year ending
on December 31, 2023 by 0.75 riyals per share and a total amount of
45 million riyals, equivalent to 7.5% of the company's capital,
provided that the right to shareholders ownership of shares are by the
end of the trading on the day of the General Assembly and the
restrictions in the company's shareholders' record at The Securities
Depository Center Company (Edaa) at the end of the second trading
day following the date of entitlement, and the date and method of
distribution of profits will be announced later.

8
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x

Vote on the Board of Directors’ recommendation to increase the
capital through bonus shares according to the following: •The nominal
value of the capital before the increase: 600 million riyals. •The
nominal value of the capital after the increase: 700 million riyals. •The
total amount of the capital increase: 100 million riyals. •The number
of shares before the increase: 60 million. •Number of shares after the
increase: 70 million. •Percentage of capital increase: 16.67%.
•Reasons for the increase: The company aims to be compatible with
the company's business size and assets and to support future
expansions. •Number of Shares Granted per Exiting Share: One
share for every six shares. Nature and Value of Reserves Used in the
Capitalization: Using the full amount of the statutory reserve
(83,139,272 SAR) in addition to the amount (16,860,728 SAR) of the
retained earnings balance. •Eligibility Date: Company's shareholders
who own the shares at the end of the day of the Extraordinary
General Assembly and who are registered in the Company's
shareholders register at the Securities Depository Center Company
(Edaa) at the end of the second trading day following the eligibility
date. •Event of fractional shares: if there are any fraction of shares,
they will be collected in one portfolio for all shareholders and sold at
the market price, and then distributed to the eligible shareholders,
each according to their share, within a period not exceeding 30 days
from the date of determining the shares due to each shareholder.
•Amendment of Article (11) of company bylaws, relating to capital
and Article (12) of company bylaws, relating to subscription to
shares.

9

x
Voting to pay a reward to the members of the Board of Directors, with
a total amount of 3,150,000 riyals for the fiscal year 2023.

10

x
Vote to authorize the Board of Directors to distribute interim cash
dividends to shareholders on a semi-annual or quarterly basis for the
fiscal year 2024.

11

x

Voting on the Board of Directors delegating the authority of the
Ordinary General Assembly to the license mentioned in Paragraph (1)
of Article (27) of the Companies Bylaw, for a period of one year from
the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the
session of the authorized Board of Directors, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions mentioned in the controls And the
regulatory procedures issued in implementation of the Companies
Law for listed joint stock companies.

12

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between
SASCO and Nahaz, in which some members of the board of directors
have an indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammad Alhudaithi and
Mr. Sultan Mohammad Alhudaithi, the dealings with the Ustool Alnaql
Company (a subsidiary company) leasing a site from the Nahaz
Company by (annually 763,658 riyals) for one year to use as a
headquarters and a residence for labour, based on non-preferential
terms (according to attach).

13

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between
SASCO and Mulkia Investment Co., in which some members of the
board of directors have an indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim
Mohammed Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr.
Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi, for the purpose of managing an
investment portfolio of (SAR 50) million with Ahli Capital Investment
Company, it ends with a written notice between the two parties,
based on non-preferential terms (according to attach).

14

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between Zaiti
Petroleum Services Co. (subsidiary) and Nahaz Investment Co., in
which some members of the board of directors have an indirect
interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi and Mr. Sultan
Mohammed Alhudaithi, whereby Zaiti Petroleum Services Co. leases
two stations number (1,2) from Nahaz Investment Co. for an annual
cost of (SAR1.4) million and a period of ten years starting from
01/01/2018, subject to renewal, based on non-preferential terms
(according to attach).

15
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OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between Zaiti
Petroleum Services Co. (subsidiary) and Al-Madaen Star Group, in
which some members of the board of directors have an indirect
interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed
Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi,
whereby Zaiti Petroleum Services Co. leases station number (8) from
Al-Madaen Star Group for an annual cost of (SAR 300,000) and a
period of ten years starting from 04/29/2020, based on non-
preferential terms (according to attach).

16

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between Zaiti
Petroleum Services Co. (subsidiary) and Al-Madaen Star Group, in
which some members of the board of directors have an indirect
interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed
Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi,
whereby Zaiti Petroleum Services Co. leases station number (10)
from Al- Madaen Star Group for an annual cost of (SAR 1 million) and
a period of ten years starting from 04/29/2020, based on non-
preferential terms (according to attach).

17

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between Zaiti
Petroleum Services Co. (subsidiary) and Al-Madaen Star Group, in
which some members of the board of directors have an indirect
interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed
Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi,
whereby Zaiti Petroleum Services Co. leases station number (11)
from Al-Madaen Star Group for an annual cost of (SAR 350,000) and
a period of eight years starting from 01/05/2020, based on non-
preferential terms (according to attach).

18

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed with Nahaz
Investment Co., in which some members of the board of directors
have an indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi and
Mr. Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi, whereby Nahaz Investment Co.
enters into a contract to purchase fuel for one year, noting that the
total contract value amounted to (SAR 141,334) in 2023, on non-
preferential terms (according to attach).

19

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed with Al-
Madaen Star Group, in which some members of the board of
directors have an indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed
Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan
Mohammed Alhudaithi, whereby Al-Madaen Star Group enters into a
contract to purchase fuel for one year, noting that the total contract
value for2023 amounted to (SAR 290,935) on non-preferential
terms(according to attach).

20

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed with Zawaya
Real Estate Co., in which some members of the board of directors
have an indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi, Mr.
Majed Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi,
whereby Zawaya Real Estate Co. enters into a contract to purchase
fuel for one year, noting that the total contract value for 2023
amounted to (SAR 18,325) on non-preferential terms (according to
attach).

21

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed with Fungate
Co., in which some members of the board of directors have an
indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed
Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan Mohammed Alhudaithi,
whereby Fungate Co. enters into a contract to purchase fuel for one
year, noting that the total contract value for 2023 amounted to (SAR
42,068) on non-preferential terms (according to attach).

22

x

Voting of business deals and contracts to be executed between
company and Fungate Co., in which some members of the board of
directors have an indirect interest in it, Mr. Ibrahim Mohammed
Alhudaithi, Mr. Majed Mohammed Al-Othman and Mr. Sultan
Mohammed Alhudaithi, whereby Fungate Co. leases residential
rooms within station number (2) for one year, noting that the total
contract value for these deals amounted to (SAR 50 thousand) in
2023, on non-preferential terms (according to attach).

23
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Saudi Automotive Services Co.– 09/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting for election of the Board members from among the candidates
for the next term (14) commencing from 30-06-2024 for a term of
Four years ending on 29.06.2028 (Candidates' CVs attached) Note
that if the seventh item on the agenda regarding the Board of
Directors’ recommendation to amend Article Twenty-Five of the
company’s bylaws is approved, only (7) members will be elected
including at least (3) independent members.

24

The Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 23/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Review and discuss the Board of Directors' report for the fiscal year
ending on 31/12/2023

1

x
Review and discuss the Financial Statements for the fiscal year
ending on 31/12/2023.

2

x
Voting on the company’s External auditors report for the fiscal year
ending on 31/12/2023 after discussing it.

3

x

Voting on the Board’s recommendations to distribute cash dividends
amounting to (SAR 150,000,000) to the shareholders for financial
period of (31/12/2023 G), (at (SR 1) per share representing (10%) of
the share par value), provided that the eligibility is for the
shareholders who own shares at the end of trading on the day of the
General Assembly convening and who are registered in the
company’s shareholder register with the Securities Depository Center
Company (Depository Center) at the end of the second trading day
following the maturity date. The date of dividend distribution will be
announced later.

4

x
Voting on the payment of (SAR 5,905,000) as remuneration to the
Board members for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2023.

5

x
Voting on discharging the Members of the Board members from any
liabilities for the fiscal year 2023.

6

x

Voting on the appointment of the External Auditors for the Company’s
from the nominees, and determine their fees based on the Audit
Committee (AC) recommendation to the Board of Directors in this
regards, to review and audit the Company’s interim Financial
Statements for the second, third quarter and annual financial
statements of the fiscal year 2024, and the first quarter of the fiscal
year 2025.)Attached AC Recommendation).

7

x

Voting on the Tawuniya's purchase of its own shares, with maximum
of (147,435) shares, to be allocated to the company's employees
within the employee shares program. The purchase of these shares
to be financed through the company’s fund. Further to authorizes the
Board (or whomever it delegates) to complete the purchase within
(12 months) from the date of the extraordinary general assembly's
approval, The company will keep the purchased shares for a period
not exceeding (10) years from the date of approval of the
Extraordinary General Assembly as a maximum until they are
allocated to the eligible employees Once the said period lapses, the
Company will follow the rules and procedures stipulated in the
relevant laws and regulations. (Attached)

8

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Entertainment Ventures Company which Board Chairman Mr.
Abdulaziz Alnwaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies, Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to 26,587,039 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

9

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Tahakom Investment which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser
has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies.
Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 107,466 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

10
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The Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 23/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Tahakom TCC which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser has
an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note
that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 11,223,583 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

11

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Alpha
Star Aviation Service which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser
has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies.
Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 918,279 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

12

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Infiniti
Company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser has an
indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
94,847 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

13

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
National Water Company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz
Alnwaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2023 amounted to 202,266 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

14

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Armour Security Industrial Manufactory which Board Chairman Mr.
Abdulaziz Alnwaiser has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to 109,522 SAR without any preferential
treatment. (Attached)

15

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and SVTS
which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser has an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
184,365 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

16

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Kafaat
Business Solutions which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser
has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies.
Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 80,008,755 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

17

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Sky
Prime which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser has an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
(420,512) SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

18

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Railways company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser
has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies.
Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 24,187,695 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

19

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Mobily
which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser and the Board
member Dr. Khalid AlGhunaim have an indirect interest. The business
related to insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of
the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 64,024,677 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

20

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Investment Bank which Board member Mr. Abdulaziz Alkhamis has
an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note
that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 49,498,677 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

21
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The Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 23/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and United
Insurance Company which Board Chairman Mr. Abdulaziz Alnwaiser,
Board member Mr. Abdulaziz Alkhamis & former CEO Mr. Abdulaziz
Alboug & Properties and Casualties Sector Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Sultan AlKhomshi have an indirect interest. The business related
to insurance policies fees. Note that transactions up to the end of the
fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 1,556,497 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

22

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
National Bank (Al-Ahli) which former Board member Mr. Abdul
Rehman Al Odan has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to (161,469) SAR without any preferential
treatment. (Attached)

23

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Exchange Company “Tadawul” which former Board member Mr.
Abdulrahman AlOdan has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to 10,920,737 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

24

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Exchange Company “Tadawul” which former Board member Mr.
Abdulrahman AlOdan has an indirect interest. The business related to
Service agreements. Note that transactions up to the end of the
fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 1,436,155 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

25

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Abdullah Nasser AlOdan Company which former Board member Mr.
Abdulrahman AlOdan has an indirect interest. The business related to
Service agreements. Note that transactions up to the end of the
fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to (6,539) SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

26

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Elm
Company which Board member Dr. Khalid AlGhunaim has an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
78,795,663 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

27

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Hawas Company for Communication & IT which Board member Dr.
Khalid AlGhunaim has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to (51,074) SAR without any preferential
treatment. (Attached)

28

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Bayan
Credit Bureau Company which Board member Dr. Khalid AlGhunaim
has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies.
Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 1,309,245SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

29

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Obeikan company which Board member Dr. Khalid AlGhunaim has
an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note
that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 3,484,341 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

30

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
General Organization for Social Insurance which Board member Ms.
Hessa Al Sheikh has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to 37,536,055 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (Attached)

31

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Hassana Investment Company which Board members Ms. Hessa Al
Sheikh, Mr. Salman Al Fares and Dr. Paul Sweeting have an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
8,230,590 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

32
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The Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 23/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Waseel Company which former CEO Mr. Abdulaziz Alboug, CEO Mr.
Othman Al Kassabi and former CFO Dr. Ammr Kurdi have an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
1,496,697 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

33

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Waseel Company which former CEO Mr. Abdulaziz Alboug, CEO Mr.
Othman Al Kassabi and former CFO Dr. Ammr Kurdi have an indirect
interest. The business related to Service Agreement. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
9,682,963 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

34

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Bonyan Company which former CEO Mr. Abdulaziz Alboug, and
former CFO Dr. Ammr Kurdi have an indirect interest. The business
related to insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of
the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 244,278 SAR without any
preferential treatment. (attached)

35

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Najm
which former CEO Mr. Abdulaziz Alboug has an indirect interest. The
business related to Service agreement. Note that transactions up to
the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 110,788,399 SAR
without any preferential treatment. (attached)

36

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and STC
Group which former CFO Dr. Ammr Kurdi has an indirect interest.
The business related to insurance policies. Note that transactions up
to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 257,032,686
SAR without any preferential treatment. (attached)

37

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Banque Saudi Fransi which former Board members Mr. Homoud
Altuwayjiri has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2023 amounted to 501,681 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

38

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Almajd Alarabiah Trading Company Ltd which Board member Mr.
Salman AlFares has an indirect interest. The business related to
insurance policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth
quarter of 2023 amounted to 570,204 SAR without any preferential
treatment. (Attached)

39

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
AlMalath Alarabia Ltd which Board member Mr. Salman AlFares has
an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note
that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 453,392 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

40

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Raidah Investment Company which Board member Mr. Salman
AlFares has an indirect interest. The business related to insurance
policies. Note that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of
2023 amounted to 3,400,171 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

41

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Health
Holding Company which Board member Mr. Nasser AlHagbani has
an indirect interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note
that transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023
amounted to 7,531,160 SAR without any preferential treatment.
(Attached)

42

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Saudi
Automobile and Motorcycle Federation which Strategy Sector Chief
Executive Officer Mr. Feher AlSharif has an indirect interest. The
business related to insurance policies. Note that transactions up to
the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 14,110 SAR
without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

43
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The Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 23/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Tree
which Chief Executive Officer Mr. Othman Alkassabi has an indirect
interest. The business related to insurance policies. Note that
transactions up to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to
723,118 SAR without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

44

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and Vision
Bank which CEO Mr. Othman Alkassabi has an indirect interest. The
business related to insurance policies. Note that transactions up to
the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 81,496 SAR
without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

45

x

Voting on the business relationship between the Company and
Meena which CEO Mr. Othman Alkassabi has an indirect interest.
The business related to insurance policies. Note that transactions up
to the end of the fourth quarter of 2023 amounted to 229,334 SAR
without any preferential treatment. (Attached)

46

x

Voting on delegating to the Board of Directors the authorization
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article
27 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions set forth in the Implementing
Regulation of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies

47

x
Voting on amending the Company's bylaws to comply with the new
Companies Law. (Attached)

48

xVoting on amending the (Corporate Governance Manual). (Attached)49

Al-Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 26/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting on the auditors' report for the financial year ended on
31/12/2023 after discussing it.

1

xVoting on the discharge of the members of the Board of Directors
from liability for the financial year ended in 31/12/2023.

2

x

Voting for the election of board members from among the candidates
for the upcoming term, which starts on (26-06-2024), and during the
regular general assembly meeting on the same date, with a duration
of three years ending on 25/06/2027. (CVs of candidates are
attached).

3

x
Voting on the remuneration of the Board of Directors for their
membership for a total amount of (SR 2,585,000) for the financial
year ending in 31/12/2023.

4

x

Voting on the appointment of auditors for the company among the
candidates based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, in
order to examine, review, and audit the financial statements for the
second and third quarters and the annual financial year of 2024, as
well as the first quarter of the financial year 2025, and determine their
fees.

5

x

Voting on authorization by the Board of Directors for the General
Assembly's ordinary authority to grant the license specified in
paragraph (1) of Article 27, for a period of one year from the date of
approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the term of the
authorized Board of Directors, whichever comes first, in accordance
with the conditions set forth in the executive regulations of the
Companies Law for listed joint-stock companies

6

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Al Rajhi
Banking Investment Company (Al Rajhi Bank), in which the Chairman
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, Mr.
Waleed bin Abdullah Al-Muqbel, the Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and the Board Member Mr.
Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an indirect interest, which are
insurance policies, for a period of one year. Where the value of
transactions during the year 2023 (679,227 thousand riyals) without
any preferential terms or advantages

7
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Al-Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 26/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Al Rajhi
Capital Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, a member of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah Al-Moqbel, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and a member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Nayef bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an
indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the value of
transactions during the year 2023 reached (11.604) thousand riyals
without any preferential terms or advantages.

8

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Al Rajhi
Capital Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, a member of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Waleed bin Abdullah Al-Moqbel, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and a member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an
indirect interest in them, which are revenues and fees for managing
investment funds, as the value of transactions during the year 2023
amounted to (3,386) thousand riyals without any preferential terms or
advantages.

9

x

Voting on contracts and works between the company and Forsan
Travel and Tourism Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and the
member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi,
have an indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the
value of transactions during the year 2023 (1,501 thousand riyals
without any preferential terms or advantages.

10

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Forsan
Travel and Tourism Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and a member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an
indirect interest in them, which are travel services for the company's
employees, as the value of transactions during the year 2023
reached (3,253) thousand riyals without any preferential terms or
advantages

11

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Al-
Farabi Petrochemical Company, in which the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and a member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an
indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the value of
transactions during the year 2023 amounted to (26,150) thousand
riyals without any preferential terms or advantages

12

x

Voting on contracts and works between the company and Marami
Food Industries Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and the
member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi,
have an indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the
value of transactions during the year 2023 reached (204) thousand
riyals without any preferential terms or advantages.

13

x

Voting on contracts and works between the company and the Digital
Journey Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and the member of the
Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an indirect
interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the value of
transactions during the year 2023 reached (67) thousand riyals
without any preferential terms or advantages

14

x

Voting on contracts and works between the company and Saraya Al-
Awtan Real Estate Development Company, in which the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi,
and a member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-
Rajhi, have an indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies,
as the value of transactions during the year 2023 amounted to (51)
thousand riyals without any preferential terms or advantages

15
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Al-Rajhi Company for Cooperative Insurance.– 26/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Takatof
Holding Group Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and a member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an
indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the value of
transactions during the year 2023 reached (231) thousand riyals
without any preferential terms or advantages

16

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Takatof
Holding Group Company, in which the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, and a member
of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi, have an
indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies, as the value of
transactions during the year 2023 reached (231) thousand riyals
without any preferential terms or advantages

17

x

Voting on contracts and business between the company and Jeddah
Legacy Real Estate Development Company, in which the Chairman of
the Board of Directors, Mr. Abdullah bin Sulaiman Al-Rajhi, the Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Saud bin Abdullah Al-Rajhi,
and the member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Naif bin Abdullah Al-
Rajhi, have an indirect interest in them, which are insurance policies,
as the value of transactions during the year 2023 reached (35)
thousand riyals without any preferential terms or advantages.

18

The Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Co.– 27/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Review and discuss the Board of Directors' report for the fiscal year
ending on 31/12/2023G, after discussing it.

1

x
Review and discuss the financial statements for the fiscal year ending
on 31/12/2023G. after discussing it.

2

xVoting on the auditor's report for the fiscal year that ending on
31/12/2023G. after discussing it.

3

x

Voting on the appointment of the External Auditors for the Company
among the candidates based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee; This is to examine, review and audit the Company’s
interim financial statements for the (second, third and fourth quarters)
and the annual financial statements of the fiscal year 2024G, and the
first quarter of fiscal year 2025G and determining their fees.

4

x
Voting on acquittance of the board members for the fiscal year ending
31/12/2023G.

5

x
Voting on the payment of SAR (1,628,000) as remuneration to the
Board members for the fiscal year ending 31/12/2023G.

6

x

Voting on the authorization of the General Assembly's to the board of
directors by delegating the authorization contained in article 27,
paragraph (1) of the Companies' Law, for a period of one year from
the date of approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
authorized board of directors' period, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions provided for in the Listed companies'
implementing regulations.

7

x

Voting on business and contracts between the Company and The
Saudi Investment Bank (SAIB), in which the Board Members Ms.
Monirah AlSwaydani and Mr. Abdulrahman AlRawaf have an indirect
interest. The transactions consisting of an insurance policy of SAR
4,966 thousand, claims incurred of SAR (77) thousand, and
outstanding claims of SAR 1,529 thousand, that is without any
preferential conditions.

8

x

Voting on business and contracts between the Company and
Alistithmar Capital, subsidiary of SAIB - founding shareholder, in
which the Board Chairman Mr. Rakan Abunayyan and the Board
Members Ms. Monirah AlSwaydani and Mr. Abdulrahman AlRawaf
have an indirect interest. The transactions consisted of an insurance
policy of SR 11 thousand, that is without any preferential conditions.

9

x

Voting on business and contracts between the Company and Waseel
Company - an associate, in which Mr. Umar AlMahmoud, CEO and
Mr. Sohail Hayyan, CIO have an indirect interest, as they are
representing Medgulf in Waseel’s Board of Directors. The
transactions are related to claims management fees of SAR 7,031
thousand, that is without any preferential conditions.

10
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Co.– 27/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on business and contracts between the Company and
Abunayyan Trading Company, in which the Board Chairman Mr.
Rakan Abunayyan has an indirect interest. The transactions are
related to an insurance policy of SAR 3 thousand, that is without any
preferential conditions.

11

x

Voting on business and contracts between the Company and Saudi
Tambin Co. Ltd, in which the Board Chairman Mr. Rakan Abunayyan
has an indirect interest. The transactions are related to an insurance
policy of SAR 31 thousand, that is without any preferential conditions.

12

Middle East Paper Co.– 27/06/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

xVote on the auditor’s report for the fiscal year ending on 31/12/2023
after discussing it

1

x

Vote on appointing the company’s auditor from among the candidates
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, in order to
examine, review and audit the financial statements for the second,
third and annual quarters of the fiscal year 2024 and the first quarter
of the fiscal year 2025 and determine his fees.

2

x

Vote on delegating the authority of the Ordinary General Assembly to
the Board of Directors with the license contained in Paragraph (1) of
Article Twenty-Seven of the Companies Law, for a period of one year
from the date of the General Assembly’s approval or until the end of
the session of the delegated Board of Directors, whichever is earlier,
in accordance with the conditions stated in the regulations. Executive
of the corporate system for listed joint stock companies.

3

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the
company and the Arabian Maize Company for industry, (formerly Al-
Masirah Company for Investment and Industrial Development), in
which the former member of the company’s Board of Directors, Mr.
Abdullah Abdul Rahman Al Muammar, has an indirect interest, which
is the purchase of cornstarch in the amount of 25,126,617. riyals in
the year 2023, which was done without preferential conditions

4

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the
company and the United Mining Company, in which the former
member of the Board of Directors, Mr. Emad Abdul Kader Al
Muhaidib, has an indirect interest, which is the purchase of the
company’s products of gypsum board paper rolls for an amount of
5,411,936 riyals in the year 2023 , which was completed without
Preferential terms

5

x

Voting on the business and contracts concluded between the
company and the Industrial Cities Development and Operation
Company, in which the former member of the Board of Directors, Mr.
Imad Abdul Qader Al-Muhaidib, has an indirect interest, which is the
supply of water to meet the company’s needs from among the
approved suppliers in the amount of 6,322,318 riyals in the year
2023 . Which was done without preferential conditions

6

National Medical Care Co.– 18/09/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Vote on the amendment of the Remuneration Policy for Board, its
Committees and Executive Management.

1

x

Approve CARE to acquire 100% from AL Salam Health Medical
Hospital subsidiary the Saudi Medical Care Group, in which the
members of the Board of Directors Mr. Saad Al-Fadly is the CEO of
Hassana Investment Company Investment Director of the General
Organization for Social Insurance (GOSI), owner of the Saudi Medical
Care Group. and Mr. Ahmed Al-Qahtani is a member of the Board of
Directors of the National Medical Care Company (Buyer) and the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Medical Care Group
(Seller) , and Mr. Faraj Al-Qabani is a member of the Board of
Directors of the National Medical Care Company (Buyer) and the
Acting CEO of the Saudi Medical Care Group (Seller) has an indirect
interest in it , The value of the transaction 44,000,000 Saudi riyals,
the transaction is being conducted at fair value and on general
commercial terms executed without any preferential treatment.

2
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Al Yamamah Steel Industries Co.– 30/09/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting on amending the company's bylaws to comply with the new
companies law , and rearranging and numbering the articles of the
bylaws to align with the proposed amendment.

1

xVoting on amending the Audit Committee regulation2

x
Voting on amending the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
regulation.

3

x
Voting on amending the standards and regulations for licensing the
competition of Board members for the Company's business.

4

x
Voting on amending the policy for the remuneration of the Board of
Directors, its committees and the executive Management

5

x

Voting on transferring the balance of the statutory reserve amounting
to (29,198,060) Saudi riyals as in the annual financial statements
ending on 09/30/2023 to the balance of retained earnings amounting
to (47,487,010) Saudi riyals as in the preliminary financial statements
for the period ending on 06/30/2024 .

6

Elm Co.– 04/11/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x
Voting on the election of the Board members among the candidates
for the next term, which starts from 25/11/2024 and lasts for four
years, ending on 24/11/2028. (attached resumes of candidates).

1

x

Voting on delegating the elected Board of Directors the authorization
powers of the General Assembly stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article
27 of the Companies Law, for a period of one year starting from the
date of the approval by the General Assembly or until the end of the
delegated Board of Directors’ term, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions outlined in the Implementing
Regulation of the Companies Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

2

Saudi Telecom Co.– 06/11/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on appointing the auditor for the company from the selected
candidates based on the Audit Committee’s recommendation. The
appointed auditor shall examine, review and audit the (first, second
and third) quarters and annual financial statements of the fiscal year
2025, (first, second and third) quarters and annual financial
statements of the fiscal year 2026, (first, second and third) quarters
and annual financial statements of the fiscal year 2027, and (first)
quarter of 2028. In addition to, the determination of the auditor’s
remuneration.

1

x
Voting on stc dividends policy for the next three years starting from
the dividends distribution of the fourth quarter of 2024 until the third
quarter of 2027.(attached)

2

Etihad Etisalat Co.– 28/11/2024
Alpha Capital’s Vote

Subject of the Vote
OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

To vote on electing members of the Board of Directors from among
the candidates for the upcoming 4-year term, commencing on 01
December 2024, and concluding on 30 November 2028. It is
important to note that if the voting results do not allow the company
to fulfill the minimum independent member requirement as per
regulatory standards, non-independent members will be substituted
with independent members, prioritized by the number of votes each
candidate receives. (Resumes attached).

1

x

To vote on authorizing the elected Board of Directors with the powers
of the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting as stipulated in paragraph
(1) of Article 27 of the Companies Law, for a maximum of one year
from the date of approval by the General Assembly, or until the end of
the term of the delegated board of directors, whichever is earlier, in
accordance with the conditions contained in the Regulatory Rules and
Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law relating to Listed
Joint Stock Companies.

2
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Electrical Industries Co.– 04/12/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on the election of the board members from among the
candidates for the next term starting from 9th December 2024, for a
period of four years, ending on 8th of December 2028. (CVs of the
candidates attached).

1

x
Voting on the dividends distribution policy for the next three years,
starting from the second half of year2024 and ending on the first half
of year2027. (attached)

2

Dr. Sulaiman Al Habib Medical Services Group.– 04/12/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

To vote on election of members of the Board of Directors from among
the candidates for the upcoming term, which will commence on
December 10, 2024, and will last for four years until December 9,
2028. (Attached are the candidates' resumes)

1

x

To vote on appointing the external auditor for the Company from
among the candidates based on the Audit Committee’s
recommendation to examine, review and audit the second quarter,
third quart and annual financial statements of the fiscal year 2025G,
and the first quarter of the fiscal year 2026G and to determine the
auditor’s fees.

2

x
To vote on authorizing the Board of Directors to distribute interim
dividends, semi-annually or quarterly, to the shareholders for the
fiscal year 2025G.

3

x

To vote on delegating the Ordinary General Assembly’s authorisation
powers stipulated in paragraph (1) of Article (27) of the Companies
Law to the Board of Directors for a period of one year effective from
the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the
term of the delegated Board, whichever is earlier, pursuant to the
terms mentioned in the Implementing Regulation of the Companies
Law for Listed Joint Stock Companies.

4

x

To vote on delegating the Ordinary General Assembly’s authorisation
powers stipulated in paragraph (2) of Article (27) of the Companies
Law to the Board of Directors for a period of one year effective from
the date of approval of the General Assembly or until the end of the
term of the delegated Board, whichever is earlier, for the competing
businesses and activities stipulated in the Competing Business
Standards Charter. (attachment)

5
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Saudi Arabian Mining Co.– 11/12/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Voting on increasing Ma'aden's share capital from thirty six billion nine
hundred seventeen million seven hundred thirty four thousand and
three hundred and eighty Saudi Riyals (SAR 36,917,734,380) to thirty
eight billion twenty seven million eight hundred fifty eight thousand
and seven hundred and ten Saudi Riyals (SAR 38,027,858,710),
which represents a (3.01%) increase in the current share capital of
Ma'aden, and increasing the number of Ma’aden’s shares from three
billion six hundred ninety one million seven hundred seventy three
thousand and four hundred and thirty eight (3,691,773,438) ordinary
shares to three billion eight hundred two million seven hundred eighty
five thousand and eight hundred and seventy one (3,802,785,871)
ordinary shares for the purpose of acquiring 100% of the shares
owned by Mosaic Phosphates B.V. (in addition to Mosaic Company's
Marketing Rights in its capacity as guarantor) in Ma'aden Wa'ad Al
Shamal Phosphate Company and issuing one hundred eleven million
twelve thousand and four hundred and thirty three (111,012,433)
new ordinary shares, with nominal value of SAR 10 per share (the
"New Shares"), in Ma’aden to Mosaic Netherlands Holding Company
(as the designated recipient of the New Shares) through Ma'aden's
share capital increase, which represent (0.526) share in Ma'aden for
every one (1) share in MWSPC, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Share Purchase and Subscription Agreement
entered into between Ma’aden, Mosaic Phosphates and Mosaic
Company on 20/10/1445H (corresponding to 29/04/2024G) (the
“Transaction”) as well as to vote on other matters related to the
Transaction, as per the below: -Provisions of the Share Purchase and
Subscription Agreement entered into between Ma’aden, Mosaic
Phosphates and Mosaic Company on 20/10/1445H (corresponding
to 29/04/2024G); -increasing Ma’aden’s share capital from thirty six
billion nine hundred seventeen million seven hundred thirty four
thousand and three hundred and eighty Saudi Riyals (SAR
36,917,734,380) to thirty eight billion twenty seven million eight
hundred fifty eight thousand and seven hundred and ten Saudi Riyals
(SAR 38,027,858,710) in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Share Purchase and Subscription Agreement; this increase
shall be effective on the date of Transaction completion as per the
Companies Law and the Share Purchase and Subscription
Agreement; -Amendment of article seven (7) of the company's bylaws
related to Share Capital and Subscription in Company Shares.
(attached) -authorization of the board of directors of Ma'aden, or any
person so authorized by the board of directors, to adopt any
resolution or take any action as may be necessary to implement this
resolution

1

x

Vote on the transactions and contracts that will be concluded
between Ma’aden and the Saudi Basic Industries Corporation
(SABIC), in which Dr. Mohammed Al-Qahtani has an indirect interest
in his capacity as a director in Ma'aden and SABIC, being the Share
Purchase agreement to acquire the entire shares of SABIC Industrial
Investments Company in Aluminum Bahrain (“Alba”) with a range of
(3,623,522,555) three billion six hundred twenty-three million five
hundred twenty-five thousand five hundred fifty-five Saudi Riyals to
(3,974,186,028) three billion nine hundred seventy-four million one
hundred eighty-six thousand twenty-eight Saudi Riyals without
preferential terms.

2

x

Vote on appointing the Company’s auditor from among the
candidates based on the Audit Committee's recommendation; in
order to audit the financial statements for the first, second, third
quarters and annual of the fiscal year 2025G, 2026G and 2027G and
determine the fees.

3

x
Vote on Board of Directors Nomination Policy, Standards and
Procedures.

4

xVote on Standards & Controls for Competing Businesses5
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Saudi Reinsurance Co.– 24/12/2024

Alpha Capital’s Vote
Subject of the Vote

OtherAbstainDisagreeAgree

x

Vote on the recommendation of the Company's board of directors to
increase its capital by issuing 26,730,000 new ordinary shares with
suspension of pre-emptive rights as follows: a. Increasing the share
capital from 891,000,000 Saudi Riyals divided into 89,100,000
ordinary shares of equal value, to 1,158,300,000 Saudi Riyals divided
into 115,830,000 ordinary shares of equal value with the suspension
of pre-emptive rights, by way of issuing 26,730,000 new ordinary
shares (representing 30% of the Company’s current capital) with a
nominal value of 10 Saudi riyals per share, at an offer price of 16
Saudi Riyals per share (the “New Shares”) with a total subscription
amount of 427,680,000 Saudi Riyals. The New Shares will be fully
subscribed to by the Public Investment Fund (“PIF”), so that PIF's
ownership in the share capital of the Company will be 23.08% after
the capital increase. b. PIF's subscription right shall commence on
the date of the extraordinary general assembly meeting that resolves
to increase the capital by offering shares while suspending pre-
emptive right. c. Amending Article 8 of the Company’s bylaws related
to the capital increase

1

x
Vote on the amendment of the article (15) of the Company’s bylaws
related to the company's management

2

xVote on the amendment of article (11) of the Company’s bylaws
related to the Company's issuance of shares

3

xVote on the amendment of the article (18) of the Company's bylaws
related to the board of directors’ powers

4

x
Vote on the amendment of the article (45) of the Company's bylaws
related to Zakat and Reserves

5

x
Vote on the amendments of Company's bylaws to comply with the
new Companies Law, and rearranging the articles of the bylaws and
their numbering, to align with the proposed amendments.

6

xVote on the amendment of the Corporate Governance Policy7

xVote on Business Competition Standards8

x

Vote on the appointment of Company’s auditors from among the
candidates based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, in
order to examine, review and audit the financial statements for the
second, third quarters and the annual financial statements for the
financial year 2025G, and the first quarter of the financial year
2026G, and determine their fees

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Alpha Saudi Equity Fund 
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company) 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024 

AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 



Alpha Saudi Equity Fund 

(Managed by Alpha Capital Company) 

Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2024 

 

 

INDEX PAGE 

  

Independent auditor9s report on the financial statements 1 – 2 

  

Statement of financial position 3 

  

Statement of comprehensive income 4 

  

Statement of cash flows 5 

  

Statement of changes in equity 6 

  

Notes to the financial statements 7 – 19 

 







Alpha Saudi Equity Fund 
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company) 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at 31 December 2024 
 

The attached notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements 
- 3 - 

 

 Note 
2024 
SR 

   2023 
  SR 

    
ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents    919,619  6,888,890 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) 5 499,578,733 372,334,862 
Receivable against disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 5 8,577,403 - 
Advance against purchase of financial assets at FVTPL 6  24,073,696  - 
Other receivables   18,080  1,620 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL ASSETS   533,167,531  379,225,372 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
    
LIABILITIES    
Payable against acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL  5 6,117,476 2,517,766 
Management and administration fees payable 7 2,313,771 1,696,462 
Directors’ fees payable 7 8,000 8,000 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   46,934  80,873 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL LIABILITIES   8,486,181  4,303,101 
  ───────── ───────── 
EQUITY    
Net assets attributable to unitholders of redeemable units  524,681,350 374,922,271 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  533,167,531 379,225,372 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
Redeemable units in issue (numbers)  15,294,843 12,648,194 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
Net assets value attributable to each unit in issue (SR)  34.30 29.64 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
 



Alpha Saudi Equity Fund 
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company) 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 31 December 2024 
 

The attached notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements 
- 4 - 

 Note 
        2024 
         SR 

2023 
SR 

INCOME   
Income from financial assets at FVTPL 5  65,941,216  108,165,292 
Dividend income  7,472,426 7,312,983 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL INCOME    73,413,642  115,478,275 
  ───────── ───────── 
OPERATING EXPENSES    
Management fees 7  (7,125,749) (4,445,797) 
Value-added tax expenses   (1,178,513) (719,676) 
Administration fees 7  (318,535) (175,395) 
Custodian fees   (141,758) (89,840) 
Professional fees   (45,493) (67,500) 
Transaction costs   (10,080) (563,766) 
Directors’ fees expenses 7  (8,000) (8,000) 
Other operating expenses   (165,990) (70,589) 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES   (8,994,118) (6,140,563) 
  ───────── ───────── 
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR   64,419,524  109,337,712 
    
Other comprehensive income  - - 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR   64,419,524  109,337,712 
  ═════════ ═════════ 

 



Alpha Saudi Equity Fund 
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company) 
Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 31 December 2024 
 

The attached notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements 
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2024 
SR 

2023 
SR 

   
OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Net income for the year   64,419,524  109,337,712 
Adjustments for:   

Income from financial assets at FVTPL   (65,941,216) (108,165,292) 
Dividend income  (7,472,426) (7,312,983) 

 ───────── ───────── 
  (8,994,118) (6,140,563) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   

Increase in financial assets at FVTPL  (61,302,655) (4,684,480) 
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables   (16,460) 187,729 
(Increase)/decrease in receivable against disposal of financial assets at FVTPL  (8,577,403) 20,427,096 
Increase in advance against purchase of financial assets at FVTPL  (24,073,696) - 
Increase in management and administration fees payable  617,309  720,902 
Increase in directors’ fees payable  -    2,000 
Decrease in accrued expenses and other current liabilities  (33,939) (33,480) 
Decrease in redemption payable  -    (24,066,793) 
Increase in payable against acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL  3,599,710  2,517,766 
 ───────── ───────── 

Cashflows used in operations  (98,781,252) (11,069,823) 
Dividends received  7,472,426  7,312,983 
 ───────── ───────── 
Net cashflows used in operating activities   (91,308,826) (3,756,840) 
 ───────── ───────── 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Proceeds from issuance of units 149,623,568  57,181,221 
Payments against redemption of units (64,284,013) (47,810,640) 
 ───────── ───────── 
Net cashflows from financing activities 85,339,555 9,370,581 
 ───────── ───────── 
   
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (5,969,271) 5,613,741 
   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6,888,890 1,275,149 
 ───────── ───────── 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR   919,619  6,888,890 
 ═════════ ═════════ 



Alpha Saudi Equity Fund 
(Managed by Alpha Capital Company) 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 31 December 2024 
 

The attached notes 1 to 12 form an integral part of these financial statements 
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2024 
SR 

2023 
SR 

   
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE REDEEMABLE 

UNITHOLDERS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 374,922,271 256,213,978 
   
Comprehensive income:   

Net income for the year  64,419,524  109,337,712 
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 

   
Total comprehensive income for the year  64,419,524  109,337,712 
 ───────── ───────── 
  439,341,795  365,551,690 
CHANGE FROM UNITS TRANSACTIONS   

Proceeds from issuance of units 149,623,568 57,181,221 
Payments against redemption of units (64,284,013) (47,810,640) 

 ───────── ───────── 
Net change from units transactions 85,339,555 9,370,581 
 ───────── ───────── 
   
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE REDEEMABLE 

UNITHOLDERS AT THE END OF THE YEAR  524,681,350  374,922,271 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
   
REDEEMABLE UNITS TRANSACTIONS   
   
Transactions in redeemable units for the year are summarised as follows:   
         2024         2023 
         Units         Units 
   
UNITS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,648,194 12,294,867 
Units issued during the year 4,602,268 2,370,133 
Units redeemed during the year (1,955,619) (2,016,806) 
 ───────── ───────── 
UNITS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 15,294,843 12,648,194 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
NET ASSETS VALUE PER UNIT AT THE END OF THE YEAR 34.30 29.64 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Alpha Saudi Equity Fund (the <Fund=) is an open-ended fund created by an agreement between Alpha Capital 

Company and the investors (<the unitholders=) in the Fund. The main activity of the Fund is to achieve medium to 

long-term capital growth for the unitholders through investing in the shares of the companies listed on the Saudi Stock 

Exchange. 

  

The Fund was offered for subscription under the laws and regulations of the Capital Market Authority (<CMA=) on 

14 Shawal 1439H (corresponding to 28 June 2018). The Fund commenced its operations on 12 Dhul-Qa`dah 1439H 

(corresponding to 25 July 2018). 
 

The Fund is managed by Alpha Capital Company (the "Fund Manager"), a closed joint stock company with 

commercial registration number 1010936196, licensed by the CMA of the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under license 

number 33-18187. 
 

The Fund9s Manager registered office is P.O. Box 54854, Riyadh 12371, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 
 

The last valuation day of the year was 30 December 2024. However, the financial statements of the Fund have been 

prepared based on the special valuation as at 31 December 2024. 

 

The Fund has appointed Albilad Investment Company (the <Custodian=) to act as its custodian. The fees of the 
custodian are paid by the Fund. 
 

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 6 Ramdan 1446H (corresponding 

to 06 March 2025). 
 

2 REGULATING AUTHORITY 

 

The Fund is governed by the Investment Fund Regulations (the <Regulations=) issued by the CMA detailing 
requirements for all Investment Funds within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

 

3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
 

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 

 

3.1 Basis of preparation 
 

These financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (<IFRS=) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncement that are 

endorsed by the Saudi  Organisation for Chartered and Professional Accountants, (collectively hereafter referred to as 

IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia). 
 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention using the accrual basis of accounting 

except for financial assets held at FVTPL that are measured at fair value. 
 

The Fund Manager has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going 

concern. 

 

The Fund presents its statement of financial position in order of liquidity based on the Fund Manager9s intention and 
perceived ability to recover/settle the majority of assets/liabilities of the corresponding financial statement line item. 

An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 

months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in note 9. 

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 

the Fund Manager to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund9s accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to 

the financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

3.2 Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2024 

The Fund applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2024 (unless otherwise stated). 

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7: Supplier Finance Arrangements   

In May 2023, the International Accounting Standards Board (<IASB=) issued amendments to IAS 7 Statement of 
Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to clarify the characteristics of supplier finance 

arrangements and require additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments 

are intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements on 

an entity9s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.  

The amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Fund.   

 

Amendments to IFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 

In September 2022, the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 16 to specify the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in 

measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise 

any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.  

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Fund. 

 

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 

In January 2020 and October 2022, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the 

requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:   

• What is meant by a right to defer settlement  

• That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period  

• That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right  

• That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the 

terms of a liability not impact its classification   

In addition, a requirement has been introduced whereby an entity must disclose when a liability arising from a loan 

agreement is classified as non-current and the entity9s right to defer settlement is contingent on compliance with 
future covenants within twelve months.   

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Fund. 

 

3.3 Standards issued but not yet effective 

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance 

of the Fund9s financial statements are disclosed below. The Fund intends to adopt these new and amended standards 

and interpretations, if applicable when they become effective and are endorsed by SOCPA. 

 

Standards/amendments to standards/interpretations Effective date 

Amendments to IAS 21: Lack of exchangeability  1 January 2025 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7: Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments 1 January 2026 

IFRS 18 - Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027 

IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027 

 
3.4 Foreign currency translation 

a) Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (<SR=), which is the Fund9s functional and 
presentation currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest SR. 

b) Transactions and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates 

of the transactions. Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into functional currency using the exchange 

rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the statement of comprehensive income.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash with a bank and other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, with 

maturities of three months or less from the purchase date. 

3.6 Financial Instruments 

3.6.1 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally 

established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., 

the date that the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

i) Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through 

profit or loss. 

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset9s contractual cash flow 
characteristics and the Fund9s business model for managing them. In order for a financial asset to be classified and 

measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 8solely payments of principal and interest 
(SPPI)9 on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an 
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through 

profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. The Fund9s business model for managing financial assets refers to 
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows 

will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and 

measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective of holding financial assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows. 

Subsequent measurement 

For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories: 

Financial assets held for trading 

In applying that classification, a financial asset is considered to be held for trading if: 

(a) It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term; or 

(b) On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 

which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

(c) It is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging 

instrument). 

Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the statement of financial position at fair value. Changes in fair 

value are recognised in net trading income. Interest and dividend income or expense is recorded in net trading income 

according to the terms of the contract, or when the right to payment has been established. 

 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject 

to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 

The Fund9s financial assets at amortised cost include cash and cash equivalent and receivables. 
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

3.6 Financial Instruments (continued) 

3.6.1 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 

i) Financial assets (continued) 

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (<FVTPL=) 
Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either designated by management 

upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9. Management only 

designates an instrument at FVPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such 

designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis: 

(a) Its contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and 

interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding; 

(b) It is not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash flows or to both collect 

contractual cash flows and sell; and 

(c) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would 

otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on different bases. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with 

net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

This category includes listed equity investments which the Fund had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value 

through Other Comprehensive Income. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of 

profit or loss when the right of payment has been established. 

Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund9s statement of financial position) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

• The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 

received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 8pass-through9 arrangement; and 
either (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 

asset. 

When the Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 

transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the 

Fund continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Fund9s continuing involvement. In that case, the 

Fund also recognises an associated liability. The transferred assets and the associated liability are measured on a basis 

that reflects the rights and obligations that the Fund has retained. 
 

Impairment 
The Fund recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value 
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with 
the contract and all the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit 
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit 
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible 
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the 
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

3.6 Financial instruments (continued) 

3.6.1 Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 

i)  Financial assets (continued) 

Impairment (continued) 

For dividends and other receivables, the Fund applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Fund 
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting 
date. The Fund has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

ii) Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 
The Fund9s financial liabilities include redemption payable, management and administration fees payable and other 
liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 
This category includes all financial liabilities, other than those measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
This is the category most relevant to the Fund. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. 

This category generally applies to redemption payable, management and administration fees payable and other 
liabilities. 

Derecognition  
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

iii)  Offsetting financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position 
if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is generally not the case with 
master netting agreements unless one party to the agreement defaults and the related assets and liabilities are presented 
grossly in the statement of financial position. 

3.7 Fair value measurement  

The Fund measures financial instruments such as equity instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 

the transaction to sell the asset or transfer liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
The Fund uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

3.7 Fair value measurement (continued) 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within 

the fair value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 

value measurement as a whole: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Fund 

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on 

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each year. The Fund 

determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, and for non-recurring 

measurement. 

At each reporting date, the Fund analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to 

be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Fund9s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Fund verifies the major 
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other 

relevant documents. The Fund also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant 

external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Fund has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 

nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above. 

Fair value-related disclosures for financial instruments that are measured at fair value or where fair values are 

disclosed are discussed in note 8. 

3.8 Redeemable units 

Redeemable units are classified as equity instruments when: 

• The redeemable units entitle the Unitholder to a pro-rata share of the Fund9s net assets in the event of the Fund9s 
liquidation 

• The redeemable units are in the class of instruments that are subordinate to all other classes of instruments 

• All redeemable units in the class of instruments that are subordinate to all other classes of instruments have 

identical features 

• The redeemable units do not include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset other 

than the Unitholder9s rights to a pro-rata share of the Fund9s net assets 

• The total expected cash flows attributable to the redeemable units over the life of the instrument are based 

substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in the fair value of the 

recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund over the life of the instrument 

In addition to the redeemable units having all of the above features, the Fund must have no other financial instrument 

or contract that has: 

• Total cash flows based substantially on the profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change in 

the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Fund 

• The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual return to the redeemable unitholders 

The Fund continuously assesses the classification of the redeemable units. If the redeemable units cease to have all 

the features, or meet all the conditions set out, to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as financial 

liabilities and measure them at fair value at the date of reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrying 

amount recognised in net assets attributable to the Unitholders. If the redeemable units subsequently have all the 

features and meet the conditions to be classified as equity, the Fund will reclassify them as equity instruments and 

measure them at the carrying amount of the liabilities at the date of the reclassification. 

 
The issuance, acquisition and cancellation of redeemable units are accounted for as equity transactions. No gain or 

loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, issuance or cancellation of the Fund9s 
own equity instruments.
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (continued) 

3.9 Net assets value per unit 

The net assets value per unit disclosed in the statement of financial position is calculated by dividing the net assets 

value of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the end of the period. 

3.10 Management fees, custodian fees and other expenses 

Management fees, administration fees, custodian fees and other expenses are charged at rates/amounts within limits 

mentioned in the terms and conditions of the Fund. 

3.11 Zakat and income tax 

Fund is not liable to pay any zakat or income tax which are considered to be the obligation of the Unitholders and are 

as such not provided in the accompanying financial statements. 

3.12 Dividend income 

Dividend income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on the date on which the right to receive 

the payment for dividends is established. For quoted equity securities, this is usually the ex-dividend date. For 

unquoted equity securities, this is usually the date on which the shareholders approve the payment of a dividend. 

Dividend income from equity securities designated as at FVTPL is recognised in the statement of comprehensive 

income in a separate line item. 

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

The preparation of the Fund9s financial statements in conformity with the IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi 

Arabia requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 

during the year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Fund 

makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates, by definition, may differ 

from the related actual results. 

Significant areas where management has used estimates, assumptions or exercised judgements are as follows: 

Going concern 
The Board of Directors, in conjunction with the Fund Manager, has made an assessment of the Fund9s ability to 
continue as a going concern and is satisfied that the Fund has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable 

future. Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon 

the Fund9s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continued to be prepared on a 

going-concern basis. 

Fair value measurement 
The Fund measures its investments in equity instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price 

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to 

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence 

of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most 

advantageous market must be accessible to the Fund. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 

assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 

act in their economic best interest.  

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, if any, the fair value is determined by using valuation 

techniques deemed to be appropriate in the circumstances. Valuation techniques include the market approach (i.e., 

using recent arm9s length market transactions, adjusted as necessary, and reference to the current market value of 
another instrument that is substantially the same) and the income approach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and 

option pricing models making as much use of available and supportable market data as possible). 

The Fund measures financial instruments at fair value at each statement of financial position date. The fair values of 

those financial instruments are disclosed in note 5.
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5 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

 

The composition and geographical exposure of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on the last valuation 

day is summarised below: 

 

 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 

Quoted equity investments (by country) 
Cost 
SR 

 

Market 
value 

SR 
 

Cost 
SR 

 

Market 
value 
SR 

 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 419,664,706 499,578,733 297,183,066 372,334,862 

 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 

The income from financial assets at FVTPL during the year amounted to SR 65,941,216 (2023: SR 108,165,292) 

 

The Fund also manages its exposure to price risk by analyzing the investment portfolio by the industrial sector. The 

Fund9s policy is to concentrate the investment portfolio in sectors where the Fund Manager believes the Fund can 

maximise the returns derived for the level of risk to which the Fund is exposed. 

 

The Fund had no concentrations in individual equity positions exceeding 19% (2023: 18%) of the net assets 

attributable to unitholders. Investment concentration according to the industry group of the investment portfolio of 

the Fund is disclosed in the table below: 

 

 

Industry group 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 

 Cost Fair value 

% of 

market 

value 

Cost Fair value 

% of 

market 

value 

SR SR  SR SR  

Banks 130,886,368   143,485,160  28.72% 99,726,710  109,292,039  29.35% 

Insurance  57,425,694   95,178,814  19.05% 32,717,442  44,587,263  11.98% 

Materials  60,703,347   58,904,251  11.79% 17,329,838  16,006,700  4.30% 

Health Care Equipment & Svc  23,722,061   28,970,428  5.80% 45,850,564  59,030,887  15.85% 

Utilities  25,133,246   28,955,884  5.80% 21,455,446  31,086,935  8.35% 

Telecommunication Services  27,193,352   25,675,000  5.14% -  -   - 

Capital Goods  9,857,372   22,568,281  4.52% 11,176,146  16,839,582  4.52% 

Software & Services  11,376,818   20,565,060  4.12% 9,169,015  13,828,105  3.71% 

Energy  19,358,521   18,829,330  3.77% 20,546,673  25,261,332  6.79% 

Commercial & Professional Svc  17,061,421   17,898,742  3.58% 15,193,029  17,069,151  4.58% 

Consumer Discretionary 

Distribution & Retail  10,432,205   13,861,034  2.77% 5,430,899  11,338,329  3.05% 

Food & Beverages  15,989,889   12,460,118  2.49% -  -   - 

Consumer Services  10,524,412   12,226,631  2.45% 10,335,416  12,860,888  3.45% 

Transportation - - - 8,251,888  15,133,651  4.07% 
 419,664,706   499,578,733  100% 297,183,066 372,334,862 100% 

 

As at 31 December 2024, there are payables against acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL amounting to                     

SR 6,117,476 (31 December 2023: 2,517,766) and receivables against disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 

amounting to SR 8,577,403 (31 December 2023: Nil). 

 

6 ADVANCE AGAINST PURCHASE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 

 

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Fund participated in the initial public offerings of Al Moosa Health 

Company and Nice One Beauty Digital Marketing Company and paid an advance against the purchase of shares 

amounting to SR 13,837,666 (2023: Nil) and SR 10,236,030 (2023: Nil) for the two companies, respectively. This 

balance, therefore, represents amounts paid as an advance, which will be settled against the allotment of shares. 
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7 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 

influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. The Fund Manager and entities/persons 

related to the Fund Manager and the Fund9s Board of Directors are considered as related parties to the Fund. In the 

ordinary course of its activities, the Fund transacts business with its related parties. 

a) Management fee 

The Fund Manager is responsible for managing the Fund9s activities. The Fund Manager charges a management fee 

of 1.45%, calculated twice a week based on the fund's net assets. 

b) Administration fee 

The Fund manager charges an administration fee at a rate of 0.07% of the total assets of the Fund that are calculated 

on a daily basis, with a minimum monthly fee of SR 9,375.  

c) Subscription fee 

In addition, the Fund Manager is entitled to charge a subscription fee at the rate of 2% of the subscription value from 

the Fund9s unitholders, however, such fee has been waived by the Fund Manager since inception. 

d) Board of Directors remuneration 

Board of Directors remuneration for independent members amounts to SR 2,000, for each meeting not exceeding      

SR 10,000 annually as per the Funds9 terms and conditions.  

e) Subscriptions and redemptions of Fund units 

Name of related party 
Nature of 

Transaction 

2024 2023 

Units SR Units SR 
      
Directors and Executive 
Management 

Subscription 11,676 350,000 52,324 1,350,000 
Redemption 14,837 500,000 19,741 509,111 

       
Fund Manager Subscription - -  1,186,489 14,000,000 

 Redemption 183,276 6,038,746  1,003,213 11,141,161 

       
Affiliates of the members of 
the Board of Directors 

Subscription 1,153,500 38,030,352 1,077 25,000 
Redemption 30.889 1,025,000 3,045 75,000 

 

Outstanding units 
The following are the details of the outstanding units during the year: 

 2024 2023 
Name of related party Units Units 
   
Directors and Executive Management 49,163 52,324 

Fund Manager 183,276 2,858,839 
Affiliates of the members of the Board of Directors 1,171,179 48,568 

 

7.1 Related party transactions 

The following are the details of the significant transactions with related parties during the year: 

Name of related party 

Nature of 

relationship Nature of transaction 

2024 

SR 

2023 

SR 

     

Alpha Capital Company Fund Manager Management Fee 7,125,749 4,445,797 

  Administration Fee 318,535 175,395 

     

Board of Directors Directors Remuneration 8,000 8,000 
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7 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued) 
 

7.2 Related party balances 
 

The following are the details of the major balances with related parties during the year: 

 

Name of related party 

Nature of 

relationship Balance 

2024 

SR 

2023 

SR 

     

Alpha Capital Company Fund Manager Management and administration    

     fees payable 2,313,771 1,696,462 

Board of Directors Directors Directors9 fees payable 8,000 8,000 

     

8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK MANAGEMENT 

8.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS 
 

The Fund9s activities are exposed to a variety of financial instrument risks such as: market risk, credit risk and liquidity 

risk. The Fund9s overall risk management program seeks to maximize the returns derived for the level of risk to which 

the Fund is exposed and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Fund9s financial performance. The Fund 

Manager has in place policies and procedures to identify risks affecting the Fund9s investments and to ensure that 
such risks are addressed as soon as possible, which include conducting a risk assessment at least once a year. 

 

The Fund Manager also applies a prudent spread of risk while taking into consideration the Fund9s investment policies 
and terms and conditions. Furthermore, the Fund Manager shall make every effort to ensure that sufficient liquidity 

is available to meet any anticipated recovery request. 
  
The Board of the Fund plays a role in ensuring that the Fund Manager fulfils its responsibilities to the benefit of the 

unitholders in accordance with the provisions of the Investment Funds Regulations and the terms and conditions of 

the Fund. 
 

The Fund uses different methods to measure and manage the various types of risk to which it is exposed; these 

methods are explained below. 
 

8.1.1 Market risk 
 

a) Commission rate risk 
 

Commission rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument or fair values of fixed 

coupon financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market commission rates. The Fund is not subject to 

commission rate risk, as it does not have any commission-bearing financial instruments. 
 

b) Currency risk 
 

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange 

rates. The Fund9s financial assets and financial liabilities are denominated in Saudi Riyal and therefore the Fund is 

not exposed to any currency risks on these financial instruments. 
 

c) Price risk 
 

Price risk is the risk that the value of the Fund9s financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
prices caused by factors other than foreign currency and commission rate movements. 
 

The price risk arises primarily from uncertainty about the future prices of the financial instruments that the Fund 

holds. The Fund Manager closely monitors the price movement of the financial instruments listed on the stock 

exchange. The Fund manages the risk through diversification of its investment portfolio by investing in various 

industry sectors.
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8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

8.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK FACTORS (continued) 
 

Sensitivity analysis 

The Fund9s financial assets at FVTPL are subject to equity price risk. According to the Fund9s management, the effect 
on the statement of comprehensive income as a result of a change in fair value of equity instruments due to a 

reasonable possible change in equity indices, with all other variables held constant is as follows: 

  2024 2023 

 SR SR 
   

5% increase 24,978,937 18,616,743 

5% decrease (24,978,937) (18,616,743) 

 

8.1.2 Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in realizing funds to meet commitments associated 

with financial liabilities. 

The Fund9s terms and conditions provide for subscriptions and redemptions of units twice a week and the Fund is, 

therefore, exposed to the liquidity risk of not meeting unitholder redemptions. The Fund9s securities are considered 
to be readily realizable, and they can be liquidated at any time. However, the Fund Manager has established certain 

liquidity guidelines for the Fund and monitors liquidity requirements on a regular basis to ensure sufficient funds are 

available to meet any commitments as they arise, either through new subscriptions, liquidation of the investment 

portfolio or by obtaining financing from the related parties of the Fund. 

The undiscounted value of all financial liabilities of the Fund at the reporting date is approximate to their carrying 

values and all are to be settled within one year from the reporting date. 

8.1.3 Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other 

party to incur a financial loss. The Fund does not have a formal internal grading mechanism. 

Credit risk is managed and controlled by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific 

counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. Credit risks are generally managed 

on the basis of external credit ratings of the counterparties. The Fund Manager seeks to limit its credit risk by 

monitoring credit exposure and by dealing with reputable counterparties. 

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position: 

 

2024 
SR 

2023 
SR 

   

Advance against purchase of financial assets at FVTPL 24,073,696 - 

Receivable against disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 8,577,403 - 

Cash and cash equivalents 919,619 6,888,890 

Other receivables  18,080  1,620 

 ───────── ───────── 

Total exposure to credit risk 33,588,798 6,890,510 

 ═════════ ═════════ 

8.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units. The amount of net 

assets attributable to holders of redeemable units can change significantly on each valuation day, as the Fund is subject 

to subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of unitholders on every valuation day, as well as changes resulting 

from the Fund9s performance. The Fund9s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund9s ability to 
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for unitholders, provide benefits for other stakeholders and 

maintain a strong net asset base to support the development of the investment activities of the Fund.
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8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

8.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Fund9s policy is to monitor the level of subscriptions and redemptions 
relative to the assets it expects to be able to liquidate. 

The Fund Board and the Fund Manager monitor capital on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to 

redeemable unitholders. 

8.3 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Fund has investments at fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair values and are classified 

within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. Management believes that the fair value of all other financial assets and 

liabilities are classified as amortised costs and at the reporting date approximate their carrying values owing to their 

short-term tenure and the fact that these are readily liquid. These are all classified within level 2 of the fair value 

hierarchy. There were no transfers between the various levels of the fair value hierarchy during the current year or 

the prior year.  

9 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

  As at 31 December 2024 

Within 
12 months 

(SR) 

After 
12 months 

(SR) 
Total 

SR 

ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents  919,619 -  919,619 

Financial assets at FVTPL 499,578,733 - 499,578,733 

Receivable against disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 8,577,403 - 8,577,403 

Advance against purchase of financial assets at FVTPL 24,073,696 - 24,073,696 

Other receivables  18,080  -  18,080 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 

TOTAL ASSETS 533,167,531 - 533,167,531 

 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

LIABILITIES    

Payable against acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL 6,117,476 - 6,117,476 

Management and administration fees payable 2,313,771 - 2,313,771 

Director9s fees payable 8,000 - 8,000 

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  46,934  - 46,934  
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  8,486,181  -  8,486,181  
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

  As at 31 December 2023 

Within 
12 months 

(SR) 

After 
12 months 

(SR) 
Total 
SR 

ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents 6,888,890 - 6,888,890 

Financial assets at FVTPL 372,334,862 - 372,334,862 

Other receivables 1,620 - 1,620 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 

TOTAL ASSETS 379,225,372 
- 

379,225,372 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

LIABILITIES    

Payable against acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL 2,517,766 - 2,517,766 

Management and administration fees payable 1,696,462 - 1,696,462 

Director9s fees payable 8,000 - 8,000 

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 80,873 - 80,873 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,303,101 - 4,303,101 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
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10 ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX 

The Ministry of Finance has issued a resolution (<MR=) numbered 29791, dated 9th Jumada Al-Awwal 1444 H 

(corresponding to 3 December 2022) publishing certain zakat filing rules to be complied by investment funds in the 

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, applicable from the financial year 2023. According to the MR the Fund is not subject to 

zakat or tax, however, will be required to file certain financial information with Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority 

(<ZATCA=) commencing 1 January 2023 (or commencing from the start of operations during the period ended 31 
December 2023). The filing with ZATCA is due by 30 April 2025. 

11 CONTINGENCIES 

There are no contingencies as at the reporting date. 

12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

There were no subsequent events to the reporting date which require adjustments or disclosure in the notes to the 

financial statements.  
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  ألفا للأسهم السعودية صندوق 
  (مدار من قبل شركة ألفا المالية)

  قائمة المركز المالي
  ٢٠٢٤ديسمبر  ٣١كما في 

 

  جزءًا لا يتجزأ من هذه القوائم المالية.  ١٢إلى   ١تشكل الإيضاحات المرفقة من 
- ٣ -  

  إيضاح 
٢٠٢٤  

  ریال سعودي
٢٠٢٣  

  ریال سعودي
    

     الموجودات
  ٦٬٨٨٨٬٨٩٠  ٩١٩٬٦١٩   نقدية وشبه نقدية

  ٣٧٢٬٣٣٤٬٨٦٢  ٤٩٩٬٥٧٨٬٧٣٣  ٥  موجودات مالية بالقيمة العادلة من خلال الربح أو الخسارة 
العادلة من   بالقيمة  لقاء استبعاد موجودات مالية  القبض  مبالغ مستحقة 

  -  ٨٬٥٧٧٬٤٠٣  ٥  خلال الربح أو الخسارة 
دفعات مقدمة لشراء موجودات مالية بالقيمة العادلة من خلال الربح أو  

  -  ٢٤٬٠٧٣٬٦٩٦  ٦  الخسارة
  ١٬٦٢٠  ١٨٬٠٨٠   مدينون آخرون

  ─────────  ─────────  
  ٣٧٩٬٢٢٥٬٣٧٢  ٥٣٣٬١٦٧٬٥٣١   إجمالي الموجودات

  ═════════  ═════════  
    

     المطلوبات 
العادلة  مبالغ مستحقة   الدفع لقاء استحواذ على موجودات مالية بالقيمة 

  ٢٬٥١٧٬٧٦٦  ٦٬١١٧٬٤٧٦  ٥    من خلال الربح أو الخسارة
  ١٬٦٩٦٬٤٦٢  ٢٬٣١٣٬٧٧١  ٧  أتعاب إدارة ورسوم إدارية مستحقة
  ٨٬٠٠٠  ٨٬٠٠٠  ٧  أتعاب أعضاء مجلس إدارة مستحقة

  ٨٠٬٨٧٣  ٤٦٬٩٣٤   مصاريف مستحقة الدفع ومطلوبات متداولة أخرى 
  ─────────  ─────────  

  ٤٬٣٠٣٬١٠١  ٨٬٤٨٦٬١٨١   إجمالي المطلوبات 
  ─────────  ─────────  

     حقوق الملكية 
  ٣٧٤٬٩٢٢٬٢٧١  ٥٢٤٬٦٨١٬٣٥٠   صافي الموجودات العائدة لمالكي الوحدات القابلة للاسترداد 

  ─────────  ─────────  
  ٣٧٩٬٢٢٥٬٣٧٢  ٥٣٣٬١٦٧٬٥٣١   الملكيةإجمالي المطلوبات وحقوق 

  ═════════  ═════════  
  ١٢٬٦٤٨٬١٩٤  ١٥٬٢٩٤٬٨٤٣   وحدات مصدرة قابلة للاسترداد (بالعدد) 

  ═════════  ═════════  
  ٢٩٫٦٤  ٣٤٫٣٠   صافي قيمة الموجودات العائدة لكل وحدة مصدرة (بالریال السعودي)

  ═════════  ═════════  
 



  السعودية صندوق ألفا للأسهم 
  (مدار من قبل شركة ألفا المالية)

  قائمة الدخل الشامل 
  ٢٠٢٤ديسمبر  ٣١للسنة المنتهية في 

 

  جزءًا لا يتجزأ من هذه القوائم المالية.  ١٢إلى   ١تشكل الإيضاحات المرفقة من 
- ٤ -  

  إيضاح 
٢٠٢٤  

  ریال سعودي
٢٠٢٣  

  ریال سعودي
     الدخل 

  ١٠٨٬١٦٥٬٢٩٢  ٦٥٬٩٤١٬٢١٦  ٥  دخل من موجودات مالية بالقيمة العادلة من خلال الربح أو الخسارة
  ٧٬٣١٢٬٩٨٣  ٧٬٤٧٢٬٤٢٦   توزيعات أرباح 

  ─────────  ─────────  
  ١١٥٬٤٧٨٬٢٧٥  ٧٣٬٤١٣٬٦٤٢     إجمالي الدخل

  ─────────  ─────────  
     مصاريف العمليات 

  )٤٬٤٤٥٬٧٩٧(  ) ٧٬١٢٥٬٧٤٩(  ٧  أتعاب إدارة
  ) ٧١٩٬٦٧٦(  ) ١٬١٧٨٬٥١٣(   مصاريف ضريبة قيمة مضافة 

  ) ١٧٥٬٣٩٥(  ) ٣١٨٬٥٣٥(  ٧  إدارية رسوم 
  ) ٨٩٬٨٤٠(  ) ١٤١٬٧٥٨(   أتعاب حفظ 

  ) ٦٧٬٥٠٠(  ) ٤٥٬٤٩٣(   أتعاب مهنية 
  ) ٥٦٣٬٧٦٦(  ) ١٠٬٠٨٠(   تكاليف معاملات 

  ) ٨٬٠٠٠(  ) ٨٬٠٠٠(  ٧  مصاريف أعضاء مجلس الإدارة
  ) ٧٠٬٥٨٩(  ) ١٦٥٬٩٩٠(   أخرى عملياتمصاريف 

  ─────────  ─────────  
  )٦٬١٤٠٬٥٦٣(  ) ٨٬٩٩٤٬١١٨(   العمليات إجمالي مصاريف 

  ─────────  ─────────  
  ١٠٩٬٣٣٧٬٧١٢  ٦٤٬٤١٩٬٥٢٤   صافي دخل السنة 

    
  -  -   الدخل الشامل الآخر 

  ─────────  ─────────  
  ١٠٩٬٣٣٧٬٧١٢  ٦٤٬٤١٩٬٥٢٤   إجمالي الدخل الشامل للسنة 

  ═════════  ═════════  
 



  صندوق ألفا للأسهم السعودية 
  (مدار من قبل شركة ألفا المالية)

  قائمة التدفقات النقدية
  ٢٠٢٤ديسمبر  ٣١للسنة المنتهية في 

 

  جزءًا لا يتجزأ من هذه القوائم المالية.  ١٢إلى   ١تشكل الإيضاحات المرفقة من 
- ٥ -  

 
٢٠٢٤  

  ریال سعودي
٢٠٢٣  

  ریال سعودي
   

    الأنشطة التشغيلية 
  ١٠٩٬٣٣٧٬٧١٢  ٦٤٬٤١٩٬٥٢٤  صافي دخل السنة 

    التعديلات لـ:
  )١٠٨٬١٦٥٬٢٩٢(  (٦٥٬٩٤١٬٢١٦)  دخل من موجودات مالية بالقيمة العادلة من خلال الربح أو الخسارة

  )٧٬٣١٢٬٩٨٣(  ) ٧٬٤٧٢٬٤٢٦(  توزيعات أرباح 
 ─────────  ─────────  
 )٦٬١٤٠٬٥٦٣(  ) ٨٬٩٩٤٬١١٨(  

    التغيرات في الموجودات والمطلوبات التشغيلية:
  )٤٬٦٨٤٬٤٨٠(  ) ٦١٬٣٠٢٬٦٥٥(  زيادة في الموجودات المالية بالقيمة العادلة من خلال الربح أو الخسارة

  ١٨٧٬٧٢٩  ) ١٦٬٤٦٠(  (زيادة)/ نقص في الذمم المدينة الأخرى
استبعاد موجودات مالية بالقيمة العادلة  (زيادة) / نقص في المبالغ المستحقة القبض عن  

  ٢٠٬٤٢٧٬٠٩٦  ) ٨٬٥٧٧٬٤٠٣(  من خلال الربح أو الخسارة
زيادة في الدفعة المقدمة لقاء شراء موجودات مالية بالقيمة العادلة من خلال الربح أو  

  -  ) ٢٤٬٠٧٣٬٦٩٦(  الخسارة
  ٧٢٠٬٩٠٢  ٦١٧٬٣٠٩  زيادة في أتعاب الإدارة والرسوم الإدارية المستحقة

  ٢٬٠٠٠  -  زيادة في أتعاب أعضاء مجلس إدارة مستحقة
  ) ٣٣٬٤٨٠(  ) ٣٣٬٩٣٩(  نقص في المصاريف المستحقة الدفع والمطلوبات المتداولة الأخرى

  ) ٢٤٬٠٦٦٬٧٩٣(  -  نقص في الاستردادات المستحقة 
العادلة من  زيادة في المبالغ المستحقة الدفع لقاء استحواذ على موجودات مالية بالقيمة  

  ٢٬٥١٧٬٧٦٦  ٣٬٥٩٩٬٧١٠  خلال الربح أو الخسارة 
 ─────────  ─────────  

  ) ١١٬٠٦٩٬٨٢٣(  ) ٩٨٬٧٨١٬٢٥٢(  التدفقات النقدية المستخدمة في العمليات 
  ٧٬٣١٢٬٩٨٣  ٧٬٤٧٢٬٤٢٦  توزيعات أرباح مستلمة 

 ─────────  ─────────  
  )٣٬٧٥٦٬٨٤٠(  ) ٩١٬٣٠٨٬٨٢٦(  التشغيليةصافي التدفقات النقدية المستخدمة في الأنشطة 

 ─────────  ─────────  
    الأنشطة التمويلية 

  ٥٧٬١٨١٬٢٢١  ١٤٩٬٦٢٣٬٥٦٨  متحصلات من الوحدات المصدرة
  ) ٤٧٬٨١٠٬٦٤٠(  ) ٦٤٬٢٨٤٬٠١٣(  سداد الوحدات المستردة 

 ─────────  ─────────  
  ٩٬٣٧٠٬٥٨١  ٨٥٬٣٣٩٬٥٥٥  صافي التدفقات النقدية من الأنشطة التمويلية

 ─────────  ─────────  
   

  ٥٬٦١٣٬٧٤١  ) ٥٬٩٦٩٬٢٧١(  صافي (النقص) الزيادة في النقدية وشبه النقدية 
   

  ١٬٢٧٥٬١٤٩  ٦٬٨٨٨٬٨٩٠  النقدية وشبه النقدية في بداية السنة
 ─────────  ─────────  

  ٦٬٨٨٨٬٨٩٠  ٩١٩٬٦١٩  النقدية وشبه النقدية في نهاية السنة
 ═════════  ═════════  
 



  صندوق ألفا للأسهم السعودية 
  (مدار من قبل شركة ألفا المالية)
  قائمة التغيرات في حقوق الملكية

  ٢٠٢٤ديسمبر  ٣١المنتهية في للسنة 
 

  جزءًا لا يتجزأ من هذه القوائم المالية.  ١٢إلى   ١تشكل الإيضاحات المرفقة من 
- ٦ -  

 
٢٠٢٤  

  ریال سعودي
٢٠٢٣  

  ریال سعودي
   

  ٢٥٦٬٢١٣٬٩٧٨  ٣٧٤٬٩٢٢٬٢٧١  حقوق الملكية المتعلقة بمالكي الوحدات القابلة للاسترداد في بداية السنة 
   

    الدخل الشامل: 
  ١٠٩٬٣٣٧٬٧١٢  ٦٤٬٤١٩٬٥٢٤  صافي دخل السنة 

  -  -  الدخل الشامل الآخر للسنة 
   

  ١٠٩٬٣٣٧٬٧١٢  ٦٤٬٤١٩٬٥٢٤  إجمالي الدخل الشامل للسنة 
 ─────────  ─────────  
 ٣٦٥٬٥٥١٬٦٩٠  ٤٣٩٬٣٤١٬٧٩٥  

    التغير من معاملات الوحدات
  ٥٧٬١٨١٬٢٢١  ١٤٩٬٦٢٣٬٥٦٨  متحصلات من الوحدات المصدرة

  ) ٤٧٬٨١٠٬٦٤٠(  ) ٦٤٬٢٨٤٬٠١٣(  سداد الوحدات المستردة 
 ─────────  ─────────  

  ٩٬٣٧٠٬٥٨١  ٨٥٬٣٣٩٬٥٥٥  صافي التغير من معاملات الوحدات
 ─────────  ─────────  
   

  ٣٧٤٬٩٢٢٬٢٧١  ٥٢٤٬٦٨١٬٣٥٠  حقوق الملكية المتعلقة بمالكي الوحدات القابلة للاسترداد في نهاية السنة 
 ═════════  ═════════  
   

    معاملات الوحدات القابلة للاسترداد
   

    ملخصاً لمعاملات الوحدات القابلة للاسترداد خلال السنة: فيما يلي 
 ٢٠٢٣  ٢٠٢٤  
  وحدات  وحدات 
   

  ١٢٬٢٩٤٬٨٦٧  ١٢٬٦٤٨٬١٩٤  الوحدات في بداية السنة 
  ٢٬٣٧٠٬١٣٣  ٤٬٦٠٢٬٢٦٨  وحدات مصدرة خلال السنة 
  )٢٬٠١٦٬٨٠٦(  ) ١٬٩٥٥٬٦١٩(  وحدات مستردة خلال السنة 

 ─────────  ─────────  
  ١٢٬٦٤٨٬١٩٤  ١٥٬٢٩٤٬٨٤٣  الوحدات في نهاية السنة

 ═════════  ═════════  
  ٢٩٫٦٤  ٣٤٫٣٠  صافي قيمة الموجودات لكل وحدة في نهاية السنة

 ═════════  ═════════  
 



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 /NF'مF' Gئ'HFF' لH/ 0'/'ضNإ 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 م?HFم'0 ?'م/  -1
 

'ستثم'رN> Pر م/دد    HHصند HG )"HHصندF'"( /NدH?سF'  GGسgF 'GF'  HHصند /NF'مF'  'GF' 'تH'G بNن شرك/   (.Hنش& بم' 'Fمد/ 
F'HمستثمرNن )"م'FكHF' N/د'F' NG )"0صندN .HHتمثل 'Fنش'ط 'Fر&NسFF NصندNG HH ت/FNF نمNG H ر'س 'Fم'ل ?F' OFمدF' OمتHسط 

 "( /NدH?سF' /NF'مF' HHسF' NG /.مدرF' 0'شركF' GGس' NG ستثم'رg' لg. د'0 من/HF' NكF'مF لNHطF' OF' .)"لH'تد 
  

  NG )"/&NGF'"( /NF'مF' HHسF' /&NG /&'HFH /نظمg 'OFGH G'شترgF HHصندF' /طر Gل    14ت'H1444ش  FG'HمF'( FG28    HNنHN2018 .)
 .Nبت'ر Gت'NFم? HHصندF' 'بدH12  /د?FF' H1439ذ  FG'HمF'( FG25  HNFHN2018 .) 

 
  Pت.'رF' س.لF' (.Hبم /F.مس /FGFم /NدH?م/ سG'شرك/ مس NGH ،)"HHصندF' رNمد"( /NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF من HHصندF' د'رON

 GF1010936196ر GFص رN.ترF' (.Hبم /NدH?سF' /Nرب?F' /كFممF'ب /NF'مF' HHسF' /&NG بلF مر.ص/ منH ،33-18187 . 
 

 ، 'FممFك/ 'F?ربF' /Nس?HدF' ،12371./NرN'ض 54854'ن ?نH'ن 'Fمكت) 'Fمس.ل FمدNر 'FصندHG HH ص.).  
 

  HG /سنF' NG GNHFت GHN سمبر    30ك'ن &.رN2024د  NG 'ص كم'.F' GNHFتF' س'س' OF? /NF'مF' G&'HFF' GذG د'د?' Gت ،GFم? ذH .31 
 . 2024دNسمبر 

 
.HHصندF' بلF ظ منG/F' ('?ت' ?Gد GتN .HHصندFF ظG/ نNمل ك'م?FF )"ظG/F' نNستثم'ر )"'مgF دgبF' /ن شركNN?بت HHصندF' G'F 

 
  .Nد'ر/ بت'رg' سF.بل مF من /NF'مF' G&'HFF' GذG تم'د 'صد'ر?' G1446رمض'ن  6ت FG   FG'HمF'(6  2025م'رس( . 

 

2- /Nنظ'مF' /ئ'HFF' 
 

N.ض? 'FصندgF HH&// صن'دg' FNستثم'ر )"'F' )"//&gFص'در/ من Fبل F' /&NGسF' HHم'F'H /NFتN تنص ?F' OFمتطFب'F' 0تN Nت?Nن 
 OF?.'G?'تب' /NدH?سF' /Nرب?F' /كFممF' NG /Fم'?F' ستثم'رg' FNصن'د ?Nم. 

 
3-  /Nم/'سبF' 0'س'NسF' ن? /NنسبF' /NمGg' 0'م'0 ذHF?مF' 
 

 ./NF'مF' G&'HFF' GذG ند '?د'د? /FمطبF' /Nم/'سبF' 0'س'NسF' ن? /NنسبF' /NمGg' 0'م'0 ذHF?مF'ب 'Oن'Nب NFN 'مNG 
 
 'سس 'g?د'د  3-1

'?د'د    Gر تNN'?مF'H  /NدH?سF'  /Nرب?F' 'FممFك/   NG 'Fم?تمد/   NF'مF' FFتFرNر   /NFHدF' FFم?'NNر   O 'FGH  HHصندFF  /NF'مF'  G&'HFF'  GذG
  NF'مF' رNرFتFF /NFHدF' رNN'?مF'" Fب NFN 'مNG 'GNF' ش'رN( نNم/'سبF'H نN?.'مرFF /NدH?سF' /&NGF' م?تمد/ منF' Oر.g' 0'صد'رg'H

 'F?ربF' /Nس?HدF' .)"/Nم?تمد/ F' NGممFك/
 

./  تG '?د'د GذF' G&'HFF' Gم'F 'OFGH /NFمبد' 'FتكF' /GFت'رN.N/ ب'ست.د'G 'س'س 'gست/F' H'Fم/'سبN، ب'ستثن'' 'FمH.Hد'F' 0م'F' /NFمدر
 ./Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب 'Gس'NF GتN NتF'H /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب 

 

 'F' G&'HFFم'OF? /NF 'س'س 'ستمر'رF' NG G?مل كمنش'/ مستمر/. G'F مدNر 'FصندHH ب'?د'د 
 

F' GHFNصندHH ب?رض F'&م/ 'Fمركز 'Fم'F' NF.'ص/ بF 'OFGH GترتF' (NسFHN/ بن''OF? O نN/ مدNر 'FصندFH HHدرتOF? G 'سترد'د/  
ت/NFل بش'ن 'سترد'د 'H تسF' /NHمH.Hد'F'H 0مطHFب'0  تسF'> /NHبF' /NمH.Hد'F'/0مطHFب'F 0بنHد 'F' G&'HFFم'F' /NFمF'بF/. تG ?رض  

شGر'O ب?د ت'رN. '?د'د 'F' G&'HFFم'N>( /NFر متد'FH/(   12شGر'O ب?د ت'رN. '?د'د 'F' G&'HFFم'NF/ )متد'H )/FH'كثر من    F'12م'g. /NFل  
 (.Ng' NG9ض'/ )

 FNند تطب? G'ك/g' /مم'رس HHصندF' رNمن مد (FتطN 'م/. كم'GF' /Nم/'سبF' 0'رNدFتF' ب?ض G'ست.د' /NF'مF' G&'HFF' د'د?' (FتطN
'FسN'س'F' 0م/'سبFF /NصندFH .HHد تGg' Gص'/ ?ن 'FنF' N/'HتN تتضمن در./ ?'NF/ من 'g/ك'F' H' Gت?NFد 'F' HنF' N/'HتN تكHن 

(.Gg' 'GNG4تر'ض'F'H 0تFدNر'G 0'م/ F' G&'HFFFم'Ng' NG /NFض'/ )



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 N2024ن'Nر  F'H1ت?دF' OF? 0gNم?'NNر 'F' /NF'/Fس'رN/ '?تب'رً' من 'Fم?'NNر  2- 3
 N2024ن'Nر  F' G'F1صندHH بتطبFN ب?ض 'Fم?'NNر F'Hت?دHg 0gNل مر/، F'HتN تسرGF' OF? Pتر'F' 0سنF' /NHتN تبد' H' NG ب?د 

 .)GFذ Gg. ردN GF'م( 
( NFHدF' /م/'سبF' ر'N?م OF? 0gNت?دF'7( NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF' ر'N?مF'H )7  نNردHمF' ?0 مgم?'مF' لNHب'0 تمNترت :) 

  HN'م NG2023( NFHدF' /م/'سبF' ر'N?م OF? 0gNت?د /NFHدF' /م/'سبF' رNN'?س مF.7، 'صدر م  )-   ر'N?مF'H "/NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' /م&'F"
( NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF'7)-    GNدFت (FتتطH نNردHمF' ?0 مgم?'مF' لNHب'0 تمNص'&ص ترت. /NضHتF 0'/'صG' :"/NF'مF' 0'Hدg'"

GذG ن? NG'ص'/ 'ضG'   ث'ر&  GGG OF? /NF'مF'  G&'HFF'  Nمس'?د/ مست.دم OF'  0gNت?دF' 'FترتNب'0. تGدG متطFب'Gg' 0ص'/ ?ن 
  ./FHNسF' م.'طرF ت?رضF'H /NدFنF' 'Gت'FGتدH /'منشF' 0'تز'مF' OF? نNردHمF' ?0 مgم?'مF' لNHب'0 تمNترت 

   .HHصندFF /NF'مF' G&'HFF' OF? ثر' P' 0gNت?دF' GذGF كنN GF 
 

 NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF' ر'N?مF' OF? 0gNت?دF'(16) ستئج'رg' /إ?'دH ?NبF' 0gم?'م NG ج'رNg' دHF? 0'تز'مF' : 
Fت/دNد 'FمتطFب'F' 0تN   16، 'صدر م.Fس م?'NNر 'Fم/'سب/ 'FدNFH/ ت?دF' OF? 0gNم?N'ر 'FدFF NFHتFرNر 'Fم'NG2022  NF سبتمبر  

'Fمست'.ر 'ست.د'مG' ?ند NF'س 'Fتز'م'Ng' 0.'ر 'Fن'ت./ ?ن م?'مF' 0gبH ?N'?'د/ 'gست&.'ر، HذFF GFت'كد من   - Nت?Nن ?F' OFب'&?  
 'Fمست'.ر.  -'Fمست'.ر ب'ثب'P' 0 مبF< من 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ Nت?FF ب/g' Fست.د'F' GذN P/تGظ بF' Gب'&? -?دF' G'NF Gب'&? 

.HHصندFF /NF'مF' G&'HFF' OF? ثر' P' 0gNت?دF' GذGF كنN GF 
 

( NFHدF' /م/'سبF' ر'N?م OF? 0gNت?دF'1/FH'ر متدN>H /FH'ب'0 كمتدHFمطF' GNتصن :) 
من م?N'ر 'Fم/'سب/   OF'76    69، 'صدر م.Fس م?'NNر 'Fم/'سب/ 'FدNFH/ ت?دFGF' OF? 0gNر'H2022  0'كتHبر    N NG2020ن'Nر  

  NFHدF'1   :0gNت?دF' /ضHت ./FH'ر متدN> H' /FH'ب'0 كمتدHFمطF' GNص/ بتصن'.F' 0'بFمتطF' دNت/دF 
 م' 'FمFصHد ب/F ت'.Nل 'Fسد'د   •
•   /NF'مF' /ترGF' /N'Gن NG 'OدH.Hن مHكN ن' (.N لN.'تF' F/ ن' 
 'ن 'FتصنN g GNت'ثر ب'/تم'NF/ مم'رس/ 'Fمنش'/ NG 'GF/F ت'.Nل 'Fسد'د   •
•  G'تزFg' طHن ت)ثر شرFG ،/NكFم HHF/ /'د' 'GسGن NG لNH/تFF بل'F G'تزF' NG /NضمنF' 0'FمشتF' Oط 'ذ' ك'ن0 '/دFG Gن'

  .'GGNتصن OF? 
ب'gض'OF' /G ذGF، تG 'ست/د'ث متطFب'0 تنص ?OF 'نF' OF? (.N Gمنش'/ تFدGg' GNص'/'H 0ذGF  ?ند تصنFg' GNتز'F' Gن'ش&  
?ن 'تF /NF'Gرض ?OF 'نF' Gتز'N> Gر متد'Hل، NHكHن /F' Fمنش'/ NG ت'.Nل 'Fسد'د مشرHطO' ب'Fتز'مG' ب'Fت?Gد'F' 0مستFبg. /NFل 

   .' OرGشر ش? Nثن' 
.HHصندFF /NF'مF' G&'HFF' OF? ثر' P' 0gNت?دF' GذGF كنN GF 

 
 'Fم?'NNر 'Fص'در/ N>Hر س'رF' /NمH?Gل ب?د  3-3

 .HHصندFF /NF'مF' G&'HFF' صد'ر' .Nت'ر Oل ب?د /تH?GمF' /Nر س'رN>H /ص'درF' /Fم?دF'H /دNد.F' 0'رNسGتF'H رNN'?مF'ب 'Oن'Nب NFN 'مNG 
  /NدH?سF'  /&NGF' ذGF، ?ند سرN'نF'H 'Gم?تمد/ من   FنطبN 'ذ'  ،/Fم?دF'H /دNد.F' 'Fم?'NNر F'HتGسNر'0   GذG FNتطب HHصندF'  Gتز?N

'H نN?.'مرFF.نNم/'سبF 
 

 ت'رF' .NسرN'ن  'Fم?'NNر/ 'Fت?دF' OF? 0gNم?'NNر / 'FتGسNر'0
( NFHدF' /م/'سبF' ر'N?م OF? 0gNت?دF'21GصرFF /NFب'FF' Gد? :)  ر  1N'نN2025 

( NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF' ر'N?مF' OF? 0gNت?دF'9( NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF' ر'N?مF'H )7 س'NFH GNتصن :)
 /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' 

 N2026ن'Nر  1

( NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF' ر'N?مF'18 )-  /NF'مF' G&'HFF' NG 0'/'صGg'H رض?F' 1  رN'نN2027 
( NF'مF' رNرFتFF NFHدF' ر'N?مF'19 )- 0'/'صGg' :/م'?F' /F''مسFF ?ت.ض g NتF' /?ت'بF' 0'شركF' 1  رN'نN2027 

 

3-4 /Nجنبg' 0gم?F' لNH/ت 
 'F?مHF' /FظH /NGN?مF' /F?رض  ('

 /G'ك (NرFت Gكم' ت .HHصندF'ص/ ب'.F' رض?F' /Fم?H /NGNظHF' /Fم?F' Gب'?تب'ر ،PدH?سF' ౘ墎F'ب /NF'مF' G&'HFF' GذG رض? Gت
 .PدH?س ౘ墎 (رF' OF' /ضHم?رF' /NF'مF' 0'مHF?مF' 

 'Fم?'مg'H 0gرصد/  ( )
 ./Nم?نF' 0gم?'مF' ''ر.' .Nس'&د/ بت'رF' GصرF' س?'رg 'FGH /NGNظHF' /Fم?F' OF' /Nنب.g' 0gم?F'ب Gتت NتF' 0gم?'مF' لH/ت
F'&م/   .Nس'&د/ بت'رF'  GصرF' س?'رg 'FGH /NGNظHF'  /Fم?F'  OF'  /Nنب.g' 0gم?F'ب /F.مسF' 'FمH.Hد'F'H 0مطHFب'0  NHتG ت/NHل 

 .NF'مF' مركزF' 
تدر. 'gرب'/ F'H.س'&ر 'Fن'ت./ ?ن ت/NHل 'F?مg' 0g.نبF NG /N'&م/ 'Fد.ل 'Fش'مل. 



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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3-5 /NدFنF' GشبH /NدFنF' 
 'GF'F/ست' .Nر'HتH ،0د.H ن' ،/FHNسF' /NF'? Oر.g' ل.g' /رNصF 0'ستثم'رg'H GبنF' OدF دFنF' OF? /NدFنF' GشبH /NدFنF' تشتمل

 'شGر 'F' Hل من ت'رF' .Nشر''.ثgث/ 
 
3-6  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' 

 
3-6-1  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' –  F/gF' س'NFF'H NFHg' 0'ثبg' 

'ثب'0    GتN  ./NF'مF'  0'HدgF  /NدF'?تF'  G'ك/g'  NG  'OGطر HHصندF' Nصب/  ?ندم'   /NF'مF' F'HمطHFب'0   /NF'مF' 'FمH.Hد'0  'ثب'0   GتN
  ?Nب H' ''0 شر'NFم?  /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF'–   GFت H' /نظمg' 'GNF? تنص NتF' /NزمنF' /ترGF' لg. 0'دH.HمF' GNFتس (Fتتط NتF'

 )/Nد'Nت?g' 0gم?'مF'( HHسF'ب 'GNF? Gمت?'رF'– .صلOg' ?Nب H' ''بشر HHصندF' GNG GتزFN PذF' .Nت'رF' P' ،لH'تدF' .Nبت'ر 
 
1) /NF'مF' 0'دHجHمF' 
 

 'gثب'NFF'H NFHg' 0'س
 تصنF' GمH.Hد'F' 0م'NF/، ?ند 'gثب'GF NFHg' 0'، كمF'س/ F/g' ب'FتكF' /GFمطH /'Gب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/. 

  HHصندF' ذ. '?م'لHنمH NF'مF' صلgF /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' ص'&ص. OF? 'GF NFHg' 0'ثبg' ند? /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' GNتصن GFHتN
  .'Gد'رتg >FمبF' 0 من'?Gط دFG تمثل /NدF0 ن'FGتد 'Gنت. ?نN ن' (.N Gن'G ،/'GمطF' /GFتكF'ب /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' س'NFH GNتصنFH

 G('ر.' GتNH ،"/FHم?F'H NFصg' >FمبF' ط منFG 0'?GدF' تب'ر.'" Fب GNHFتF' 'ذG OF' ش'رN .G&'FF' NFصg' >FمبF' OF? /FHم?F'H NFصg' 
'N ./NFتG تصنNFH GN'س 'FمH.Hد'F' 0م'NF/ ذ'F' 0تدF' 0'FGنFدF' /Nتg N ت?د FGط دG?'0 من 'Fمبg' >FصOF? NF مستg' OHد'/ 'Fم

F'H?مFH/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ بصرF' Gنظر ?ن نمHذ. 'g?م'ل. NشNر نمHذ. '?م'ل 'FصندF' HH.'ص 
 ' GذG /د'ر' /NGNك OF' /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' /م'ل م' 'ذ' ك'ن0 ب'د'ر?g' .ذHدد نم/N ./NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' FNF/ت GدGب /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF

NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF'ظ ب'Gت/g' GتN .'مGgك H' /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' ?Nب H' /NدF'?تF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' لNستنت. ?ن ت/ص /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' /
 g' GG/تG'ظ ب'FمH.Hد'F' 0م'F /NFت/صNل 'FتدF' 0'FGنFدF' /Nت?'FدF' ./NمصنF'H /GمF'س/ ب'FتكF' /GFمطG'/ ضمن نمHذ. '?م'ل Gد

 
 F/gF' س'NFF' 

:/NF'تF' 0'&GF' OF' /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' Gتصن ،'GF F/gF' س'NFF' ر'ض>g 
 

 'FمHجHد'F' 0م'F' /NFمFتن'/ g<ر'ض 'Fمت'جر/ 
 /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' تب'ر?' GتN ،GNتصنF' 'ذG FNمت'.ر/ 'ذ': ?ند تطبF' ر'ض>g G'تنFم 

'(H' ،(NرFF' OمدF' OF? 'G&'د/ شر'?' H' 'G?Nرض ب>F NسN&بشكل ر 'Gتكبد H' 'GNF? ; ذ'H/ستg' Gت ) 
 NF?G ر نمط.& OF? لNFد 'Gد بش'ن.HNH O ))( ك'ن0 ?ند 'gثب'GF NFHg' 0' .ز''O من م/Gظ/ 'دH'0 م'NF/ م/دد/ NتG 'د'رتG' م?'

H' ،رNصFF' OمدF' OF? /'ربg' FNF/تF 
 .)/F'?G /Nم.صص/ ك'د'/ ت<طF' /NF'مF' /'دg' H' ،NF'د ضم'ن مF? تمثل NتF' 0'FمشتF' 'م' ?دNG( /Fك'ن0 ?ب'ر/ ?ن 'د'/ مشت ).( 

NتG تس.Nل NFH'س 'FمH.Hد'F' 0مFتن'/ g<ر'ض 'Fمت'.ر/ F NG'&م/ 'Fمركز 'Fم'NF ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دNH ./FتG 'ثب'F' 0ت<Nر'NFF' NG 0م/ 
 'OFGH /مت'.رF' د.ل NG'رب'/ ضمن صg' 0'?NزHتH /FHم?F' GHمصر H' ثب'0 د.ل' GتN 'مت'.ر/. كمF' د.ل NG'ضمن ص /Fد'?F'

Fg' ند? H' ،دF?F' طHشرF.'G?Gد /NF/'ر'ر ب 
 

 /'GمطF' /GFتكF'س/ ب'FمF' /NF'مF' 0'دHجHمF' 
 GتN ./مNFF' NG ض'G.نg' تب'ر.g ?ت.ضH ،/NF?GF' /FHم?F' /FNطر G'ب'ست.د 'OF/g /'GمطF' /GFتكF'ب /F.مسF' /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' س'Fت
'ثب'g' 0رب'/ 'F' H.س'&ر ضمن 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ ?ند 'FتGFH ?ن 'ثب'g' 0صل 'H ت?دH' GFN 'ن.G'ض NFمتG. تشتمل 'FمH.Hد'0 

 HHصندFF /NF'مF' ./نNمدF' GذمF'H /NدFنF' GشبH /NدFنF' OF? 



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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  'gدF' 0'Hم'NF/ )تتم/(  3-6
3-6-1  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' – F/gF' س'NFF'H NFHg' 0'ثبg' )/تتم( 
 
 'FمHجHد'F' 0م'NF/ )تتم/( (1

 
 .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ 'FمHجHد'F' 0م'F' /NFمF'س/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من 

تمثل 'FمH.Hد'F' 0م'G NG /NFذF' /&GF' GمH.Hد'N> 0ر 'Fم/تGظ بg 'G<ر'ض 'Fمت'.ر/ F'HتN 'م' NتG ت.صNصG' من Fبل 'gد'ر/ ?ند 
. تg' GHFد'ر/ F'9م'g'  /NFثب'NFHg' 0 ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دNF (.N H' /F'سG' ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ بشكل 'Fز'مN بمF' (.Hم?N'ر 'FدFF NFHتFرNر  

بت.صNص 'د'/ م' ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ ?ند 'gثب'H NFHg' 0ذFG GFط ?ند 'ستGN'' '/د 'FشرHط 'Fت'NH ./NF/دد 
 Gذ' 'Fت.صNص ?OF 'س'س كل 'د'OF? G /د/: 

  /FHم?F'H NFصg' >FمبF' 0 من'?Gط دFG تمثل /NدF0 ن'FGم/دد/، تد .Nر'Hت NG ،NF'مF' صلgF /NدF'?تF' طHشرF' نش' ?نN GF )'(
 H' ،G&'FF' NFصg' >FمبF' OF? 

H' ،O O بG ضمن نمHذ. '?م'ل GدGG 'م' ت/صNل 'FتدF' 0'FGنFدH' ،/N ت/صNل 'FتدF' 0'FGنFدF'H /NبN? م?'  ))( N GFكن 'gصل م/تGظ'
  H'تس' Gد? PرGH. ل بشكلFFN H' لNزN صNت.صF' د'0  ).( 'ذ' ك'نH.HمF' س'NF ن? GFذ Gg. 'نشN دF PذF'H 0'ثبg' H' س'NFF'

./GFسس م.ت' FGH 'Gن'ت./ ?نF' س'&ر.F'H /'ربg' 0'ثب' H' 0'بHFمطF' H' 
 

 NG'در. صNH ،/Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب NF'مF' مركزF' /م&'F NG /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'مدر./ بF' /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' دNFت
 'Fت<Nر'NFF' NG 0م/ 'F?'دF NG /F'&م/ 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/. 

 
تشتمل Gذg' OF? /&GF' Gستثم'ر'NG 0 'دF' HHF/ 0'HمFكF' /Nمدر./ 'FتF' GFN GF NصندHH بشكل g ر.?/ GNG بتصنGGN' ب'NFFم/ 
'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fد.ل 'Fش'مل 'ل䐢.ر. كم' NتG 'ثب'0 تHزg' 0'?Nرب'/ 'Fن'ت./ ?ن 'gستثم'ر'NG 0 'دF' HHF/ 0'HمFكF' /Nمدر./  

.F' H' /ربF' /م&'F NG.'G?Gد /NF/'ر'ر بFg' س'ر/ ?ند 
 

 'FتGFH ?ن 'gثب'0
  Gستب?'د' P'( )/Gمش'ب /NF'د'0 مH.Hمن م /?Hز' من م.م. H' Gز' من. ،GFذ FنطبN ذ' ،H'( NF'مF' صلg' 0'ن 'ثب? GFHتF' GتN

 من F'&م/ 'Fمركز 'Fم'FF NFصندHH( ?ند:
•  H' ،صلg' من /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' Ggب'ست /FF?متF' HHF/F' ''Gنت' 
•  Gطر OF' ك'ملF'م/ بFمستF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' د بسد'دG?تF' H' صلg' من /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' Ggست' HHF/ لNH/بت HHصندF' G'NF

 )(( H' ،صلOgF /مص'/بF' ?G'منF'H م.'طرF' /G'ل كNH/بت HHصندF' G'F )'( 'ذ' م'H "/NرHG 0'بNترت" FGH رN.'ت P' نHر د.&
H' لNH/تF'ب HHصندF' GFN GF  .صلg' OF? /طرNسF' لNH/بت G'F كنFH ،صلgF /مص'/بF' م.'طرF'H ?G'منF' Gم?ظ OF? ''Fبg' 

 /NF'Gت' G'بر' H' صلg' من /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' Ggست' HHF/ لNH/بت HHصندF' 'GNG GHFN NتF' 0g'/F' NGH (.N Gن'G ،/NرHG 0'بNترت
  ''Fبg' H' لNH/ت 'GNG GتN g NتF' 0g'/F' NGH ./NكFمFF /مص'/بF' م.'طرF'H ?G'منF'ظ ب'Gت/g'ب G'F Oمد PgH 'م' 'ذNG GNHFت GNF?

g' 0'ثب' NG HHصندF' ستمرN ،صلg' OF? /طرNسF' لNH/ت 'GNG GتN GF H' صلgF /مص'/بF' ?G'منF'H م.'طرF' Gم?ظ OF?  صل
O ب'ثب'F' 0مطHFب'F' 0مص'/ب/ N .'GFتNF G'س 'FمH.Hد'0  بFدر 'رتب'ط 'FصندF' HHمستمر بNGH .G تF' GHFN ،/F'/F' GFصندN' HHض'

 .HHصندF' 'GNF? OFب' NتF' 0'تز'مFg'H HHF/F' كس?N PذF' س'سg' سGن FGH 'GF /مص'/بF' 0'بHFمطF'H /FH/مF' 
 

 'gن.G'ض NFF' NGم/
  H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'تن'/ بFمF' رN> نNدF' 0'Hد' /G'بش'ن ك /?FHمتF' تم'ن&g' ب'ثب'0 م.صص .س'&ر HHصندF' GHFN

NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' ?Nم.H دF?FF 'FGH /F/مستF' /NدF'?تF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' نNب HرGF' س'س' OF? /?FHمتF' تم'ن&g' س'ر/. ت/دد .س'&ر.F' /
' ?FHتN NتF' 0'FGتدF' OF? /?FHمتF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' تشتمل .NFصg' NF?GF' /FHم?F' ر) م?دل'FN 'م/ بمHم.ص ،'Gمgست' HHصندF

 ./NدF'?تF' طHشرF' ت.ز' منN g ' O'ت?تبر .ز NتF' Oر.g' /Nتم'ن&g' 0'زNت?زF'H 'Gظ بGم/تF' /NنGرF' 0'ضم'نF' ?Nمن ب /NدFنF' 

NتG 'ثب'0 .س'&ر 'g&تم'ن 'FمتOF? /?FH مر/FتNن. ب'Fنسب/ FFت?رض'g' 0&تم'نF' /NتGF N تزد'د م.'طر 'g&تم'ن 'F.'ص/ بG' بشكل  
'Fت?ثر   0g'/ تنت. ?ن NتF'  /Nتم'ن&g' س'&ر.F' ''FF  /?FHمتF' .GHرP منذ 'gثب'N ،'GF NFHg' 0.ن) م.صص .س'&ر 'g&تم'ن 

  FF' لg. /Fم/تمF'12  ش  Oمد OF? /?FHمتF' تم'ن&g' س'&ر.( /NF'تF' ' OرG12   تزد'د م.'طر NتF' /Nتم'ن&g' 0'ت?رضF' 'م' .)' OرGش
 Oمد OF? /?FHمتF' تم'ن&g' س'&ر.F /م.صص .س'ر (Nت.ن (.N Gن'G ،'GF NFHg' 0'ثبg' منذ PرGH. بشكل 'Gص/ ب'.F' تم'ن&g'

H نظر ?نF' Gم.'طر بصرFF ت?رضFF NFمتبF' مر?F'.)مر?F' Oمد OF? /?FHمتF' تم'ن&g' ت?ثر ).س'&رF' 0F 
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 'Fم?HFم'0 ذ'Gg' 0مF' /NنسبN/ ?ن 'FسN'س'F' 0م/'سبN/ )تتم/( -3
 

3-6  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg'( /تتم) 
 
3-6-1   /NF'مF' 0'Hدg'– )/تتم( F/gF' س'NFF'H NFHg' 0'ثبg' 
 
 'FمHجHد'F' 0م'NF/ )تتم/(  (1
 

 'gن.G'ض NFF' NGم/ )تتم/(
 ./?FHمتF' 'g&تم'ن  '/تس') .س'&ر  ?ند  'Fمبسط/   /FNطرF'  HHصندF'  Gست.دN  ،Oر.g' 'FمدNن/   GذمF'H 'gرب'/   0'?NزHتF ب'Fنسب/ 
F' GHFN g ،GNF?HصندHH بمت'ب?/ 'Fت<Nر'NG 0 م.'طر 'g&تم'ن FHكن GHFN بدOg من ذGF ب'ثب'0 م.صص .س'ر/ بن''OF? O .س'&ر 

  Oمد OF? /?FHمتF' تم'ن&g' /Fس'بF' /بر.F' OF' 'Oم.صص'0 'ستن'د /GHGب'نش'' مص HHصندF' G'F ./NF'م G&'HF د'د كل?' .Nمر بت'ر?F'
 ./Nتص'دFg' /&NبF'H نNنNمدF'ص/ ب'.F' /NFبFمستF' مل'H?F'ب 'GFNت?د GتN NتF'H ،تم'ن&g' س'&ر. NG 

 
2) /NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF' 

 
 'gثب'NFF'H NFHg' 0'س

'FمطHFب'F' 0م'F' /NF.'ص/ ب'Fصندg' OF? HHسترد'د'F' 0مست/F'H /Fرسg' GHد'رH /N'ت?') 'gد'ر/ 'Fمست/F'H /FمطHFب'0 تشتمل  
 GNF'تك  Gب?د .ص  'Gر'Gظ'  GتN 'Fد'&ن/،   GذمFF Hب'Fنسب/   ./Fد'?F' ب'NFFم/   /NF'مF' 'FمطHFب'0   /G'ك 'ثب'0  'gصل،   NG  ،GتN  .Oر.g'

 'شر/F' .Oم?'مF' 0gمت?FF/ بG' مب
 

 /'GمطF' /GFتكF'س/ ب'FمF' /NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF' 

 تشتمل GذOF? /&GF' G ك'F' /GمطHFب'F' 0م'NF/ ب.Gg تF' GFمF'س/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/. 
 

 F/gF' س'NFF' 
 

 /'GمطF' /GFتكF'ب /NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF' 
' ب'FصندHH. ب?د 'gثب'0   OرNكث /&GF'  GذG FF?م?دل تت /FNطر G'ب'ست.د /'GمطF'  /GFتكF'ب O 'F/g /NF'مF' 'FمطHFب'0  GF'، تF'س   NFHg'

 ''Gط' /NFل ?مg. من GFكذH 0'بHFمطF' 0'ن 'ثب? GFHتF' س'ر/ ?ند.F' H' /ربF' NG س'&ر.F'H /'ربg' 0'ثب' GتN .NF?GF' /FHم?F'
g?تب'ر 'F' H' /Hg?F.صG ?ند 'Fشر'' Hكذg' GFت?') 'F' Hتك'F' GNFتN م?دل 'F?مNF?GF' /FH. ت/س) 'FتكF' /GFمطG'/ ب?د 'g.ذ ب?Nن '

 ت?تبر .ز''N g Oت.ز' من م?دل 'F?مNH .NF?GF' /FHدر. 'طG'' م?دل 'F?مNF?GF' /FH كتك'GNF تمNHل F NG'&م/ 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/. 

 .Oر.g' 0'بHFمطF'H /F/مستF' /د'رg' ('?ت'H /Nد'رg' GHرسF'H /F/مستF' 0'سترد'دg' OF? ' OمHم? /&GF' GذG Fتنطب 
 

  'FتGFH ?ن 'gثب'0
NتF' GتGFH ?ن 'ثب'F' 0مطHFب'F' 0م'NF/ ?ند سد'د 'Fgتز'F' Gم/دد F?F' NGد 'H' G&'>F' H 'نتG'' مدتF'/ NGH .G/ تبدNل 'Fgتز'م'0 

H' O بت?دNل شرHط   'Fgتز'م'NF'/F' 0/ بشكل .GHرP، ?ند&ذ NتG '?تب'ر 'Fم'NF/ ب'.رO من نGس 'F' /G.FمFرض/ بشرHط م.تGF/ تم'م'
 Nم?نF' /NترGدF' GNFF' نNب HرGF' 0'ثب' GتN ./دNتز'م'0 .دF' 0'ثب'H /NFصg' 0'تز'مFg' 0'ن 'ثب? GFHل كتNت?دF' H' لNتبدF' 'ذG مثل  /

 F NG'&م/ 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/. 
 
3 )  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' /ص'Fم 

  /NHتسF GزFم Nنظ'م F/ دH.H ط ?ندFG GFذH NF'مF' مركزF' /م&'F NG NG'صF' .درNH /NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمF' /ص'Fم Gتت
'Fمب'F' >FتN تG 'ثب'تH ،'G?ند H.Hد نF /NتسF' /NHمH.Hد'0 م? 'FمطHFب'OF? 0 'س'س 'Fص'H' NG بF' ?NمH.Hد'H 0تسدNد 'FمطHFب'0 

' ?OF 'تF' 0'NF'GمF'ص/ 'Fر&NسN/ م'N GFت?ثر '/د 'طر'g' GتNH ،/NF'GتG ?رض 'FمH.Hد'NG 0 &ن H'/د. N gHنطبF ذ OمHم? GF
 .NF'مF' مركزF' /م&'F NG NF'م.g'ب /Fg?F' 0'ب'0 ذHFمطF'H 

  



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 

 

- 12 - 

 'Fم?HFم'0 ذ'Gg' 0مF' /NنسبN/ ?ن 'FسN'س'F' 0م/'سبN/ )تتم/( -3
 
3-7 /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NF  

.NF'م/ مركز م&'F كل .Nبت'ر /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NكFمF' HHF/ 0'Hمثل 'د /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' س'NFب HHصندF' GHFN 
'NFFم/ 'F?'دF' NG /Fس?ر 'FذP سNتG 'ستgمG ?ند بN? مH.Hد'0 م' 'H دG?G ?ند ت/NHل مطHFب'0 م' بمH.) م?'مF/ نظ'مN/ بNن 

 ?Nب /Fتر'ض 'ن م?'مG' OF' /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NF ستندN .س'NFF' .Nبت'ر HHسF' NG نNFم': مت?'م' Gب'0 تتHFمطF' لNH/ت H' 0'دH.HمF' 
• H' ،0'بHFمطF' H' 0'دH.HمFF NسN&رF' HHسF' NG 
  F'/ NG/ ?دH.H Gد 'FسF' HHر&NسNG ،N 'كثر 'gسG H'H'&د/ FFمH.Hد'F' H' 0مطHFب'0. •

تس?Nر 'FمH.Hد'F'H 0مطHFب'0 تF'س 'NFFم/ 'F?'دFF /FمH.Hد'F' H' 0مطHFب'0 ب'Gتر'ض 'ن 'Fمت?'مNFن F' NGسHH سNستNGدHن ?ند  
 ./Nتص'دFg' GG/F'ضل مصG' FNF/تF نH?سN GGن'H 

 
 0g.مدF' G'د/ 'ست.د'NزH /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NFF /NG'ن'0 ك'Nب 'Gر بش'نGHتتH ،GHظرFF O 'FGH /م&gم GNHFت Hطر HHصندF' Gست.دN

 'FF'بFF /Fمg/ظ/ HتNFFل 'ست.د'F' Gمد.N> 0gر 'FF'بFF /Fمg/ظ/. 
 

 NرمGF' سلFتسF' ضمن /NF'مF' G&'HFF' NG 'Gص'/ ?نGg' H' /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب 'Gس'NF GتN NتF' 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمF' /G'ك Gتصن
 FمستNFF' 0'NHم/ 'F?'دF' /FمذكHر/ 'دن'OF?H G 'س'س مد.F' 0gمستg' OHدنGF' O'م/ NFF'س 'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ ككل: 

•  OHمستF'1 ./Fب'0 مم'ثHFمط H' 0'دH.HمF /نشط H'Hس' NG )/Fم?دF' رN>( /FH'متدF' س?'رg' : 
•   OHمستF'2    Oدنg' OHمستF' 0g.ت?تبر مد GNHFت Hطر :-    /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NFF /م'GF'-   /ر/ مب'شرHظ/ بص/gمFF /Fب'F
 'N> Hر مب'شر/.  
•  OHمستF'3  Oدنg' OHمستF' 0g.ت?تبر مد GNHFت Hطر :-  /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NFF /م'GF'-  ./ظ/gمFF /Fب'F رN>  

Gم' 'ذ' تNG ت'كدF'ب HHصندF' GHFN ،بشكل متكرر /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NF'مF' G&'HFF' NG 'Gثب'ت' GتN NتF' 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمFF /نسبF'ب  
  0g.س'س مد' OF?( GNتصنF' GNHFب'?'د/ ت GFذH /Fد'?F' /مNFF' 0'NHمستF NرمGF' سلFتسF' نNل بNH/تF' /م'GF' Oدنg' OHمستF'

NFF'س 'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ ككل( NG نN'G/ كل سن/ م'F' GHFN ./NFصندHH بت/دNد 'FسN'س'g'H 0.ر'''F 0كل من NF'س 'NFFم/ 'F?'دF' /Fمتكرر  
  NFH'س 'NFFم/ 'F?'دN> /Fر 'Fمتكرر.

 'GمNHFد/ ت'?' H' 'Gس'NF /مر'د '?'دF' 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمF' /مNF NG 0'رN>تF' لNF/بت HHصندF' GHFN ،/NF'م G&'HF د'د كل?' .Nبت'رH
 GNNFر ت.& NG /FمطبF' /NسN&رF' 0g.مدF' من FF/تF'ب HHصندF' GHFN ،لNF/تF' 'ذG ر'ض>gH .HHصندFF /Nم/'سبF' 0'س'NسFF O 'Fطب

  /Fبمط'ب GFذH ' OضN'  HHصندF'  GHFN 'g' /Fg?F.رO. كم'  'HF?Fد F'Hمستند'0 ذ'0  'FتGNNF م?  '/تس')   NG /مست.دمF' 'Fم?HFم'0 
بمF'رن/ 'Fت<Nر'NFF' NG 0م/ 'F?'دF /Fكل G&/ من F' 0'&GمH.Hد'F'H 0مطHFب'0 م? 'Fمص'در 'F.'ر.N/ ذ'F /Fg?F' 0ت/دNد م' 'ذ' ك'ن 

 .OgHF?ر مN>تF'  
FH<رض 'Ggص'/ ?ن 'NFFم/ 'F?'دF' G'F ،/FصندHH بت/دNد F' 0'&GمH.Hد'F'H 0مطHFب'OF? 0 'س'س طبH /?N.ص'&ص Hم.'طر  
 /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /FF?متF' 0'/'صGg' ن' .Gg?' /رHمذكF' /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NF 0'NHمستF NرمGF' سلFتسF'H 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمF'

'NF GتN NتF' ،/NF'مF' 0'HدgF( /'ضN' NG 'GشتF'تم0 من ،'GF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' ص'/ ?نGg' Gت NتF' H' /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب 'G8س.)  
 'HF/د'FF' 0'بgF /Fسترد'د  3-8

 تصنHF' G/د'FF' 0'بgF /Fسترد'د ك'دHHF/ 0'H مFكN/ ?ند:
•  .HHصندF' /NGتص /F'/ NG HHصندF' 0'دH.Hم NG'ص NG /Nسترد'د /ص/ تن'سبgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF' GF'م H'F/ست' 
•  .Oر.g' /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' 0'&G /G'ب?د ك 'Gرد GتN NتF' /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' /&G سترد'د ضمنgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF' GNتصن 
•   0'&G  /G'ب?د ك 'Gرد GتN  NتF'  /NF'مF'  0'Hدg'  /&G ضمن /GمصنF' 'FF'بgF /Fسترد'د  'HF/د'0   /G'كF  /Fد .ص'&ص مم'ثH.H

 .Oر.g' /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' 
?دG تضمن 'HF/د'FF' 0'بgF /Fسترد'د 'P ت?Gد'0 ت?'FدF /NتسF' GNFنFدH' /N 'صل م'NF &.ر ب.F' HHF/ Ggم'NG GF /ص/   •

.HHصندF' 0'دH.Hم NG'ص NG /Nتن'سب 
•   OF? /NرGH. /رHبص /NF'مF' /'دg' مر? Oمد OF? سترد'دgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF'ب /FF?متF' /?FHمتF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' NF'د '.مNت/د

'س'س 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ 'F' Hت<Nر NG ص'F' NGمH.Hد'F' 0مثبF' H' 0ت<Nر NFF' NGم/ 'F?'دF /Fص'F' NGمH.Hد'F' 0مثبN>H 0ر  
? Oمد OF? HHصندFF 0مثبF' ./NF'مF' /'دg' مر 

  /NF'0 م'Hد' HHصندF' OدF نHكN g' (.N Gن'G ،Gg?' ص'&ص.F' /G'تتضمن ك NتF'H ،سترد'دgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF' OF' /G'ضg'ب
 :OF? شتملN دF? H' Oر.' 

•   H' 0مثبF' 0'دH.HمF' NG'ص NG رN>تF' H' /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' س'س' OF? /NرGH. /رHم/دد بصF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' NF'م.'
.HHصندFF 0مثبF' رN>H 0مثبF' 0'دH.HمF' NG'صF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' NG رN>تF' 

  'gثر 'Fن'ت. ?ن 'FتNNFد 'F' Hت/دNد 'GH.FرFF P?'&د 'FمتبHFF NF/د'FF' 0'بgF /Fسترد'د.  •
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 )تتم/( 'HF/د'FF' 0'بgF /Fسترد'د 3-8
 Ggسترد'د ?ن 'متgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF' GFHت /F'/ NGH .سترد'دgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF' GNتصن GNHFر/ مستمر/ بتHبص HHصندF' GHFN
 'GGNب'?'د/ تصن GHFNس HHصندF' ن'G ،/NكFم HHF/ك 'GGNتصن GتN NكF 'GNF? صHمنصF' طHشرF' /G'بك ''GHF' H' ص'&ص.F' /G'ك

NFF'ب 'Gس'NFH /NF'ب'0 مHFكمط  NG'ص NG /Fس'بF' /NترGدF' /مNFF' 0 ن'ت./ ?ن'FHرG P' 0'م? 'ثب ،GNتصنF' /د'?' .Nبت'ر /Fد'?F' /م
 'GGNط تصنHشرF 'G&'GNست'H O 'F/g ص'&ص.F' /G'سترد'د كgF /Fب'FF' 0'د/HF' Ggمت' /F'/ NGH .0'د/HF' NكF'مF /د&'?F' 0'دH.HمF'

Nب'?'د/ تصن GHFNس HHصندF' ن'G ،/NكFم HHF/ك .GNتصنF' /د'?' .Nب'0 بت'رHFمطFF /NترGدF' /مNFF'ب 'Gس'NFH /NكFم HHF/ 0'Hك'د 'GG 
 

NتF' Gم/'سب/ ?ن ?مNF/ 'صد'ر Hشر'' HF' ''>F'H/د'FF' 0'بgF /Fسترد'د كم?'مHHF/ 0g مFكN g ./NتG 'ثب'P' 0 رب/ 'H .س'ر/ 
.HHصندF'ص/ ب'.F' /NكFمF' HHF/ 0'Hد' ''>F' H' صد'ر'H ''ش'مل ?ند شرF' د.لF' /م&'F NG 

 
 ص'NF NGم/ 'FمHجHد'F 0كل H/د/  3-9

  HHصندF' 0'دH.Hم/ مNF NG'سم/ صFب GFذH NF'مF' مركزF' /م&'F NG Gص/ ?نGمF'H /د/H كلF 0'دH.HمF' /مNF NG'تس') ص/' GتN
  NG /مصدرF' 0'د/HF' دد? OF?./ترGF' /N'Gن 

 
3-10  Oر.g' GNمص'رF'H ظG/F' ('?ت'H /د'رg' ('?ت' 

 G'ك/g'H طHشرF' NG /م/ددF' >F'مبF' /س?'رg'ب Oر.g' GNمص'رF'H ظG/F' ('?ت'H /Nد'رg' GHرسF'H /د'رg' ('?ل 'تNت/م GتN
 .HHصندF'ص/ ب'.F' 

 
 'Fزك'/ HضرNب/ 'Fد.ل  3-11

'H ضرNب/ د.ل، /Nث N?تبر ذGF من مس)NFH/ م'FكHF' N/د'N GF GNF?H ،0.ن) GF' 'ن 'FصندNF HHس مس)OgH ?ن سد'د 'N/ زك'/  
 ./FGمرF' /NF'مF' G&'HFF' GذG NG م.صص 

 
 تHزg' 0'?Nرب'/  3-12

 Gن'G ،/FH'متدF' /NF'مF' H'رHgF /نسبF'بH .'Gمgست' /NF/'ر'ر بFg' .Nبت'ر GFذH ش'ملF' د.لF' /م&'F NG /'ربg' 0'?NزHثب'0 ت' GتN 
'?تم'د  .Nبت'ر ?'د/   'Gثب'ت'  GتN  Gن'G  ،/FH'متدF' <Nر   /NF'مF'  H'رHgF Hب'Fنسب/   ./Fس'بF' 'gرب'/   0'?NزHت  .Nبت'ر  O/د'?  'Gثب'ت'  GتN 

'GمNن دG? تF' GFتHزNH .0'?NتG 'ثب'0 تHزg' 0'?Nرب'/ من 'Hgر'F' Hم'F' /NFمصنG/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ 'Fمس
 NG بند مستFل F NG'&م/ 'Fد.ل 'Fش'مل.

 
 'FتFدNر'g'H 0/ك'F' Gم/'سبGF' /N'م/ -4
 

FتF' G'ست.د' ،/NدH?سF' /Nرب?F' /كFممF' NG /م?تمدF' NF'مF' رNرFتFF /NFHدF' رNN'?مFF O 'Fطب ،HHصندFF /NF'مF' G&'HFF' د'د?' (FتطN 0'رNد
F'HمطHFب'F' 0مس.Gg'H /Fص'/ ?ن 'FمH.Hد'F'H 0مطHFب'F' 0م/تمF/ بت'رGg'H .Nتر'ض'F' 0تF Nد ت)ثر ?OF 'رصد/ 'FمH.Hد'0 

 GFذH /ر/ مستمرHبص G'ك/g'H 0'رNدFتF' GNHFت GتN ./سنF' لg. 'Gمصر/ ?نF' GNمص'رF'H 0'ر'دNg' >F'مبH /NF'مF' G&'HFF' د'د?'
FمستF' 'Fس'بH?H /F'مل '.رO تشتمل ?OF تgF 0'?FH/د'ث  'F.بر/   OF? O''بن GHFN  .GHظرFF  O 'FGH /FHF?م 'Gب'ن N?تFد   NتF'H /NFب

'FصندHH ب'.ر'' 'FتFدNر'Gg'H 0تر'ض'0 بش'ن 'FمستFبل. FHد ت.تF' GFتFدNر'F' 0م/'سبF' /Nن'ت./ ?ن ذGF ?ن 'Fنت'&. 'NF?GF/ ذ'0 
 ./Fg?F' 

 
:G'ك/g' 'GNG 0م'رس NتF' H' 0'تر'ضGg'H 0'رNدFتF' /د'رg' 'GNG 0ست.دم' NتF' /م'GF' N/'HنF' NFN 'مNGH 

 
 /Nستمر'رg' 'مبد 

  ،/Nستمر'رg' 'مبدF 'OFGH مل?F' NG ستمر'رg' OF? HHصندF' /درFمF GNHFب'.ر'' ت HHصندF' رNن م? مدH'?تF'د'ر/ بg' سF.م G'F
GHم' ?F OFن'?/ ب'ن 'FصندF HHدF' GNمH'رد 'Fك'gF /NGستمر'ر F' NG?مل F' NGمستFبل 'FمنظHر. ?OF? /Hg ذNF ،GFس Fدg' Oد'ر/ 

H. ت'كد Gب?د GF? P' د'د?' Gت ،GNF?H ./Nستمر'رg' 'مبدF 'OFGH مل?F' NG ستمر'رg' OF? HHصندF' /درFل مH/ O'كHر شكNثN دF PرG
 ./Nستمر'رg' 'س'س مبد' OF? /NF'مF' G&'HFF' GذG 

  



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 )تتم/(  'FتFدNر'g'H 0/ك'F' Gم/'سبGF' /N'م/ -4
 

 'F?'دNF/F'س 'NFFم/ 
F' GHFNصندHH بNF'س 'ستثم'ر'تNG G 'دF' HHF/ 0'HمFكN/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ بت'رN. '?د'د كل G&'HF م'NF/. 'ن 'NFFم/ 'F?'دF' NG /Fس?ر 
  .Nبت'ر HHسF' NG نNFن مت?'مNب /Nنظ'م /Fم?'م (.Hب'0 م' بمHFل مطNH/ند ت? G?Gد H' 'د'0 مH.Hم ?Nند ب? Gمgست' GتNس PذF'

NF'س N/دد  'Fر&NسNFF'    N'س.   HHسF'  NG 'م'  تم0  Fد  'FمطHFب'0  ت/NHل   H' 'FمH.Hد'0   ?Nب  /Fم?'م 'ن  ب'Gتر'ض   /Fد'?F' 'NFFم/ 
 H'Hسg' ب'0. 'نHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمFF /د&'G H'Hسg' كثر' NG ،NسN&رF' HHسF' دH.H Gد? /F'/ NG H' ،0'بHFمطF' H' 0'دH.HمFF

'F نHن تك' (.N /د&'G كثرg' H'Hسg' H' /NسN&رF'  0'بHFمطF' H' 0'دH.HمFF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'Fت .HHصندF' بلF من 'GNF' لHصHFF /Fب
  ./Nتص'دFg' GG/F'ضل مصG' FNF/تF نH?سN GGن'H 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمF' رN?ن ?ند تسHدNGستNس HHسF' NG نNFمت?'مF' تر'ض 'نG'ب 

 
  NتF' GNHFتF' Hطر G'ب'ست.د /Fد'?F' /مNFF' دNت/د GتN ،0د.H نشط، 'ن HHس NG /FH'متدF' رN> Oر.g' /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' /G'كF /نسبF'ب
F OشرHط  'FGH HHسF' NG 00 تمgر م?'م.& G'ست.د' ،P'( HHسF' /FNطر OF? GNHFتF'  Hتشتمل طر .GHظرFF O 'FGH /م&gم Hتبد

 Fم?دF'H ،دل'?F' ت?'ملF'  لNF/ت P'( د.لF' /FNطرH )/Fمم'ثF' Oر.g' 0'HدgF /NF'/F' /NFHسF' /مNFF' OF' ?H.رF'H ،/رHضرF' ند? /
 'FتدF' 0'FGنFدF' /Nم.صHم/ Hنم'ذ. تس?Nر 'N.F'ر'0 مم' NزNد من 'ست.د'G بN'ن'F' 0سF' HHمت'// F'Hم)Nد/ Fدر 'gمك'ن(.

F'مF' 0'Hدg' GذGF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' ص'/ ?نGg' Gت .NF'م/ مركز م&'F كل .Nبت'ر /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' س'NFب HHصندF' GHFN  /N
 . N' NG5ض'/ 

 
 'FمHجHد'F' 0م'NF/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/  -5
 

 :'GF NG'ر>.F' ت?رضF'H GNHFت GHN ر.& NG /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NF'مF' 0'دH.HمF' 0'نHبمك ' Oص.Fم NFN 'مNG 
 

 2023دNسمبر  31 2024دNسمبر  31 
  /FH'متدF'  GGسg'  NG 'gستثم'ر'0 

 )/FHدF' (س/( 
 /GFتكF' 

PدH?س ౘ墎 

/NFHسF' /مNFF' 
PدH?س ౘ墎 

/GFتكF' 
PدH?س ౘ墎 

 /NFHسF' /مNFF' 
PدH?س ౘ墎 

 /NدH?سF' /Nرب?F' /كFممF' 419,664,706 499,578,733 297,183,066 372,334,862 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
 

: ౘ墎2023 س?HدP )  65,941,216بF' >Fد.ل من 'FمH.Hد'F' 0م'NF/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ .gل 'Fسن/  
(108,165,292 .)PدH?س ౘ墎 
 

' ب'د'ر/ ت?رضF Gم.'طر 'Fس?ر من .gل ت/NFل 'Fم/Gظ/ 'gستثم'رN/ /س) 'FFط'?. Hتتمثل   NضN' HHصندF' GHFN HHصندF' /س'Nس
NG تركNز 'Fم/Gظ/ 'gستثم'رFF' NG /Nط'?'F' 0تN N?تFد مدNر 'FصندHH 'ن 'FصندN HHمكنG من .GFg' ت?ظH?F' GN'&د 'Fمت'تN/ من 

 .HHصندF' 'GF ت?رضN NتF' م.'طرF' OHمست 
 

( من ص'F' NGمH.Hد'F' 0?'&د/ '2023  :18%  OF)  N GF19%كن FدF' OصندP' HH تركNز'NG 0 مر'كز 'gسGF' GGردN/ تت.'Hز  
:G'ل 'دنHد.F' NG HHصندFF /Nستثم'رg' /ظG/مF' ?'طF (ستثم'ر /سg' ص'/ ?ن تركزGg' Gد'0. ت/HF' NكF'م 

  



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 )تتم/(  'FمHجHد'F' 0م'NF/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/  -5
 

 2023دNسمبر  31 2024دNسمبر  FF' 31ط'? 

 

 /GFتكF'  /مNFF'/Fد'?F' 

'Fنسب/ 
  /NHمئF'
NFFFم/ 
/NFHسF' /GFتكF'  /Fد'?F' /مNFF' 

'Fنسب/ 
 /NH&مF'
NFFFم/ 
 /NFHسF' 

PدH?س ౘ墎 PدH?س ౘ墎  PدH?س ౘ墎 PدH?س ౘ墎  

 GHبنF' 130,886,368 143,485,160 28.72% 99,726,710 109,292,039 29.35 % 
F'نN11.98 44,587,263 32,717,442 %19.05 95,178,814 57,425,694 ت'م % 

 /Nس'سg' د'HمF' 60,703,347 58,904,251 11.79% 17,329,838 16,006,700 4.30 % 
م?د'H 0.دم'0  
 /N/صF' /N'?رF' 23,722,061 28,970,428 5.80% 45,850,564 59,030,887 15.85 % 
 % F' 25,133,246 28,955,884 5.80% 21,455,446 31,086,935 8.35مر'F' FG?'م/ 

 0g'تصg' 27,193,352 25,675,000 5.14% - - - 
 /NF'ر'سمF' ?FسF' 9,857,372 22,568,281 4.52% 11,176,146 16,839,582 4.52 % 

  0'N.برمF'
 % F'H 11,376,818 20,565,060 4.12% 9,169,015 13,828,105 3.71.دم'0

 /F'طF' 19,358,521 18,829,330 3.77% 20,546,673 25,261,332 6.79 % 
 /Nدم'0 ت.'ر.

/NنGمH 17,061,421 17,898,742 3.58% 15,193,029 17,069,151 4.58 % 
  ?NزHتH /&ت.ز

/NF'كمF' ?FسF' 10,432,205 13,861,034 2.77% 5,430,899 11,338,329 3.05 % 
 - - - %2.49 12,460,118 15,989,889 'ط?م/ HمشرHب'0 

'F.دم'0 
/NكgGستg' 10,524,412 12,226,631 2.45% 10,335,416 12,860,888 3.45 % 

 % F' - - - 8,251,888 15,133,651 4.07نFل
 419,664,706 499,578,733 100% 297,183,066 372,334,862 100 % 
 

  NG 'سمبر    31كمN2024د  /NF'د'0 مH.Hم OF? ذ'H/ستg' ''FF  ?GدF'  /F/مست >F'د مب.HN ، H' 'Fرب/  'F?'دF/ من .gل  ب'NFFم/ 
  GدرF >Fس'ر/ بمب.F'6,117,476  ( PدH?س ౘ墎31    سمبرNبض ?ن   2,517,766:  2023دFF' /F/مست >F'د مب.HN ،PدH?س ౘ墎

  GدرF >Fس'ر/ بمب.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NF'د'0 مH.H8,577,403'ستب?'د م  ( PدH?س ౘ墎31    سمبرN2023د g :
Nش.)' 

 

6-  F /دمFمF' 0'?GدF' ء'F /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NF'مF' 0'دHجHمF' شر'ء 
 

  NG /NGمنتF' /سنF' لg.31    سمبرNن  2024دH سN'شرك/ نH /N/صF' OسHمF' /شركF NFHg' G'?F' /طرF' NG HHصندF' Gش'ر ،
  ''FF مFدم/   /?Gد Hسدد   NنHكترFg'  FNHتسFF  NتHNب  >Fبمب  GGس' )  13,837,666شر''   PدH?س  ౘ墎2023  >FبمبH  )'Nش  g  :

10,236,030  ( PدH?س ౘ墎2023  /دمFم /?Gكد /?HGمدF' >F'مبF' دNرصF' 'ذG مثلN ،GNF?H .NF'HتF' OF? ،نNشركتFF )'Nش g :
.GGسg' صNبل ت.ص'Fم GتNHتس GتNس PذF'H  



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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7 -  'Gرصدت'H /Fg?F' 0'0 ذ'GجF' ?0 مgم?'مF' 
 

 /G.F' OF? G'G رNمم'رس/ ت'ث H' Oر.g' /G.F' OF? /طرNسF' OF? /درFF' 0'G.F' د/' OدF ذ' ك'ن' /Fg? 0'0 ذ'G. 0'G.F' ت?تبر
'g.رO ?ند 'ت.'ذ 'FFر'ر'F' 0م'F' H' /NFتش<N ./NFN?تبر مدNر 'FصندF'H HHمنش&g'/0ش.'ص ذFg?F' PH/ بمدNر 'FصندH HHم.Fس  

 ?Fg/ ب'FصندF' GHFNH .HHصندg. HHل دHر/ '?م'F' GF?'دN/ ب'.ر'' م?'م0g م? 'G.F'0 ذ'Fg?F' 0/. 'د'ر/ 'FصندG. HH'0 ذ'0  
 
 د'ر/'g'ت?')  ('

 GدرF ل 'ت?') 'د'ر/ بم?دلNبت/م HHصندF' رNمد GHFN .HHصندF' /ل ?ن 'د'ر/ 'نشطH(مس HHصندF' رN1.45'ن مد 'Gتس'ب/' GتN %
 NG'س'س ص' OF? ?Hسبg' NG نNمرت.HHصندF' 0'دH.Hم/ مNF 

 
( ) F' GHرسg' /Nد'ر 

% من '.م'NF مH.Hد'F' 0صندNH ،HHتG '/تس'بOF? 'G 'س'س HNمN ب/د GHFN0.07 مدNر 'FصندHH بت/مNل رسGH 'د'رN/ بم?دل  
  GدرF O9,375'دن  .'ONرGش PدH?س ౘ墎 

 
. )  GHرسg' 0'شتر'ك 

 G'شتر' GHل رسNت/م HHصندF' رNمدF F/N ،GFذ OF' /G'2بنسب/ 'ض  g' ،HHصندF' NG 0'د/HF' NكF'شتر'ك'0 من مg' /مNF من %
 'نG تF' Gتن'زل ?نG' من Fبل مدNر 'FصندHH منذ 'Fت'سNس.

 
 مك'G&0 '?ض'' م.Fس 'gد'ر/  (د

 ౘ墎10,000 س?HدP ?ن كل '.تم'? N gHزNد مبF' >Fمك'G'/ ?ن   2,000تبF< مك'G'/ كل ?ضH مستFل من '?ض'' م.Fس 'gد'ر/  
  .HHصندF' طHشرH G'ك/g 'OFGH 'ONHسن PدH?س ౘ墎 

 
'Gسترد'د'H HHصندF' 0'د/H NG 0'شتر'كg' )FG 

 

 /Fg?F' 0'ذ /GجF' Gس' /Fم?'مF' /?Nطب 
2024  2023 

 ౘ墎 س?HدH P/د'ౘ墎  0 س?HدH P/د'0
       

g'Hد'ر/  'gد'ر/  م.Fس  '?ض'' 
 /NذNGتنF' 

 1,350,000 52,324  350,000 11,676 'شتر'ك'0
 509,111 19,741  500,000 14,837 'سترد'د'0 

       
HHصندF' رN14,000,000 1,186,489  - - 'شتر'ك'0 مد 

 11,141,161 1,003,213  6,038,746 183,276 'سترد'د'0  
       

م.Fس  g?ض''  منتسب/  شرك'0 
 'gد'ر/

 25,000 1,077  38,030,352 1,153,500 'شتر'ك'0
 75,000 3,045  1,025,000 30.889 'سترد'د'0 

 

 'HF/د'FF' 0'ئم/
 NGم' NFN تG'صNل 'HF/د'FF' 0'&م/ .gل 'Fسن/: 

 2024 2023 
 /Fg?F' 0'ذ /G.F' Gد'0 'س/H 0'د/H 

   

 /NذNGتنF' /د'رg'H /د'رg' سF.52,324 49,163 '?ض'' م 
HHصندF' رN2,858,839 183,276 مد 

 48,568 1,171,179 شرك'0 منتسب/ g?ض'' م.Fس 'gد'ر/
 

  



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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7 - 'Gرصدت'H /Fg?F' 0'0 ذ'GجF' ?0 مgم?'مF'  )/تتم( 
 

7-1  /Fg?F' 0'0 ذ'GجF' ?0 مgم?'مF' 
 NGم' NFN تG'صNل 'Fم?'مGF' 0g'م/ م? 'G.F'0 ذ'g. /Fg?F' 0ل 'Fسن/: 

 /Fg?F' 0'ذ /GجF' Gس' /Fg?F' /?Nطب /Fم?'مF' /?Nطب 
2024 

PدH?س ౘ墎 
2023 

PدH?س ౘ墎 
     

 /NF'مF' 'GF' /شرك HHصندF' رN4,445,797 7,125,749 'ت?') 'د'ر/ مد 
   /Nد'ر' GH175,395 318,535 رس 
     

 8,000 8,000 مك'G'/  '?ض'' م.Fس 'gد'ر/ م.Fس 'gد'ر/
 

7-2   /Fg?F' 0'0 ذ'GجF' /رصد' 
 NGم' NFN تG'صNل 'gرصد/ 'Fر&NسN/ م? 'G.F'0 ذ'g. /Fg?F' 0ل 'Fسن/: 

 

 /Fg?F' 0'ذ /GجF' Gس' /Fg?F' /?Nد  طبNرصF' 
2024 

PدH?س ౘ墎 
2023 

PدH?س ౘ墎 
     

 /NF'مF' 'GF' /شرك HHصندF' رNمد  /F/مست /Nد'ر' GHرسH /ت?') 'د'ر'   

       2,313,771 1,696,462 
 8,000 8,000 'ت?') '?ض'' م.Fس 'د'ر/ مست/F/  '?ض'' م.Fس 'gد'ر/ م.Fس 'gد'ر/

     

8-  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' إد'ر/ م.'طر 
 
8-1  /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' مل م.'طر'H? 

  /NF'0 م'Hم.'طر 'دF HHصندF' /برن'م. 'د'ر/  تت?رض 'نشط O?سN ./FHNسF' م.'طرH تم'ن&g' م.'طرH HHسF' مثل م.'طر /?Hمتن
'Fم.'طر 'Fش'مل ب'FصندOF' HH ت?ظH?F' GN'&د 'Fمت'تN/ من مستF' OHم.'طر 'FتN Nت?رض F' 'GFصندHH، كم' Nس?F' OF' O/د من  

دHH سN'س'H 0'.ر'''F 0ت/دNد 'Fم.'طر 'FتN ت)ثر 'ل䐢ث'ر 'F?كسF' /Nم/تمg' OF? /Fد'' 'Fم'FF NFصندHNH .HH.د FدO مدNر 'Fصن
?OF 'ستثم'ر'F' 0صندF'H HHت'كد من م?'G /.FذF' Gم.'طر F' NGر) 0FH ممكن، F'HتN تشمل '.ر'' تFF GNNFم.'طر مر/ H'/د/ 

 ?Fg' OFل F' NGسن/. 
 

 /Hg? .HHصندF'ص/ ب'.F' G'ك/g'H طHشرF'H ستثم'رg' 0'س'Nم.'طر م? مر'?'/ سFF ذر/ ?NزHت FNبتطب HHصندF' رNمد GHFN 'كم
 ./?FHب'0 'سترد'د متFط P'ب ''GHFF /NG'كF' /FHNسF' رGHضم'ن تF GدG. Oص'رF HHصندF' رNبذل مدN ،GFذ OF?  

 FNصن'د //&g G'ك/g 'OFGH 'HF/د'0   NكF'م  /F'صF  Gت'NFH(بمس  HHصندF' مدNر   ''GH NG ضم'ن  دHر   HHصندF' 'د'ر/  FHم.Fس 
.HHصندF' G'ك/'H طHشرH ستثم'رg' 

 
 .G'دن' HطرF' GذG /NضHت GتH ،'GF ت?رضN NتF' م.'طرF' ?'Hن' GFد'ر/ م.ت'H س'NFF /GFم.ت 'OFطر HHصندF' Gست.دN 

 
8-1-1   HHسF' م.'طر 
 
')  0gHم?F' م.'طر 'س?'ر 

 0'HدgF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' H' 'م /NF'د'/ مg /NFبFمستF' /NدFنF' 0'FGتدF' /مNF (ن'ت./ ?ن تذبذF' م.'طرF' 0gHم?F' تمثل م.'طر 'س?'ر
  ،0gHم.'طر 'س?'ر ?م Pg HHصندF' ?ض.N g .HHسF' NG /س'&دF' 0gHم?F' س?'ر' NG 0'رN>تFF /.Nث'ب0 نتF' د&'?F' 0'ذ /NF'مF'

 P' GN 'دH'0 م'NF/ مرتبط/ ب?مN/./FHث HN g.د Fد
 
( )  0gم?F' م.'طر 

  0gم?F' د'0 تمثل م.'طرH.HمF' ن' .Nنب.g' GصرF' س?'ر' NG 0'رN>تF' /.Nنت /NF'مF' 0'Hدg' /مNF (ن'ت./ ?ن تذبذF' م.'طرF'
  0'Hدg' GذG م/ بش'ن'G 0gم.'طر ?م Pg HHصندF' ت?رضN g Gمن ثH ،PدH?سF' ౘ墎F'ب /F.مس HHصندFF /NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF'H

 ./NF'مF' 
 
 م.'طر 'Fس?ر ( .

'Fس?ر   'FسHH تمثل م.'طر   NG /س'&دF' 'Fت<Nر'g' NG 0س?'ر   /.Nنت  HHصندFF  /NF'مF'  0'Hدg' NFم/  تذبذ)  'Fن'ت./ ?ن  'Fم.'طر 
.0gHم?F' س?'ر'H /Nنب.g' 0gم?F' NG 0'رN>تF' Gg.ب Oمل '.ر'H? ن'ت./ ?نF'H 

 
'FتN N/تGظ بF' 'GصندGHFNH .HH مدNر   /NF'مF'  0'HدgF /NFبFمستF' 'Fس?ر بشكل 'س'سN من ?دF' Gت'كد من 'gس?'ر  تنش' م.'طر 
'FصندHH بمر'Fب/ /رك/ 'س?'ر 'دH'تF' Gم'F' /NFمدر./ NG 'سg' HHسGG ?ن كث). كم' F' GHFNصندHH ب'د'ر/ GذF' Gم.'طر من .gل  

/Nستثم'رg' GظتG/م ?NHط'?'0. تنFF' GFم.ت NG ستثم'رg'ب GFذH



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 إد'ر/ م.'طر 'gدF' 0'Hم'NF/ )تتم/(   - 8
 
  ?H'مل م.'طر 'gدF' 0'Hم'NF/ )تتم/( 8-1
8-1-1  HHسF' تتم/ م.'طر( ) 
 

/Nس'س/F' لNF/ت 
'س?'ر 'gسH .GGطبg O'Fد'ر/   Fم.'طر  'F.س'ر/   H' 'Fرب/  'F?'دF/ من .gل  ب'NFFم/  'Fمدر./   HHصندFF  /NF'مF' 'FمH.Hد'0  ت.ض? 

  OF? ثرg' ن'Nب NFN 'مNG ،HHصندF' رN>تF' ن'ت./ ?نF' /NكFمF' HHF/ 0'Hدg /Fد'?F' /مNFF' NG رN>تF' /.Nش'مل نتF' د.لF' /م&'F
 'Fم/تمل 'Fم?HFل NG م)شر'g' 0سGG م? بF'' ك'F' /Gمت<Nر'g' 0.رO ث'بت/:

 2024 2023 
 PدH?س ౘ墎 PدH?س ౘ墎 
   

 ?F'Hد/ ب'N18,616,743 24,978,937 % 5ز 
 ?F'Hص بF( 18,616,743) ( 24,978,937) % 5ن 

 
8-1-2   /FHNسF' م.'طر 

./NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF'ب /FF?متF' 0'دG?تF'ب ''GHFF ل'Hمg' رNGHت NG HHصندF' 'GG.'HN NتF' 0'بH?صF' /FHNسF' تمثل م.'طر 
  'Gسترد'د'H 0'د/HF' NG G'شترg' OF? HHصندF' G'ك/'H طHتنص شر?Hسبg' NG نNم.'طر مرتF HHصندF' ت?رضN Gمن ثH ،

 P' NG 'GFNNمكن تسNH رHGF' OF? FF/تFF /Fب'F HHصندFF /NF'مF' H'رHg' ت?تبرH .0'د/HF' NكF'ب'سترد'د'0 م ''GHF' بش'ن /FHNسF'
منتظH .0FH   Gم? ذG'F ،GF مدNر 'FصندHH بHض? 'رش'د'0 م?Nن/ FFسF' /FHN.'ص/ ب'FصندH HHمر'Fب/ متطFب'F' 0سOF? /FHN 'س'س 

 /Nستثم'رg' /ظG/مF' /NGتص H' /دNد.F' 0'شتر'كg' لg. م' من' GFذH ،'Gتز'م'0 /'ل نش'تF' P'ب ''GHFF /NG'كF' ل'Hمg' رGHضم'ن تF
 /Fg?F' 0'0 ذ'G.F' ل منNHتم OF? لHص/F' FNن طر? H'.HHصندF'ب  

'ن NFم/ 'FمطHFب'F' 0م'N> /NFر 'Fم.صHم/ 'F.'ص/ ب'FصندHH بت'رN. '?د'د 'F' G&'HFFم'NF/ تF'ر) NFمتF' 'GدGترH /N.مG?N' تسدد 
 ./NF'مF' G&'HFF' د'د?' .Nل سن/ من ت'رg.  

 م.'طر 'gئتم'ن  8-1-3
  NG 'م Gطر H'G.' ن'ت./ ?نF' م.'طرF' تم'ن&g' ر  تمثل م.'طر.䐢ل' GطرF' تكبد OF' Pد(N 'مم Gتز'م'تF'ب ''GHF' NG /NF'د'/ م'

.Nرسم NF.'د GNتصن G'نظ HHصندF' OدF د.HN g ./NF'س'ر/ م.F  
 GNHFتH /م/دد G'0 م? 'طرgم?'مFF د '&تم'نHض? /دHH تم'ن&g' م.'طرF 0'ت?رضF' /بF'ل مرg. تم'ن من&g' د'ر/ م.'طر' Gتت
 N.ر'.F' Nتم'ن&g' GNتصنF' س'س' OF? G'? تم'ن بشكل&g' د'ر/ م.'طر' GتتH ./ر/ مستمرHبص Oر.g' G'طرgF /Nتم'ن&g' /'gمF'

GHFN 'كم .Oر.g' G'طرgF   ?ت?'مل مF'H تم'ن&g' م.'طرF ت?رضF' /بF'ل مرg. تم'ن من&g' د من م.'طر/F'ب HHصندF' رNمد
  'طر'G ذ'0 سم?/ .Nد/. 

  NF'تF' لHد.F' نNبN :NF'مF' مركزF' /م&'F دHببن /FF?متF' تم'ن&g' م.'طرF ت?رضFF OصFg' د/F' 

 
2024 

PدH?س ౘ墎 
2023 

PدH?س ౘ墎 
   

F /دمF0 م'?Gد ''F /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب /NF'د'0 مH.H24,073,696 شر'' م - 
  /NF'د'0 مH.Hستب?'د م' ''FF بضFF' /F/مست >F'مب  H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب

 - F' 8,577,403.س'ر/
/NدFن GشبH /NدF6,888,890 919,619 ن 
 1,620  18,080  مدNنHن &.رHن

 ───────── ───────── 
 6,890,510 33,588,798 إجم'F' NFت?رض Fم.'طر 'gئتم'ن

 ═════════ ═════════ 
 إد'ر/ م.'طر ر'س 'Fم'ل  8-2

 NG'ص NFم/  تت<Nر  'ن  'Fممكن  Hمن   .HHصندF' ر'سم'ل  gFسترد'د   /Fب'FF' 'HF/د'0   NكF'م  OF' 'F?'&د/  'FمH.Hد'0   NG'ص Nمثل 
gFشتر'ك'0   HHصندF' تN/ ،GNNFث N.ض?   GHN NG كل   PرGH. سترد'د بشكلgF  /Fب'FF' 'HF/د'0   NكF'م  OF' 'F?'&د/  'FمH.Hد'0 

/HF' NكF'ر مNدFتF 'OFGH 0'سترد'دg'H HHصندF' G'دG' تتمثل .HHصندF' ''ن'ت./ ?ن 'دF' 0'رN>تF' ن? OgضG ،GNNFت GHN كل NG 0'د
  NكF'مF 0'د&'? FNF/تF /Nستمر'رg' 'مبدF O 'FGH مل?F' NG ستمر'رg' OF? HHصندF' /درFم OF? ظ'G/F' NG م'لF' ند 'د'ر/ ر'س?

F'?د/    OF? G/F'H'ظ  'ل䐢.رNن   //FمصF' gص/')   ?G'منH 'gستثم'رHF'  /N/د'0  'gنشط/  تطNHر   G?دF  /NHF مH.Hد'0   NG'ص
.HHصندF'ب



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 إد'ر/ م.'طر 'gدF' 0'Hم'NF/ )تتم/(   - 8
 
 إد'ر/ 'Fم.'طر 'Fم'NF/ )تتم/(     8-2

g'Hسترد'د'F' 0مت?FF/ ب'FمH.Hد'0 من '.ل 'G/F'ظ ?NG OFكل ر'س 'Fم'ل، تتمثل سN'س/ 'FصندNG HH مر'Fب/ مستg' OHشتر'ك'0 
.'GتNGتص OF? GدرتF ?FHتN NتF' 

 

GHFN م.Fس 'د'ر/ 'FصندH HHمدNر 'FصندHH بمر'Fب/ ر'س 'Fم'ل ?OF 'س'س ص'NF NGم/ 'FمH.Hد'F' 0?'&د/ 'OF م'FكHF' N/د'0  
 'FF'بgF /Fسترد'د. 

 
8-3     /NF'مF' 0'HدgF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' 

  OHمستF' ضمن 'GGNتصنH /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ب 'Gس'NF Gت NتF'H /س'ر.F' H' /ربF' لg. من /Fد'?F' /مNFF'ستثم'ر'0 مدر./ ب' HHصندF' OدF
1   /GمصنF' Oر.g' /NF'مF' 0'بHFمطF'H 0'دH.HمF' /G'كF /Fد'?F' /مNFF' د'ر/ 'نg' دFت?تH ./Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NFF NرمGF' سلFتسF' من

  /GFتكF'بG&'HFF' د'د?' .Nبت'ر /NترGدF' 'GمتNF (ر'Fت /'GمطF'   GتNH .رHGF' OF? 'GFNNتس /Nمك'ن'H ل.g' /رNصF 'GمدتF O'نظر GFذH /NF'مF'
  OHمستF' ضمن O'?Nم. 'GGNسل   2تصنFتسFF /GFم.تF' 0'NHمستF' نN0 بgNH/ت G'نG كنN GF ./Fد'?F' /مNFF' س'NFF NرمGF' سلFتسF' من

 'F?'دg. /Fل 'Fسن/ 'F' H' /NF'/Fسن/ 'Fس'بGF'  ./FرمNFFF Nم/ 

 
 ت/NFل تH'رg' .Nست/FF H'FمHجHد'F'H 0مطHFب'0   -9
 

   NG 'سمبر  31كمN2024د 

 .gل 
 شGرً' 12

 )PدH?س ౘ墎( 

 ب?د
 شGرً' 12

 )PدH?س ౘ墎( 
NF'جمg' 

PH?س ౘ墎 
    'FمHجHد'0
 GشبH /NدFن/NدF919,619 - 919,619 ن 

 499,578,733 - 499,578,733 مH.Hد'0 م'NF/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ 
ب'NFFم/   /NF'م مH.Hد'0  'ستب?'د   ''FF 'FFبض   /F/مست  >F'مب

 F' 8,577,403 - 8,577,403?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/
F مFدم/   0'?Gد  ''F  0'دH.Hم من  شر''   /Fد'?F' ب'NFFم/   /NF'م

 g. 24,073,696 - 24,073,696ل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ 
 18,080 - 18,080 مدNنHن &.رHن

 ───────── ───────── ───────── 
 533,167,531 - 533,167,531 إجم'F' NFمHجHد'0

 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
    'FمطHFب'0 

  ''FF ?GدF' /F/مست >F'م/  مبNFF'ب /NF'د'0 مH.Hم OF? ذ'H/ست'
 F' 6,117,476 - 6,117,476?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/
/F/مست /Nد'ر' GHرسH /2,313,771 - 2,313,771 'ت?') 'د'ر 
/F/س 'د'ر/ مستF.8,000 - 8,000 'ت?') '?ض'' م 

 Oر.' /FH'ب'0 متدHFمطH ?GدF' /F/مست GN46,934 - 46,934 مص'ر 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 

 8,486,181 - 8,486,181 إجم'F' NFمطHFب'0 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 
  



 /NدH?سF' GGسgF 'GF' HHصند 
)/NF'مF' 'GF' /بل شركF مد'ر من( 

 إNض'/'H/ 0ل 'HFF'ئF' Gم'NF/ )تتم/( 
 NG /NGمنتF' /سنFF31  سمبرN2024د 
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 )تتم/(  ت/NFل تH'رg' .Nست/FF H'FمHجHد'F'H 0مطHFب'0  -9
 

   NG 'سمبر  31كمN2023د 

 .gل
12  ' OرGش 

 )PدH?س ౘ墎( 

 ب?د 
12  ' OرGش 

 )PدH?س ౘ墎( 
NF'م.g' 

PH?س ౘ墎 
    'FمH.Hد'0

/NدFن GشبH /NدF6,888,890 - 6,888,890 ن 
 372,334,862 - 372,334,862 مH.Hد'0 م'NF/ ب'NFFم/ 'F?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/ 

 1,620 - 1,620 مدNنHن &.رHن
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 

 379,225,372 - 379,225,372 '.م'F' NFمH.Hد'0 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

    'FمطHFب'0 

مب'F< مست/F' /FدFF ?G'' 'ست/H'ذ ?OF مH.Hد'0 م'NF/ ب'NFFم/ 
 F' 2,517,766 - 2,517,766?'دF/ من .gل 'Fرب/ 'F' H.س'ر/
/F/مست /Nد'ر' GHرسH /1,696,462 - 1,696,462 'ت?') 'د'ر 
/F/س 'د'ر/ مستF.8,000 - 8,000 'ت?') '?ض'' م 

 Oر.' /FH'ب'0 متدHFمطH ?GدF' /F/مست GN80,873 - 80,873 مص'ر 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── 

 4,303,101 - 4,303,101 '.م'F' NFمطHFب'0
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 

 'Fزك'/ HضرNب/ 'Fد.ل   -10
 

  GFر 'ONز'رH ' Oر'رF /NF'مF' /ز'رH 029791'صدر    .N9بت'ر    Oم'د.  OFHg'1444  FG'HمF'( FG3    سمبرNبش'ن ب?ض 2022د )
 /NF'مF' /سنF' من 'Gل بHم?مF'H 'Gب G'تزFg' /NدH?سF' /Nرب?F' /كFممF' NG /Nستثم'رg' FNصن'دF' OF? نN?تN NتF' /'زكF' /N'د .ب?'HF 

2023  GFم? ذH ،د.لF' /بNضر H' /'زكF' /N'ب.F HHصندF' ?ض.N g ،Pز'رHF' ر'رFFF 'OFGHH . 0'مHF?ر'ر مF' GNدFت GNF? نN?تNس
' من   Oتب'ر?' )"/&NGF'"( Gم'ر.F'H /بNضرF'H /'زكF' /&NG OF'1    رN'نN2023    NG /NGمنتF' /ترGF' لg. 0'NFم?F' 'من بد ' Oتب'ر?' H'(

 . 2025'برNل  H .)30سNكHن &.ر مH?د FتFدFg' GNر'ر 'HG /&NGF' OF 2023دNسمبر  31
 

11 -   /Fم/تمF' 0'تز'مFg' 
 

 ./NF'مF' G&'HFF' د'د?' .Nكم' بت'ر /Fتز'م'0 م/تمF' P' G'نG د.Hت g 
 

12 - /F/gF' د'ث/g' 
 

GF تكن Gن'P' G '/د'ث F /F/gت'رN. '?د'د 'F' G&'HFFم'F'H ،/NFتN تتطF) '.ر'' ت?دH' 0gN تFدG' GNص'/'0 بش'نNg' NG 'Gض'/'0 
 ./NF'مF' G&'HFF' لH/ 


